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PART |

The information in this annual report contains eéntforward-looking statements, including statersaetated to our business prospects
and strategies, the markets for our products ansises, and trends in our business and marketsithetive risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results may differ materially from the rasudiscussed in these forward-looking statemergstdfs that might cause such a difference
include those discussed in “Risk Factors,” “Manageamtis Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditand Results of Operations,”
“Business” and elsewhere in this annual report.

Iltem 1. Busines:

Overview

We are a provider of equipment, software and sesvibat support the transport, switching, aggregatnd management of voice, video
and data traffic on communications networks. OwkeaOptical Transport , Packet-Optical Switchimgl &arrier-Ethernet Solutions products
are used, individually or as part of an integrageldition, in communications networks operated byyise providers, cable operators,
governments, enterprises, research and educastitutions and other network operators around thibeg We are a network specialist focusec
on solutions that enable converged, next-generatiohnitectures, optimized to handle a broader rhigh-bandwidth communications
services. Our products allow network operatorsalescapacity and increase transmission speedseaffy allocate network traffic, and
deliver services to business and consumer end.i@arsetwork solutions also include our integraf#ena One software suite that provides
network management capabilities that unify our pagbortfolio and provide automation and managerfeatures that enable efficient service
delivery. To complement our hardware and softwamfplio, we offer a broad range of consulting augport services that help our customer:
design, optimize, deploy, manage and maintain tietivorks. We believe that the close, collaboratingagement with customers enabled by
our services offering is an important componentwf network specialist approach and a significadffitidntiator with customers.

Network operators face a challenging and rapidgngiing environment that requires their networkise@obust enough to address
increasing capacity needs and flexible enough &ptaguickly to emerging applications and evolvimgsumer and business use of
communications services. At the same time, netwpecrators are competing to distinguish their sereiferings and add revenue-generating
services while managing the cost to implement aathtain their networks. To address these busimeastructure and service delivery
challenges, we offer a comprehensive, solutionsateid portfolio that builds upon the principlesoaf OP" Architecture for next-generation
networks. Our OPArchitecture, which underpins our solutions offgremd guides our research and development strdtagrages the
convergence of optical and packet networking teldgies to increase network scale cost effectiwelyile emphasizing software-enabled
programmability, automation and open interfacesotigh this network approach, we seek to enable-béglacity, configurable infrastructures
that can be managed and adapted by network-lepétapons, and to provide flexible interfaces foe integration of computing, storage and
network resources. By increasing network flexipifior service delivery, reducing required netwoldneents and enabling increased scale at
reduced cost, our communications networking sahgticreate business and operational value for atomers.

Certain Financial Information and Segment Data

We generated revenue of $1.8 billion in fiscal 2042 compared to $1.7 billion in fiscal 2011 . Fare information regarding our results
of operations, see “Management's Discussion andy8iseof Financial Condition and Results of Opemas” in Iltem 7 of Part Il of this annual
report. We currently organize our operations imtor fseparate operating segments: “Packet-Opti@aisport,” “Packet-Optical Switching,”
“Carrier Ethernet Solutions,” and “Software andvé@s.” The matters discussed in this “Businesstiea should be read in conjunction with
the Consolidated Financial Statements found urtder 8 of Part Il of this annual report, which imbduadditional financial information about
our operating segments, total assets, revenue umesasf profit and loss, and financial informatetmout geographic areas and customers
representing greater than 10% of revenue.

Corporate Information and Access to SEC Reports

We were incorporated in Delaware in November 1982 @mpleted our initial public offering on Febryar, 1997. Our principal
executive offices are located at 7035 Ridge Roaashdder, Maryland 21076. Our telephone number 84945700, and our web site addrt
is www.ciena.com We make our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarteports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form, &#d amendments
to those reports, available free of charge on kinegstors” page of our web site as soon as realopedzrticable after we file these reports with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Weneldy post the reports above, recent news andwaroements, financial results and
other important information about our business onvweebsite at www.ciena.comnformation contained on our web site is not & pathis
annual report.
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Industry Background

The markets in which we sell our communicationsveeking solutions have been subject to signifiagmnges in recent years, including
rapid growth in network traffic, expanded servié¢fenngs, and evolving technologies and end useratels. These conditions have created
market opportunities and business challenges,l@dhave changed competitive landscapes. Existidgeanerging network operators are
competing to distinguish their service offeringsl aapidly introduce differentiated, revenue-geriagpservices. At the same time, network
operators continue to seek to manage network erpems operate their businesses profitably. Thesardics continue to drive technology
convergence of network features, functions andrigyas well as demand for software-based prograntitgaldVe believe these market
dynamics will cause network operators to adopt camizations network infrastructures that are indreglg more automated, robust and
configurable.

Network Traffic Growth Driving Increased Capacitgdirements and Transmission Spe

Optical networks, which carry voice, video and daadfic using multiple wavelengths of light acrd#ser optic cables, have experienced &
multi-year period of strong traffic growth, and industnalysts project continued growth for the foreskealiure. Increasing network traffic
being driven by growing use of and reliance updmaad range of communications services by consametbusiness end users, as well as the
expansion of bandwidth intensive wireline and végsl service offerings. Expanding mobile applicajancluding Internet, video and data
services from the proliferation of smartphoneslethband other devices with wireless access, atkeduincreasing network traffic. Business
customers seeking to improve automation, efficiesnag productivity are increasingly dependent upamdwidth-intensive, enterprise-oriented
communications services that facilitate global afiens, employee mobility and seamless accessticatbusiness applications and data.
Enterprise technology trends such as virtualizatbbwud computing and machine-to-machine connestére placing new capacity and service
requirements on networks. At the same time, areaging portion of network traffic is being drivey growth of consumer-oriented
applications and adoption of mobile and broadbawtriologies. These include peer-to-peer Interngicgtions, residential video services,
multimedia downloads, cloud-based consumer serdndsnline gaming. This traffic growth requireatthetwork operators add capacity or
transition to higher capacity networks with incred$ransmission speeds.

Multiservice Traffic and Transition to Softwi-Defined Programmable Network Architectures

We expect that the broadening mix of high-bandwid#ia and video communications services, togetitargrowing mobility and
expanding wireless applications, will require uglgrsito existing network infrastructure, includingbite backhaul and traditional wireline
networks. We believe that this mix of high-bandwidnd latency-sensitive data traffic, and an inseegocus on controlling network costs, are
driving a transition from multiple, disparate SONBEDH-based networks to more efficient, convergedltippurpose optical transport network
(OTN)/Ethernet packet-based network architecturls.industry has previously experienced such nétwesthnology transitions and these
upgrade and investment cycles tend to happen oulti-year periods. For instance, from the mid 1980the mid 1990s, service providers
focused network upgrades on the transition requetigitize voice traffic. From the mid 1990s tetmid 2000s, service providers focused
network upgrades on the transition to SONET/SDHhvnéts designed to reliably handle substantially emeetwork traffic. We believe that the
industry is currently experiencing a network tréinsi to flexible, multi-purpose OTN/Ethernet packeaised network architectures that more
efficiently handle a growing mix of high-bandwidtbommunications services and a greater concentrafidata traffic.

Emerging Drivers for Network Modernizatit

Enterprise and consumer end users historicallygdexd value simply from their network connectivifyoday, however, end users are
increasingly focused upon the value that they k&ciom the services, applications and performataered by the underlying network. As a
result, network operators seek to create, market paofitably sell services, as opposed to simpliirg connectivity. This shift fundamentally
changes how communications networks are designédhamaged. Some of the areas that network ope@®isursuing to better compete and
drive end user value include:

* Mobility. The emergence of smart mobile devices that deiintegrated voice, audio, photo, video, email anditednternet
capabilities, like Apple's iPhone™ and iPad™, amdivdid ™-based smart phones and tablets, is rapltipging the service type and
magnitude of data traffic carried by wireless netgo The increase in availability and improved eafsese of mobile web-based
applications expands the reach of virtualized sevbeyond a wireline connection. For instancesaoer-driven video and gaming
are being virtualized, allowing broad access, raéigas
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of the device or the network used. Because mosiegs traffic ultimately travels over a wirelinewerk in order to reach its
destination, growth in mobile communications comdis to place demands upon wireline networks.

e “Cloud” Services.Cloud services are characterized by the sharimpiputing, storage and network resources to impesegomics
through higher utilization of network elements.diid network service providers are centralizingehesources in order to offer
usage-based and metered services that are hostetehg across a network. Prevalent cloud-basedcgsrinclude Platform as a
Service (PaaS), Software as a Service (SaaS) fmagdthucture as a Service (laaS). As a result, lsmahterprises and consumers can
subscribe to an expanding range of cloud serviresplace local computing and storage requireméatgjer enterprises and data
center operators may use private clouds to coreelitheir own resources and public clouds to accodate peak demand situations,
often in combination.

» Network Virtualizatior. Virtualization is the process of decoupling plegsil T or communications assets from the logicalises or
capabilities they can provide. This approach hasynagpealing attributes such as minimizing expensdsources while adding
flexibility and scale. The virtualization of comjng, storage and network resources elevates the wdlconnectivity and drives
demand for network infrastructures that offer geegrogrammability, scale, and flexibility.

e Machineto-Machine (M2M) Applicationsn the past, communications services largely rdlédethe connection of people-pzople o
people with content. Today, the number of networs@ahections between devices and servers is grojpidly with M2M-related
traffic expected to represent an increasing pomioimternet traffic. These connections allow tharing of data that can be monitored
and analyzed by applications residing on thosec#gevin order to provide value-added services tesu¥ée expect service traffic
relating to the interconnection of machines or desito grow as Internet and cloud content delivemartgrid applications, health ci
and safety monitoring, resource/inventory manageénieme entertainment, consumer appliances and otbbile data applications
become more widely adopted.

Market Conditions and Effect on Network Investn

We believe that these dynamics, together with eitiice traffic growth, are driving a shift in netsk priorities and spending toward high-
capacity, converged network architectures. Howedgring fiscal 2012 our market experienced a chgileg environment, including declining
growth rates in spending in the packet-optical meking markets our solutions address. We beliesétthis reflects the macroeconomic
conditions and competitive landscape encounter@diinmarket during the year. The sustained perfodacroeconomic weakness and
volatility in the global economy resulted in heighed uncertainty and cautious customer spendingrimdustry. These market dynamics havi
caused increased customer scrutiny and more rigpdtzation of network investment, resulting inopracted sales cycles, lengthier network
deployments, and revenue recognition delays. litiaddour market is intensely competitive and freented and securing new opportunities,
particularly for international sales, can oftenuieg less favorable pricing and less favorable cemuial terms that can elongate the revenue
recognition cycle and contribute to fluctuation®erating results. In spite of these macroecon@mitcompetitive conditions, we grew our
business in fiscal 2012 and believe we are welitipoed for the longeterm opportunities presented by multiservice teadfiowth. By offering
a solution that converges network functions anéigyparticularly the integration of transport, O3Witching and packetwitching, we believ
we offer a more robust, efficient and differentthtestwork architecture that allows network opemtorcreate and rapidly deliver new service
offerings and derive increased value from theinoek investment.

Strategy

We believe that a number of underlying drivershi@a marketplace represent significant, long-termoojpmities for our business. We
believe that market trends, including the prolifema of smartphones, tablets and similar devicesing mobile web applications, the
prevalence of video applications, and the shi#mrprise and consumer applications to cloud-base&itualized network environments, are
indicative of increasing use and dependence bywnoass and enterprises upon a growing variety cddivpand applications and services. We
expect that these services will continue to addiBa@ant multiservice network traffic, requiring teeork operators to invest in next-generation,
high-capacity network infrastructures that are meffeient, robust and programmable.

Our corporate strategy to capitalize on these ntalj@amics, promote operational efficiency and elfvofitable growth of our business
includes the following initiatives:

Promote our OP"A rchitecture for Next-Generation NetworkEhe services and applications running on commuioicginetworks
require that more of the traffic on these netwdr&packet-oriented. The traditional approach te phdoblem has
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been to add IP routing capability at various pointdhe network. As capacity needs grow, this apphodbecomes unnecessarily complex and
costly. We reduce the cost and complexity of gragntimese networks with a programmable infrastructiiae we believe brings together the
reliability and capacity of optical networking withe flexibility and economics of packet networkieghnologies. Combining these attributes
with network level applications creates an approaetctall our OP Architecture. Our OPArchitecture leverages the convergence of optical
and packet networking to enable network scale ieppldvanced control plane software for networlgpammability and enables netwdekwel
applications to integrate and optimize network, pating and storage resources in a virtualized enwirent. We intend to promote the
scalability, programmability, flexibility and cosffectiveness advantages of our O&rchitecture, and we see opportunities in offereng
portfolio of carrier-class solutions that facileahe transition to converged, next-generation agks:

Alignment of Research and Development InvestméntGvowth OpportunitiesWe seek to ensure that our product developmeritinis
and investments are closely aligned with marketvtfiopportunities and reflect the changing dynarfaced by network operators. We are
investing in our OP Architecture, which combines a cost-optimized, pamgmable network platform with open interfaces aativork-level
software applications. Our current developmentregfare focused upon expanding packet capabibitiesur Carrier Ethernet Solutions and
PacketOptical Transport products for metro and serviagregation applications, optimizing our core netwsokutions for application in met
networks, and investing in new vectors for groviResearch and development efforts are focused emdixig our Wavelogic coherent optical
processor for 40G and 100G optical transport aavasgortfolio and introducing 400G transmissiondurcts. We are also focused upon
enhancing our software applications, extending@ueConnect control plane across the 5400 and 6affonm families, and developing
network level applications that automate networctions and support new service introduction.

Evolve Go-to-Market ModeWe seek to evolve our go-to-market selling modethlfrom a coverage and an engagement perspective.

Coverage Our coverage model is focused on penetrating-gigivth geographic markets, selling into key custosggments ar
addressing additional network applications with seiutions. We seek to enhance our brand intemaltin expand our geographic reach
and capture market share in international markettjding Brazil, the Middle East, Russia, Japad brdia. We intend to pursue
opportunities to diversify our customer base beyowmdtraditional customer base. We are expandimgales efforts to capture
opportunities arising from enterprise migrationangd increased reliance upon, cloud-based sendoestargeting government agencies,
and research and educational institutions. We latetargeting Internet content providers and ottetwork operators emerging as a result
of network modernization drivers and the adoptibnew communication services. We seek to expana@pipdication of our solutions,
including in metro aggregation, submarine netwosksl in support of cloud-based services, busindss et services and mobile
backhaul. We intend to pursue selling initiatives atrategic channel opportunities, including iefehips with key resellers, and carrier-
managed sales to end users through our servic@prasustomers, in order to complement our dirat#sforce and penetrate more deepl
our targeted geographic markets, customer segraadtadditional applications for our solutions.

EngagementOur strategy is to leverage our close relationship customers in the design, development, impleatéon and
support of their networks and to promote a clogmalent of our solutions with customer network gties. This engagement model is a
key differentiator for our business and providesvith unique insight into the business and netwwekds of our customers. We seek to
expand our Network Transformation Solutions offgrio address the network modernization and sedétigery demands of our
customers, as well as their desire to drive addifiealue from their network infrastructure. Weibeé this services-oriented solutions
offering shifts our value proposition beyond théesa our next-generation communications networkpngducts and allows us to play a
key role in the design and evolution of our custmsheetworks to support their strategic businegsatives. By understanding and
addressing their network infrastructure needs hadetvolving markets in which our customers compeé&believe this customized
solutions offering creates additional business@petational value for our customers, enabling thelmetter compete in a challenging
environment.

Business optimization to yield operating leveraljée seek to improve the operational efficienciesunbusiness and gain additional
operating leverage. We are focused on the transfitomand redesign of certain business procesget®nss, and resources. These initiatives
include additional investments, re-engineering amgmation of certain key business processes,dimgiuithe engagement of strategic partners
or resources to assist with select business fumetim addition, we are focused on optimizing ays@y chain structure in order to increase
efficiency, reduce overhead and cost-reduce oufymtosolutions. These initiatives include the nagiization and consolidation of third party
manufacturers, distribution facilities and logistjgroviders, direct order fulfillment of additioraloducts, and the consideration of select
vertical integration within our supply chain. Weekdo leverage these opportunities to promote thétable growth of our business.
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Customers and Markets

Our customer base, and the geographic marketswstdnoer segments into which we sell our produatissemvices, have expanded in
recent years. As a result of industry dynamics abeadditional network operators supporting new camigations services and applications
continue to emerge. The network infrastructure seddur customers vary, depending upon their simation, the nature of their end users
and the services that they deliver and supportsélleour product and service solutions throughditect sales force and third party channel
partners to end user network operators in theviatig customer segments:

Communications Service Providers

Our service provider customers include regionaional and international wireline and wireless s, as well as service provider
consortia offering services over submarine netwotkg customers include AAPT, Allstream, AT&T, Aradta Japan Cable, Bell Canada, BT,
Cable & Wireless, CenturyLink, France Telecom, #ap& Cable, Korea Telecom, PLDT, Reliance, SEA-ME-W SingTel, Southern Cross,
Sprint, Tata Communications, Telefonica, TelmexXu$gVerizon, Vimpelcom, Vodafone and XO Commurnimas. Communications service
providers are our historical customer base andmeato represent a significant majority of ouraeue. We provide service providers with
products from the network core to its edge whertwegers gain access. Our service provider solutiddsess growing bandwidth demand ft
multiservice traffic growth and support key servirevider offerings, including carrier-managed s, wide area network (WAN)
consolidation, data center and inter-site connigtiwireless backhaul and business Ethernet sesvic

Cable & Multiservice Operators (MSO)

Our customers include leading cable and multisergjoerators in the U.S. and internationally. Thestomers include Cogeco, Comcast,
Cox, RCN, Rogers and Time Warner. Our cable andisenvice operator customers rely upon us for easgrade, Ethernet transport and
switching products and high-capacity coherent a@ptimnsport to support enterprise-oriented sesviGeir platforms allow cable operators to
integrate voice, video and data applications ovesreverged infrastructure and to scale their natimgrinfrastructure to keep ahead of the
bandwidth and application demands of their subsecsibtOur products support key cable applicationking business Ethernet services,
wireless backhaul, broadcast and digital videoceaiver IP, and video on demand.

Enterprise

Our enterprise customers include large, multi-agitmmercial organizations, including participantsha financial, health care,
transportation, utilities and retail industries.r@olutions enable enterprises to leverage netnes@urces to achieve operational improvem
increased automation and information technology mductions. Our products enable insée connectivity between data centers, saleses]
manufacturing plants, retail stores and researdhdanelopment centers, using an owned or leasedtgriiber network or a carrier-managed
service. Our products facilitate key enterpriseligpfions including IT virtualization, cloud compng, business Ethernet services, business
continuity, online collaboration, video conferergiitow latency networking and WAN encryption. Ouogucts also enable our enterprise
customers to prevent unexpected network downtindesmsure the safety, security and availabilityhefit data.

Internet Content Provider

Our customers include global providers of a divessge of Internet content services and applicat8uth as search, social media, video,
real-time communications and cloud-based offertogsonsumers and enterprises. Our customers regaissive scale, low latency, and
proven reliability and performance to connect esdrs to network resources and to interconnectatitiata centers. Our customers leverage
high-capacity coherent optics, packet switchingomated service provisioning and software-basedartcontrol to deliver flexible, high-
performance connectivity services on demand intaafized network environment.

Government, Research and Education

Our government customers include federal and agg@acies in the U.S. as well as international guvent entities. Our government and
research and education customers seek to taketadeaof technology innovation, improve their infation infrastructure, and facilitate
increased collaboration. Our solutions featureatiigh capacity, reconfigurability and service flglty to meet the requirements of
supercomputing systems. Our solutions offering mri@® network assurance, security and reliabilityleMimproving network performance,
capacity, and flexibility. We collaborate with lead institutions to




Table of Contents

provide government and research and education caoitisaiwith optimized networks that minimize costlacomplexity, through initiatives
that support intelligent control plane technologiaeteroperability and scalability.

Products and Services

Our product portfolio consists of our Packet-Ogtitiansport, Packet-Optical Switching and CarrigrdEnet Solutions products. These
products, together with our unified network managetisoftware, network transformation solutions anpport services offerings, allow us to
offer customers comprehensive solutions to addhesscommunications network priorities.

Packe-Optical Transport

Our Packet-Optical Transport platforms include iftdex, scalable wavelength division multiplexing (\WIpsolutions that add capacity to
core, regional and metro networks and enable désttve and efficient transport of voice, videadagata traffic at high transmission speeds.
We offer scalable Packet-Optical Transport platf@rincluding several chassis sizes and a comprateesst of line cards, that can be utilized
from the customer premises, where space and pawdingted, to the metropolitan/regional core, wdére need for high capacity and carrier-
class performance is essential. By automating alpitifrastructures, our Packet-Optical Transpoodpicts support the efficient delivery of a
wide variety of consumer-oriented network serviessyell as key managed service and enterprisécafiphs. Our Packet-Optical Transport
portfolio includes the following products:

e 6500 PackeB®ptical Platform

e 4200®Advanced Services Platfor

» 5100/5200 Advanced Services Platfc

e Corestream@ugility Optical Transport Syster
e« Common Photonic Layer (CPL); ¢

e 6100 Multiservice Optical Platfori

Our Packet-Optical Transport portfolio, includingr@&500 Packet-Optical Platform, features coherdG and 100G optical transport
technology and our Wavelogic coherent optical pssoes. We are currently shipping our third genenatif these proprietary silicon chips t
facilitate deployment of our transport technologyioexisting customer fiber plant (terrestrial aatbmarine), enable our optical transmission
systems to scale capacity to 40G and 100G, and giditional economic benefits through the reductioelimination of network equipment,
such as amplifiers, regenerators and dispersiorpeasating devices. Our 6500 Packet-Optical Platiaoiudes certain integrated switching
elements addressing market demand for convergeadbriefeatures, functions and layers to drive moteust and cost-effective network
infrastructures. Our Packet-Optical Transport sohg also include our traditional SONET/SDH produand data networking products, as wel
as certain enterprise-oriented transport solutibassupport storage and local area network (LANgm®sion, interconnection of data centers,
and virtual private networks.

Packe-Optical Switching

Our Packet-Optical Switching family of products yides time division multiplexing (TDM) switching drpacket switching capability to
allocate efficiently network capacity and to enatsevice delivery. Our principal Packet-Optical &hing products are our CoreDirector®
Multiservice Optical Switch, our 5430 Reconfiguml8witching System and our OTN configuration far 810 Reconfigurable Switching
System. This product segment includes multiserviudti-protocol switching systems that consoliddue functionality of an add/drop
multiplexer, digital cross-connect and packet slitto a single, high-capacity intelligent switchisystem. These products address both core
and metro segments of communications networks apgost key managed services, including Ethernet/TBxiMate Line and IP services. Our
Packet-Optical Switching solutions include a fanafymulti-terabit reconfigurable switching systethat utilize intelligent mesh networking to
provide resiliency and feature an integrated optioatrol plane to automate the provisioning anddveidth control of high-capacity services.
Our Packet-Optical Switching systems flexibly sup@omix of Carrier Ethernet/MPLS, OTN, WDM, and SBT/SDH switching to facilitate
the transition to a service-enabling infrastructure
Carrier Ethernet Solutions

Our Carrier Ethernet Solutions allow customerstiiize the automation and capacity created by @aket-Optical Transport products in
core and metro networks and to deliver new, revegarerating services to consumers and enterpiisese products have applications from
the edge of metro and core networks, where theyeaate traffic, to the access tiers of networksrertieey can be deployed to support wire
backhaul infrastructures and deliver business sktaces.




Table of Contents

Employing sophisticated Carrier Ethernet switchichnology, these products deliver quality of serdapabilities, virtual local area
networking and switching functions, and carrieregr@perations, administration, and maintenancefest

Our Carrier Ethernet Solutions offering primarilynsists of our 3000 family of service delivery sshigs and service aggregation switches
our 5000 series of service aggregation switches pan Carrier Ethernet configuration for the 54 H0\&e Aggregation Switch. Our service
delivery and packet aggregation switches provideee reliable and feature-rich Ethernet technogfiat can support a wider variety of
services. Service delivery products are often ageistomer premises locations while aggregatiatfgrims are used to combine services to
improve network resource utilization. This segmedeb includes our legacy broadband products thasition voice networks to support IP
telephony, video services and DSL.

Unified Software and Service Management Tools

Our integrated software offering, the Ciena Onévgafe suite, includes OneControl, our integratettvoek management software that
unifies our product portfolio and provides the amédion and management features that enable effiségmice delivery. Our network
management tools offer a comprehensive set of ifumgtfrom monitoring network performance and psauiing the network to full service
level management across a variety of network lagadsdomains. Our Ciena One software suite ibasty service aware framework that
improves network utilization and availability, whitlelivering enhanced performance monitoring atdhidity. By increasing network
automation, minimizing network downtime and moriitgrnetwork performance and service metrics, oftisse tools enable customers to
improve cost effectiveness, while increasing thégsmance and functionality of their network op&as. This software suite also includes
Ciena OnePlanner, a suite of planning tools thit hetwork operators utilize their networks moréagntly, and our ON-Center® Network &
Service Management Suite.

Network Transformation Solutions and Support Ses

To complement our product portfolio, we offer adqaaange of consulting and support services thptdie customers design, optimize,
deploy, manage and maintain their communicationsor&s. We believe that our broad set of serviderofgs is an important component of
our network specialist approach and a significaffieigntiator from our competitors. We believe toat services offering and our close
collaborative engagement with customers provideitis valued insight into network and business ahades faced by our customers, enabling
them to modernize and gain value from their netwofiastructures. Our network transformation saln$ offering enables us to work closely
with our customers in the assessment, plannindogeyent, and transformation of their networks. Véidve that customers place significant
value on the strategic, consultative engagemefasdafd by our services offering, and our abilityprtner with them through services-orientec
solutions that address their network and businesg$

Our services and support portfolio includes théofeing offerings:

* Network transformation solutions, includii
o Network analysis, planning and design;
o Network optimization, modernization and assuraresgises
* Maintenance and support services, incluc
* helpdesk and technical assista
= training:
= spares and logistics managem
= engineering dispatch and siie professional servict
= equipment repair and replacement;
= software maintenance and upde
» Deployment services, including turnkey instadlatand turndp and test services; &
* Project management services, including staging,msiparation and installation support activi

We provide these services using a combinationtefirl resources and qualified third party serpagners.
Product Development

Our industry is subject to rapid technological depenents, evolving service delivery requirementandards and protocols, and shifts in
customer and end user network demand. To remaipetitime, we must continually enhance existing prcicplatforms by adding new featu

and functionality, increasing transmission speetbapacity, and introducing new network solutitiret address multiservice traffic growth
and enable new service offerings. Our researcldamdlopment
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strategy has been to pursue technology convergeugeh allows us to consolidate network featurascfionalities and layers onto a single
platform, helping network operators architect rabtesature-rich networks that reduce required nétvedements and address cost, space and
power limitations. We believe these converged, {gexteration networking solutions promote rapid iserdelivery and allow network
operators to derive business and operational \febne their network infrastructures.

We are investing in our OPArchitecture for designing next-generation netw@kr OP" Architecture, which underpins our solutions
offering and guides our research and developmeatesgly, leverages the convergence of optical ankghtaechnologies to increase network
scale cost effectively, while emphasizing softwanabled programmability, automation and open iat&$. Through this network approach,
we seek to enable high-capacity, configurable siftactures that can be managed and adapted by nkeliewe| applications, and to provide
flexible interfaces for the integration of compugtiand storage resources in a unified network. @uolyrct development initiatives also include
design and development work intended to addressiggoopportunities, such as metropolitan networgligptions, enterprise networking,
cloud infrastructure and packet-based infrastrectmiutions for next-generation, high-capacity reks. To address these opportunities and
realize our network vision, our current developmefiirts are focused upon:

» Extending our leadership in 40G and 100G longttransport, and making metropolitan network aggilons more cost effective for
network operators;

» Continued development of our high-capacity agttcansport technology and our WaveLogic coheogtical processor to further
improve network capacity, transmission speed, sgleefficiency and reach;

» Expanding packet networking capabilities anduess for our high-capacity Ethernet aggregatioitches, for metro and service
aggregation applications, mobile backhaul and lssifEthernet services;

« Enhancing our data-optimized, switching solusiom enable an end-to-end Optical Transport Nety©kN) architecture that offers
improved cost per bit, flexibility and reliability;

» Interoperability and enhancing our control plame integrated network management software phattorenable service level
management across our solutions; and

« Development of network level applications that auite various network functions and support newisernwntroductior

Our research and development efforts are also deéaweard engineering changes intended to driveremktctions across our platforms.

To ensure that our product development investmemdssolutions offering are closely aligned with kedrdemand, we continually seek
input from customers and promote collaboration agnaur product development, marketing and globadi figganizations. In some cases, we
work with third parties pursuant to technology fises, original equipment manufacturer (OEM) arramgygs and other strategic technology
relationships or investments, to develop new coreptsor products, modify existing platforms or ofemplementary technology to our
customers. In addition, we participate in industng standards organizations, where appropriatein@odporate information from these
affiliations throughout the product developmentqass.

We regularly review our existing product offerireysd prospective development projects to deternhieie fit within our portfolio and
broader corporate strategy. We assess the manketrik technology evolution, prospective returnrorestment and growth opportunities, as
well as the costs and resources necessary to geamtbsupport these products. In recent yearsstaategy has been to pursue technology anc
product convergence that allows us to consolidatkipte technologies and functionalities on a singlatform, or to control and manage
multiple elements throughout the network from damih management system, ultimately creating mobeisg integrated and cost-effective
network tools. We have also shifted our strategieetbpment approach from delivering point produetgroviding a focused combination of
networking equipment, software and service solgtibrat address the business and network needs otistomers.

Within our global products group, we maintain anteaf skilled engineers with extensive experiencthaareas of photonics, packet and
circuit switching, network system design, embedaderating system and network management softwanerg3earch and development
expense was $327.6 million , $379.9 million and4s36amillion , for fiscal 2010 , 2011 and 2012 ,pestively. For more information regarding
our research and development expense, see “Manatjeméscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiond Results of Operationst Item 7
of Part Il of this report.

Sales and Marketing
We sell our communications networking solution®tiyh our direct sales resources as well as thretrigtegic channel relationships. In
addition to securing new customers in growth geoigiess and customer market segments, our salesgrags focused on building long-term,

consultative relationships with existing custom&& believe this approach promotes our
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network specialist approach and helps ensure ttperaént of our expertise with the business and agtwequirements of our customers. We
believe this approach also provides opportunitigsarticipate in future projects relating to thentition or expansion of existing network
infrastructures and to cross-sell solutions aconsgortfolio.

Within our global field organization, we maintairdiect sales presence that is organized geogralpharound the following markets: (i)
U.S. and Canada; (ii) Caribbean and Latin Amer(iéd;Europe, Middle East and Africa; and (iv) AsRacific. These regions include sales
personnel that focus on one or more of the follgrMnstomer segments: communications service prowideluding wireless providers, cable
and multiservice operators, enterprise custometggamernment, research and education. Within eaolgrgphic area, we maintain regional,
country and/or customer-specific teams, includimigs management, account salespersons, and systginsers, as well as strategic
marketing, services and commercial management peesonvho ensure we operate closely with and peosithigh level of support to our
customers. We also maintain global sales teamddbas on submarine network opportunities and eingrgustomer segments including
Internet content and cloud infrastructure providers

We also maintain a global channel program that wavrih resellers, systems integrators, serviceigess, and other third party
distributors who market and sell our products amdises. Our third party channel sales and ott&ribution arrangements enable us to reach
additional geographic regions and customer segm#rfesntend to pursue and foster a small numbstrategic channel relationships in an
effort to enable us to sell our products as a cempht to the broader offering of these vendorsitegrators, including, in particular, in supg.
of enterprise-oriented applications and cloud-basedices. We also see opportunities to leveraggetktrategic channel relationships to
address additional customer segments, emergingcapphs for our solutions and growth geograph@s: use of channel partners has been a
key component in our sales to government, researdreducation and enterprise customers. We bdligvstrategy and our use of third party
channels affords us expanded market opportunitidg@duces the financial and operational risk ¢éémg these additional markets.

To support our sales efforts, we engage in marggetetivities intended to position and promote bmih brand and our product, software
and service offerings. Our marketing team suppsatss efforts through direct customer interactiodystry events, public relations, industry
analysts, social media, tradeshows, our websiteotivel marketing channels for our customers andredlgpartners.

Operations and Supply Chain Management

Operations personnel within our global productaugrmanage our relationships with our third partynafacturers and manage our supply
chain. In addition, this team also addresses coemtgorocurement and sourcing, product testing aadity, fulfilment and logistics relating -
our sales, support and professional services, mtiibaition efforts.

We utilize a global sourcing strategy that emplessjzrocurement of materials and product manufajun lower cost regions. Activities
performed by our third party supply partners carude design and prototype development, comporenting, full production, final
assembly, testing and customer order fulfillmene ¥y upon third party contract manufacturershvéicilities in Canada, China, Mexico,
Thailand and the United States, to perform nedtgfahe manufacturing of our products. As a réswke are exposed to risks associated with
the business continuity of these third parties @thér events or conditions affecting the locatiatere their manufacturing occurs. We are
exposed to risks associated with their businesstipes and practices in the markets in which thesrate including the level of corruption or
protection of intellectual property. To addresstomeer concerns and to mitigate the related riskautdbusiness, operations and intellectual
property, we have been reducing our reliance upatract manufacturers and component suppliers inaC4nd are currently transitioning, or
expect to transition in the near-term, the procwetnof certain components and the manufacture ssehebly of our product platforms to
alternate locations.

We are currently utilizing a direct order fulfilmemodel for the sale of certain products, andesmgaged in initiatives to expand this
model to a broader set of products. This modellas to rely on our third party manufacturersédfi@m final system integration and testing
prior to shipment of products from their facilitigsectly to our customers. For certain products,centinue to perform a portion of the system
assembly, software application, final system irdéign and testing internally. We believe that caursing and manufacturing strategy allows
us to conserve capital, lower costs of productssaldjust quickly to changes in market demand,cgraiate without dedicating significant
resources to manufacturing-related plant and egaipri\s part of our effort to optimize our operagpwe continue to focus on driving cost
reductions through sourcing and engineering effoatsonalizing our supply chain and consolidatihigd party contract manufacturers,
distribution sites and service logistics partners.
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Our manufacturers procure components necessaasf@mbly and manufacture of our products basediospecifications, approved
vendor lists, bill of materials and testing andlguatandards. Our manufacturers' activity is lsbse rolling forecasts that we provide to them
to estimate demand for our products. This buildet@cast purchase model exposes us to the rislotiiatustomers will not order those
products for which we have forecast sales, orpulichase less than we have forecast. As a reseiiipaur carrying charges or obsolete mat
charges for components purchased by our manufastihée work closely with our manufacturers to managaterial, quality, cost and delive
times, and we continually evaluate their servicesrisure performance on a reliable and cost-effettsis.

Our products include some components that are jgtapy in nature, only available from one or a dmamber of suppliers, or
manufactured by sole or limited sources responéisiproduction. If component supplies become kajtproduction at a manufacturer is
disrupted, or if we experience difficulty in oulatgonship with a key supplier or manufacturer, way encounter manufacturing delays that
could adversely affect our business.

Backlog

Generally, we make sales pursuant to purchasesigired under framework agreements that govergetheral commercial terms and
conditions of the sale of our products and servi€bsse agreements do not obligate customers thase any minimum or guaranteed order
guantities. Our backlog includes orders for produicht have not been shipped and for serviceshthat not yet been performed. In addition,
backlog also includes orders relating to produtas have been delivered and services that havepgeréormed, but are awaiting customer
acceptance under the applicable purchase term&r&hmn our customers may cancel or change theiersrwith limited advance notice, or tf
may decide not to accept these products and ssnattough both cancellation and non-acceptareamérequent. Orders in backlog may be
fulfilled several quarters following receipt or meslate to multi-year support service obligatioiis.a result, backlog should not be viewed as
an accurate indicator of future revenue in anyipadr period.

Our backlog increased from $714.1 million as ofddetr 31, 2011 to $902.0 million as of October 311,2. Backlog includes product and
service orders from commercial and government coste combined. Backlog at October 31, 2012 inclagigsoximately $140.5 million ,
primarily related to orders for maintenance andosupservices that we do not reasonably expecetfillbd within the next fiscal year. Backl
at October 31, 2011 included approximately $84.lionithat was not expected to be filled withindis 2012. Our presentation of backlog i
not be comparable with figures presented by otherpanies in our industry.

Seasonality

Like other companies in our industry, we have eigmeed quarterly fluctuations in customer activtye to seasonal considerations. We
typically experience reductions in order volume &otvthe end of the calendar year, as the procureeyeles of some of our customers slow
and network deployment activity at service providisrcurtailed. This seasonality in our order flaas result in somewhat weaker revenue
results in the first quarter of our fiscal yeare$h seasonal effects do not apply consistentiydarmbt always correlate to our financial results.
Accordingly, they should not be considered a rédiahdicator of our future revenue or results oéigtions.

Competition

Competition among communications network solutiendors remains intense. The markets in which wepetenare characterized by
rapidly advancing and converging technologiespuhtiction of new network solutions and selling efdp displace incumbent vendors and
secure market share. Successfully competing iretihregkets is based on any one or a combinatiomeofoflowing factors:

» product functionality, speed, capacity, scalabitibd performanc

e price and total cost of ownerst

» incumbency and existing business relations

» ability to offer comprehensive networking solutipnensisting of equipment, software and networksedting service:

« product development plans and the ability te@ldonvergence of network features, functions agdrs and meet customers'
immediate and future network requirements;

« flexibility, including ease of integration, produacteroperability and integrated managernr

« manufacturing and leatitne capability; an

e services and support capabilit
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In this competitive environment, securing new opypaities, particularly in international marketstesf requires that we agree to less favorable
commercial terms or pricing, financial commitmergquiring collateralized performance bonds or simihstruments that place cash resource
at risk, and other onerous contractual commitmgrasplace a disproportionate allocation of risbmphe vendor. These terms can adversely
affect our result of operations.

Competition for sales of communications networlksotutions is dominated by a small number of vergdamultinational companies. C
competitors have included Alcatel-Lucent, Ciscac&son, Fujitsu, Huawei, Juniper Networks, Nokiarséns Networks, and ZTE. Many of
these competitors have substantially greater filadnaperational and marketing resources than Cigigaificantly broader product offerings or
more extensive customer bases. In recent yeargemseamong some of our larger competitors havasified these advantages. We expect
the level of competition, particularly in North Amea, to continue and potentially increase, as €sgnequipment vendors seek to gain entry
into the U.S. market, and other multinational cotitpes seek to retain incumbent positions and ntaskare with large customers in the reg

We expect our competitive landscape to be dynamitetwork technologies and features converge, andors compete to have their
network architectural approaches adopted. As tiiwergence occurs, and networks become more claseéeb virtualized and software-
defined, we expect that we may compete with aduiticnformation technology and software vendorsyal as suppliers of networking
technology traditionally geared toward differentmerk layers or functions. We also continue to cetepwith several smaller, but established,
companies that offer one or more products that eengirectly or indirectly with our offerings or whe products address specific niches w
the markets and customer segments we address. ddvagetitors include ADVA, BTI, Infinera, Tellaba@ Transmode. In addition, there are
a variety of earlier-stage companies with prodtetgeted at specific segments of the communicatiehsorking market. These competitors
often employ aggressive competitive and busineti$aas they seek to gain entry to certain custsrmemarkets. Due to these practices and
the narrower focus of their development effortesthcompetitors may be able to develop and integueducts more quickly, or offer
commercial terms that are more attractive to custam

Patents, Trademarks and Other Intellectual PropertyRights

The success of our business and technology leadesssignificantly dependent upon our proprietand internally developed technology.
We rely upon patents, copyrights, trademarks, eadktsecret laws to establish and maintain pra@sietghts in our technology. We maintai
patent incentive program that seeks to reward iation. We regularly file applications for patentsldhave a significant number of patents in
the United States and other countries where weudmbss. As of December 1, 2012, we had 1,357 patents and 233 pending U.S.
applications. We also have over 415 non-U.S. patent

We also rely on non-disclosure agreements and oti@racts and policies regarding confidentialifjhvemployees, contractors and
customers, to establish proprietary rights andgutdrade secrets and confidential information. @nactice is to require employees and rele
consultants to execute non-disclosure and propyieights agreements upon commencement of employorezonsulting arrangements with
us. These agreements acknowledge our ownershipeatteictual property developed by the individuatidg the course of his or her work with
us. The agreements also require that these pemsaingain the confidentiality of all proprietary armation disclosed to them.

Enforcing proprietary rights, especially patents be costly and uncertain. Moreover, monitoringuthorized use of our technology is
difficult, and we cannot be certain that the stidyag we are taking will detect or prevent unauthediuse. In recent years, we have filed suit to
enforce our intellectual property rights. We halsadeen subject to several claims related to patéimgement, including by competitors and
non-practicing entities or "patent trolls," and deen requested to indemnify customers pursuamrtivactual indemnity obligations relating
to infringement claims made by third parties. ligtefual property infringement assertions could eawsto incur substantial costs, including
legal fees in the defense of these actions. If menat successful in defending these claims, osmess would be adversely affected. For
example, we may be required to enter into a licaiggeement requiring ongoing royalty payments, iredguto redesign our products, or
prohibited from selling any infringing technology.

Our operating system, element and network managesoftvare and other products incorporate softveaie components under licenses
from third parties. We may be required to licendditonal technology from third parties in orderdevelop new products or product
enhancements. Failure to obtain or maintain suemn$ies or other rights could affect our developraffotts, require us to re-engineer our
products or obtain alternate technologies.

In connection with our acquisition of substantialyof the optical networking and Carrier Etherassets of Nortel's Metro Ethernet
Networks business (the "MEN Acquisition"), we ob&il a no-exclusive license to use patents and other irtelée property controlled or
exclusively owned by Nortel in connection with soanufacture, sale and support of a broad rangetafab networking and Carrier Ethernet
products and services and natural evolutions di puoducts and services.
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This license also provides us with an exclusiverlge to use a narrower set of patents and otleleictual property owned by Nortel in
connection with Ciena's manufacture, sale and stuppoptical networking and Carrier Ethernet produand services within a narrower field
of use and subject to certain limitations. As jéuthis license, we granted Nortel a nexelusive license to use the patents and othdidoteal
property (except trademarks) that we acquired asgfdghe MEN Business in connection with the mamtiire and sale of products and serv
in the fields of Nortel's other businesses (inahgdihose businesses sold and to be sold to otheg)aand natural evolutions of such fields.

Environmental Matters

Our business and operations are subject to enviatahlaws in various jurisdictions around the wpihcluding the Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment (WEEE) and Restriction of e of Certain Hazardous Substances in ElectrighEdectronic Equipment (RoHS)
regulations adopted by the European Union. We &eekgerate our business in compliance with sucls lalating to the materials and content
of our products and product takeback and recyclmyironmental regulation is increasing, particiylamutside of the United States, and we
expect that our domestic and international opemnatinay be subject to additional environmental c@angke requirements, which could expose
us to additional costs. To date, our compliancéscedating to environmental regulations have lestitted in a material cost or effect on our
business, results of operations or financial caomalit

Employees

As of October 31, 2012 , we had 4,481 employeeshéve not experienced any work stoppages, and n&der the relationships with our
employees to be good. Competition to attract atadrrdnighly skilled technical, engineering and athersonnel with experience in our industry
is intense. We believe that our future successrpm critical part on our continued ability t@reit, motivate and retain such qualified
personnel.
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Directors and Executive Officers

The table below sets forth certain information @ng our directors and executive officers:

Name Age Position

Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.D. 69 Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors

Gary B. Smith 52 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Stephen B. Alexander 53 Senior Vice President, Chief Technology Officer

Rick Dodd 43 Senior Vice President, Global Marketing

James A. Frodsham 4€ Senior Vice President, Chief Strategy Officer
Francois Locoh-Donou 41  Senior Vice President, Global Products Group
Philippe Morin 47  Senior Vice President, Global Field Organization
James E. Moylan, Jr. 61 Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Finar@féiter
Andrew C. Petrik 49  Vice President and Controller

David M. Rothenstein 44  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar
Harvey B. Cash (1)(3) 74 Director

Bruce L. Claflin (1)(2) 61 Director

Lawton W. Fitt (2) 5¢ Director

Judith M. O'Brien (1)(3) 62 Director

Michael J. Rowny (2) 62 Director

Patrick T. Gallagher (2) 57 Director

(1) Member of the Compensation Commi

(2) Member of the Audit Committ:

) Member of the Governance and Nominations Comn

Our Directors hold staggered terms of office, @rgiras follows: Ms. Fitt, Dr. Nettles and Mr. Rowimy2013; Ms. O’'Brien and Messrs.
Cash and Smith in 2014; and Messrs. Claflin anda@hér in 2015.

Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.Dhas served as a Director of Ciena since April 18&%d as Executive Chairman of the Board of Directorse
May 2001. From October 2000 to May 2001, Dr. Nsttieas Chairman of the Board and Chief Executivéc®ffof Ciena, and he was Presic
and Chief Executive Officer from April 1994 to Obter 2000. Dr. Nettles serves as a Trustee for Hidothia Institute of Technology and
serves on the board of directors of Axcelis Techgigs, Inc. and The Progressive Corporation. Dttld&also serves on the board of director:
of Optiwind Corp, a privately held company, and phesviously served on the board of directors of #igger, Inc., formerly known as Carrius
Technologies, Inc.

Gary B. Smithjoined Ciena in 1997 and has served as Presidenthief Executive Officer since May 2001. Mr. Sniiths served on
Ciena’s Board of Directors since October 2000. Rachis current role, his positions with Cienalimed Chief Operating Officer, and Senior
Vice President, Worldwide Sales. Mr. Smith previguserved as Vice President of Sales and Markdon$NTELSAT and Cray
Communications, Inc. Mr. Smith also serves on thart of directors for Avaya Inc. and CommVault 8yss$, Inc. Mr. Smith is a member of
the President’s National Security Telecommunicatiddvisory Committee, the Global Information Infrasture Commission and the Center
for Corporate Innovation (CClI).

Stephen B. Alexandejoined Ciena in 1994 and has served as Chief Téobp®fficer since September 1998 and as a Serime V
President since January 2000. Mr. Alexander hadqusly served as General Manager of Products &elogy and General Manager of
Transport and Switching and Data Networking.

Rick Doddhas served as Ciena's Senior Vice President, GMageting since December 2010 and is responsidsl€fena’s product,
solutions and corporate marketing organizationshiirole, he provides strategic support to Ciemgobal field organization and global
products groups. Mr. Dodd previously worked atriafia Corporation from September 2003 to Decemb#® 20d served in roles including
Vice President of Product Marketing and Vice Prestdf Corporate Marketing. Mr. Dodd previouslyvest as Associate Partner at venture
capital firm Kleiner, Perkins, Caufield and Byerslaas Ciena's Director, Strategic Marketing.
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James A. Frodshanjoined Ciena in May 2004 and has served as Sena# Rresident and Chief Strategy Officer since M&@10 with
responsibility for our strategic planning and cogie development activities. In August 2010, Modsham also assumed responsibility for thi
integration of the MEN Business, which was substéigtcompleted in fiscal 2011. Mr. Frodsham preusty served as Senior Vice President,
General Manager of Ciena’s former Broadband AcGrssip from October 2004 to October 2005 and Meti EBnterprise Solutions Group
from May 2004 to October 2004. From August 2000&nuary 2003, Mr. Frodsham served as chief operafiicer of Innovance Networks,
optical networking company. On December 23, 2008pVance filed a Notice of Intent to make a proppsasuant to Part Ill of the
Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada). Prior @t tiMr. Frodsham was employed for more than temsy@esenior level positions with
Nortel Networks in product development and marlgttrategy, lastly as Vice President, Product IMaketing, Optical Networking Grou,
from December 1998 to June 2000. Mr. Frodsham sewmehe board of directors of Innovance Networks.

Francois Locoh-Donouhas served as Ciena's Senior Vice President, GRibalucts Group since August 2011. In this capabity Locoh-
Donou leads Ciena’s engineering, supply chain, yecbline management, quality/customer advocacysahdations interpretation organizations
on a global basis. Mr. Locoh-Donou joined Ciend&irgust 2002 and served as Ciena’s Vice PresidehGameral Manager, EMEA from June
2005 to August 2011.

Philippe Morin joined Ciena in March 2010 in connection with Cisrecquisition of Nortes MEN Business and has served as Senior
President, Global Field Organization since Aug@t1? where he is responsible for leading Cienadbajl sales and services organizations.
From March 2010 to August 2011, Mr. Morin servedCasna's Senior Vice President, Global Productau@rér. Morin previously served as
President of Nortel's MEN Business from May 200@iludiena’s completion of the MEN Acquisition in Mzh 2010. In January 2009, Nortel
Networks Corporation and certain of its subsid&fiked voluntary petitions in the United StateslenChapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Ci
From January 2003 to May 2006, Mr. Morin held tlsifion of Nortel's General Manager of Optical Netlks. Mr. Morin previously held
other positions at Nortel in manufacturing, mankegtisales and product management both in North fsamend Europe.

James E. Moylan, Jrhas served as Senior Vice President, Finance ared Elhancial Officer since December 2007. FromeJ2806 to
December 2007, Mr. Moylan served as Executive Wiesident and Chief Financial Officer of Swett &a@ford, a wholesale insurance
broker.

Andrew C. Petrikjoined Ciena in 1996 and has served as Vice Pmasi@entroller since August 1997 and served assStnes from
August 1997 to October 2008.

David M. Rothensteijoined Ciena in January 2001 and has served asiS¢éite President, General Counsel and Secretapgsi
November 2008. Mr. Rothenstein served as Vice &easiand Associate General Counsel from July 26@ctober 2008 and previously
Assistant General Counsel.

Harvey B. Cashhas served as a Director of Ciena since April 1884.Cash is a general partner of InterWest Pastreewenture capital
firm in Menlo Park, California, which he joined 1985. Mr. Cash serves on the board of directofsrst Acceptance Corp., Silicon
Laboratories, Inc. and Argonaut Group, Inc. andgrasiously served on the boards of directors dfé2hnologies, Inc., Voyence, Inc. and
Staktek Holdings, Inc.

Bruce L. Claflin has served as a Director of Ciena since August.2d06Claflin served as President and Chief Exeeu®fficer of 3Com
Corporation from January 2001 until his retiremienfEebruary 2006. Mr. Claflin joined 3Com as Presidand Chief Operating Officer in
August 1998. Prior to 3Com, Mr. Claflin served &nidr Vice President and General Manager, Saledvamketing, for Digital Equipment
Corporation. Mr. Claflin also worked for 22 yeatdBM, where he held various sales, marketing amth&agement positions, including general
manager of IBM PC Company’s worldwide research @exklopment, product and brand management, asawellesident of IBM PC
Company Americas. Mr. Claflin also serves on tharbdf directors of Advanced Micro Devices (AMD) &k he is currently Chairman of the
Board.

Lawton W. Fitthas served as a Director of Ciena since Novemb@d.Z&rom October 2002 to March 2005, Ms. Fitt seérag Director of
the Royal Academy of Arts in London. From 1979 ttd@er 2002, Ms. Fitt was an investment banker @ithdman Sachs & Co., where she
was a partner from 1994 to October 2002, and a giagalirector from 1996 to October 2002. In additto her service as a director of non-
profit organizations, Ms. Fitt currently servestbe board of directors of Thomson Reuters, They@afroup L.P., and The Progressive
Corporation, and has previously served on the bohdirectors of Overture Acquisition CorporatiomdaFrontier Communications Company.

Judith M. O'Brien has served as a Director of Ciena since July 280@e November 2012, Ms. O'Brien has served astagraand head
of the Emerging Company Practice Group at the law 6f King & Spalding. From November 2006 throughcember 2010, Ms. O'Brien
served as Executive Vice President and General &&bwh Obopay, Inc., a provider of mobile paymenwvies. From February 2001 until
October 2006, Ms. O'Brien served as a Managingddireat Incubic Venture Fund, a venture capitahfiMs. O’Brien was a lawyer with
Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, where, from Fedmu1984 to February 2001, she was a partner dizénipin corporate finance, mergers
and acquisitions and general corporate matters(MBrien has previously served on the board ofctlines of Adaptec, Inc.
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Michael J. Rownyhas served as a Director of Ciena since August.2d04Rowny has been Chairman of Rowny Capitaliiaape equity
firm, since 1999. From 1994 to 1999, and previofislyn 1983 to 1986, Mr. Rowny was with MClI Commuations in positions including
President and Chief Executive Officer of MCI's Imtational Ventures, Alliances and Correspondentigracting Chief Financial Officer,
Senior Vice President of Finance, and Treasurer Rdwny'’s career in business and government hasiradtuded positions as Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Ransohoff Companyjef Executive Officer of Hermitage Holding Compaiikecutive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of ICF Kaiser Internationéic., Vice President of the Bendix Corporationgd ®eputy Staff Director of the White
House. Mr. Rowny also serves on the board of diresatf Neustar, Inc. and Pixspan, Inc. and hasigusly served on the boards of director
Llamagraphics, Inc. and Step 9 Software Corporation

Patrick T. Gallagherhas served as a Director of Ciena since May 20@gmMarch 2008 until March 2012, Mr. Gallagher v@&sirman
of Ubiquisys Ltd., a leading developer and supplieiemtocells for the global 3G mobile wirelessrke. From January 2008 until February
2009, Mr. Gallagher was Chairman of Macro 4 plglabal software solutions company, and from May@&Q#til March 2008, served as Vice
Chairman of Golden Telecom Inc., a leading faeiitbased provider of integrated communicationsussia and the CIS. From 2003 until
2006, Mr. Gallagher was Executive Vice Chairman seied as Chief Executive Officer of FLAG Telec@moup and, prior to that role, held
various senior management positions at British date Mr. Gallagher also serves on the boards ettbrs of Harmonic Inc. and Sollers JSC.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our securities involves a high degoégsk. In addition to the other information coim&d in this report, you should consider
the following risk factors before investing in @aecurities.

Our revenue and operating results can fluctuate sigficantly and unpredictably from quarter to quarter.

Our revenue and results of operations can fluctsigtgficantly and unpredictably from quarter toager. Our budgeted expense levels
depend in part on our expectations of ldagn, future revenue and gross margin, and sulstaetluctions in expense are difficult and care
time to implement. Uncertainty or lack of visibjlinto customer spending, and changes in economitaoket conditions that affect customer
spending can make it difficult to forecast futueeenue and margins. In addition, increases in éhegmtage of a given quarter's revenue
relating to orders placed during that quarter, ghaith significant order volume late that quartsould further result in variability and less
predictability in our quarterly revenue. Conseqlygrdur level of operating expense or inventory rbayhigh relative to revenue, which could
harm our profitability and cash flow. Additionalctars that contribute to fluctuations in our reverund operating results include:

* broader macroeconomic conditions, including weakresl volatility in global markets, affecting owstomers
« changes in capital spending by large communicatengice provider

« order flow and backlog leve

» the timing of our ability to recognize revenue aies

« the mix of revenue by product segment, geograplycastomer in any particular quar

» the level of competition and pricing pressure weoemter

» seasonal effects in our busint

» the level of startyp costs we incur to support initial deploymentEngiew customers or enter new markets
» our level of success in improving manufacturingoéghcies and achieving cost reductions in our guplpain

Quarterly fluctuations from these and other factoey cause our results of operations to fall sbbar significantly exceed the expectations of
securities analysts or investors, which may cawoatility in our stock price.

We face intense competition that could hurt our s&s and results of operations.

We face a competitive market for sales of commuitna networking equipment, software and servicegsiacreased competition could
result in pricing pressure, reduced demand, lowesgmargins and the loss of market share thatdwrim our business and results of
operations. Competition is particularly intensenv@sand our competitors aggressively seek to disglaaumbent equipment vendors at large
service providers and secure new customers. Irifart ® secure customer opportunities and captuaeket share, we have in the past, and
may in the future, agree to onerous commercialdeynpricing that result in low or negative grossrgins on a particular order or group of
orders. We expect the level of competition we fiaceontinue and potentially increase, particulamlyhe U.S., as larger Chinese equipment
vendors such as Huawei seek to gain market enthy#rer global competitors seek to retain incumipasitions with customers in the region.

Competition in our markets, generally, is base@yone or a combination of the following factgysce; product features; functionality
and performance; service offering; manufacturingatslity and lead-times; incumbency and existingibess relationships; scalability; and the
flexibility of products to meet the immediate andure network and service requirements of custorfessnall number of very large
companies have dominated our industry, many of whave substantially greater financial and markget@sources, broader product offerings
and more established relationships with serviceigess and other customer segments than we dalditian, a number of these vendors are
putting forth competing visions for how next-gerigma network architectures should be designed. Bseaf their scale and resources, they
may be perceived to be a better fit for the procumet, or network operating and management, stegagfilarge service providers. We also
compete with a number of smaller companies thatigeosignificant competition for a specific produapplication, customer segment or
geographic market. Due to the narrower focus df @fforts, these competitors may achieve commeasiailability of their products more
quickly or may be more attractive to customersolinpetitive pressures increase or we fail to compatcessfully in our markets, our busines
and results of operations would suffer.

Our business and operating results could be advenseaffected by unfavorable changes in macroeconomand market conditions and
reductions in the level of capital expenditure by gstomers in response to these conditions.

Global markets have experienced a period of sicanifi volatility that has resulted in a high degséancertainty and cautious customer
behavior. Broad macroeconomic weakness and maokatility have previously resulted in sustainedipes
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of decreased demand for our products and senlie¢ive adversely affected our operating resotistinuation of or an increase in
macroeconomic weakness could result in:

» reductions in customer spending and delay, deferrahncellation of network infrastructure initias

« difficulty forecasting, budgeting and planni

» increased competition for fewer network projectd aales opportunitie

* increased pricing pressure that may adversely tafé@enue, gross margin and profitabil

» higher overhead costs as a percentage of re\

» tightening of credit markets to fund capital expé&umes by our customers and

» customer financial difficulty, including longeollection cycles and difficulties collecting acacs receivable or write-offs of
receivables; and

* increased risk of charges relating to excessonsdlete inventories and the wrid#-of other intangible asse

Our business and operating results could be miyeaidversely affected by reduced customer spenitimgsponse to unfavorable or
uncertain macroeconomic and market conditions,alplor specific to a particular region where weergie.

A small number of large communications service praders account for a significant portion of our revenue and the loss of any of these
customers, or a significant reduction in their speding, would have a material adverse effect on ourusiness and results of operations.

A significant portion of our revenue is concentcagenong a few, large global communications serpio®iders. By way of example,
AT&T accounted for approximately 13.5% of fiscall20revenue and our largest ten customers contdii#e?% of fiscal 2012 revenue.
Consequently, our financial results are closelyalated with the spending of a relatively small tn@mof service provider customers and can
be significantly affected by market or industry eas that affect their businesses. These factorinclude consumer and enterprise spending
on communication services, macroeconomic volafitie adoption of new communications products amdises, the emergence of competing
network operators and changing demands of endcus#éomers. Because the terms of our frame contgactsrally do not include any
minimum purchase commitment and spending by thexséce providers can be unpredictable and sporadicrevenue and operating results
can fluctuate on a quarterly basis. Reliance upeagively small number of service providers irases our exposure to changes in the net
and purchasing strategies. Some of our customerguasuing efforts to outsource the managemenbpadhtion of their networks, or have
indicated a procurement strategy to reduce the eumivendors from which they purchase equipmehtclvmay benefit our larger
competitors. Our concentration in revenue has asmd in the past as a result of consolidation anaamgmber of our largest customers.
Consolidation may increase the likelihood of tengppror indefinite reductions in customer spendingleanges in network strategy that could
harm our business and operating results. The fogseoor more of our large service provider custane significant reduction in their
spending, or market or industry factors adverséhcting service providers generally, would haveaterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our reliance upon third party contract manufacturers exposes us to risks that could negatively affeatir business and operations.

We rely upon third party contract manufacturerpedorm substantially all of the manufacturing of @roducts and a significant portion
of our component sourcing. We do not have guardrgapply of components or access to manufacturdpgaity, and in some cases are
utilizing temporary or transitional commercial arggments. Our reliance upon third party manufacsureuld expose us to increased risks
related to lead times, continuity of supply, ondigelivery, quality assurance, and compliance eftiironmental standards and other
regulations. Reliance upon third party manufactiexposes us to significant risks related to thpérations, financial position, business
continuity, sourcing relationships and labor relaships, that may affect their servicing of Ciemeuding their continued viability. Our prodi
manufacturing principally takes place in Mexicon@da, China and Thailand. Significant disruptionthiese and other countries where our
products or key components are manufactured, imgudatural disasters, epidemics, acts of warmotism, social or political unrest or work
stoppages, could affect the cost, availability lmcation of supply and manufacturing capacity aedatively affect our business and results o
operations.

In an effort to drive cost reductions and furthptimize Ciena's operations, we are working to ralize our supply chain, consolidate
third party contract manufacturers and distribufiacilities and transition to alternative manufaitg locations. We are also actively pursuing
additional opportunities for direct fulfillment pfoducts from our manufacturers to our customengse transitions are complex and there car
be no assurance that these efforts, including eajocation of third party manufacturing and songgior our changes in fulfillment, will not
ultimately result in additional costs or disruptian our operations and business that affect ault®of operations.

19




Table of Contents

Our reliance upon third party component suppliers,including sole and limited source suppliers, exposeour business to additional risk
and could limit our sales, increase our costs andalnm our customer relationships.

We maintain a global sourcing strategy and depenithiod party suppliers for our product componerd subsystems. Our products
include key optical and electronic components faich reliable, high-volume supply is often avaikabinly from sole or limited sources.
Increases in market demand or scarcity of resowrcesmnufacturing capability have previously resdlin shortages in availability of import
components for our solutions, allocation challergyed increased lead times. We are exposed tonasding to unfavorable economic
conditions or other similar challenges affecting businesses of our component providers that daatdheir liquidity levels, ability to contin
to invest in their business, and manufacturing bdipa This could expose our business to increasests, lack of supply or discontinuation of
components that can result in lost revenue, additiproduct costs, increased lead times and demoydelays that could harm our business
and customer relationships. We do not have anyagee of supply from these third parties, and ited® cases are relying upon temporary or
transitional commercial arrangements. As a rethate is no assurance that we will be able to settie components or subsystems that we
require in sufficient quantity and quality on reaable terms. The loss of a source of supply, dt tdeufficient availability of key componen
could require that we locate an alternate sourecedssign our products, each of which could inaeas costs and negatively affect our
product gross margin and results of operations.lDainess and results of operations would be negptaffected if we were to experience any
significant disruption or difficulties with key splers affecting the price, quality, availability timely delivery of required components.

Investment of research and development resources aommunications networking technologies for whichhere is not a matching
market opportunity, or failure to sufficiently or t imely invest in technologies for which there is madet demand, would adversely affect
our revenue and profitability.

The market for communications networking equipniemharacterized by rapidly evolving technologied ahanges in market demand.
We continually invest in research and developmesustain or enhance our existing products andlolews acquire new product technologi
Our current development efforts are focused updraecing our software applications, extending oue@annect control plane across the 5
and 6500 platform families, expanding packet appidms on service delivery switches, aggregatioitckes, and packet-optical transport
platforms, extending our WavelLogic chipset, enap40G and 100G coherent optical transport acrospantfolio, and introducing 400G
transmission products. There is often a lengthjopdretween commencing these development initiatared bringing a new or improved
products to market. During this time, technologgfprences, customer demand and the market forrodupts, or those introduced by our
competitors, may move in directions we had notcipdited. There is no guarantee that our new predurotnhancements will achieve market
acceptance or that the timing of market adoptidhbwei as predicted. There is a significant posiihitherefore, that some of our development
decisions, including significant expenditures oguasitions, research and development costs, ostments in technologies, will not turn out
anticipated, and that our investment in some ptsjetll be unprofitable. There is also a possipititat we may miss a market opportunity
because we failed to invest, or invested too lata,technology, product or enhancement soughtupyostomers, or addressing growth mai
or emerging customer segments or applications legantraditional customer base. Changes in makdetand or investment priorities may
also cause us to discontinue existing or plannedldpment for new products or features, which caveta disruptive effect on our
relationships with customers. If we fail to make tight investments or fail to make them at thétigme, our competitive position may suffer
and our revenue and profitability could be harmed.

We may experience delays in the development of oproducts that may negatively affect our competitiveposition and business.

Our products are based on complex technology, @andam experience unanticipated delays in develogitgmanufacturing these
solutions. Our current development efforts are $ecliupon enhancing our software applications, ektgrour OneConnect control plane
across the 5400 and 6500 platform families, expangdacket applications on service delivery switclaggregation switches, and packet-
optical transport platforms, extending our Wavelcagichipset for 40G and 100G coherent optical frartsacross our portfolio, and
introducing 400G transmission products. Delays$iase and other product development may affectequtation with customers, affect our
ability to seize market opportunities and impaet timing and level of demand for our products. Estelp in the development life cycle of our
products presents serious risks of failure, revavrielay, any one of which could adversely affbet ¢ost-effective and timely development of
our products. We may encounter delays relatingigpreering development activities and softwareigihesourcing and manufacture of criti
components, and the development of prototypesddiitian, intellectual property disputes, failureasitical design elements, and other
execution risks may delay or even prevent the sel@d these products. If we do not successfullyeltgyproducts in a timely manner, our
competitive position may suffer and our busineissrfcial condition and results of operations wdugdharmed.
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Product performance problems and undetected erroraffecting the performance, reliability or security of our products could damage
our business reputation and negatively affect ouresults of operations.

The development and production of sophisticatedware and software for communications network emeipt is complicated. Some of
our products can be fully tested only when deplapecbmmunications networks or when carrying t@affith other equipment. As a result,
undetected defects or errors, and product quatitgroperability, reliability and performance prebis are often more acute for initial
deployments of new products and product enhancemm¥fe are in the process of launching a numbeewf platforms across our product
segments. Unanticipated product performance prabl=an relate to the design, manufacturing andliagta of our products. Undetected
errors can also arise as a result of defects irpooents, software or manufacturing, installatiomaintenance services supplied by third
parties, and technology acquired from or licensgthibd parties. Unanticipated security vulneratgh relating to our products or the activities
of our supply chain, including any actual or pevedi exposure of our solutions to malicious softwareyber-attacks, would adversely affect
our business and reputation. Product performasediahility, security and quality problems can négaly affect our business, including:

» damage to our reputation, declining sales and araecellation:

» increased costs to remediate defects or replachipts

« payment of liquidated damages, contractual or sinienalties, or other claims for performance fauor delay:

* increased warranty expense or estimates regutim higher failure rates, additional field seeviobligations or other rework costs
related to defects;

* increased inventory obsolescet

e costs and claims that may not be covered by lighbilisurance coverage or recoverable from thirdigsran

» delays in recognizing revenue or collecting accsueteivable

These and other consequences relating to undetectad affecting the quality, reliability and seitpiof our products could negatively affect
our business and results of operations.

Network equipment sales to large communications seice providers often involve lengthy sales cyclesd protracted contract
negotiations and may require us to assume commer¢ig@rms or conditions that negatively affect pricirg, risk allocation, payment and
the timing of revenue recognition.

A significant portion of our revenue comes fromesaio large communications service providers. Thabes typically involve lengthy sa
cycles, extensive product testing, and demonstraddiboratory or network certification, includingtmerk-specific or region-specific product
certification or homologation processes. Thesessallo often involve protracted and sometimesadiifficontract negotiations in which we r
deem it necessary to agree to unfavorable conathaticommercial terms that adversely affect pgeiexpose us to penalties for delays or nor
performance, and require us to assume a dispropaté amount of risk. We may also be requestedadge deferred payment terms, vendor
or third-party financing, or offer other alternaipurchase structures that extend the timing ofryesy and revenue recognition. These terms
may negatively affect our revenue and results efajions and increase our susceptibility to quigrterctuations in our results. Service
providers may ultimately insist upon terms and ¢tols that we deem too onerous or not in our bestest. Moreover, our purchase
agreements generally do not include minimum pureltasmitments and customers often have the rigimadify, delay, reduce or cancel
previous orders. As a result, we may incur substbexpense and devote time and resources to paiteates opportunities that never
materialize or result in lower than anticipatecesal

Efforts by us or our strategic third party channel partners to sell our solutions into targeted geognahic markets and customer segment
may be unsuccessful.

We continue to take steps, including sales initetiand strategic channel relationships, to selpoaducts into new markets, growth
geographies and diverse customer segments beyorrdhditional service provider customer base. Sppadly, we are targeting opportunities
Brazil, the Middle East, Russia, Japan and India.ai¢ also targeting sales opportunities with enisss, wireless operators, cable operators,
submarine network operators, Internet content plergi, cloud infrastructure providers, researcheahetation institutions, and federal, state
and local governments. We believe sales to thesemer segments, as well as emerging network apsratipporting new communications
services and applications, will be an important ponent of our growth strategy. In many cases, we fess experience in these markets and
customer segments and they may have less famjiliaith our company. To succeed in some of thesggghic markets and customer
segments we intend to leverage strategic salesielmand distribution arrangements and expect tledaonships to be an important part of
our business. Our efforts may be unsuccessfuldéfidulties selling into these target markets,liting through third party channels, could
limit our growth and harm our results of operations
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The international scale of our operations exposessuo additional risk and expense that could adversgaffect our results of operations.

We market, sell and service our products globally gely upon a global supply chain for sourcing amant components and
manufacturing of our products. Our internationatigpions are subject to inherent risks, including:

» the impact of economic conditions in countries mi&tshe United State

» effects of changes in currency exchange r

« greater difficulty in collecting accounts receivalaind longer collection perio

« difficulty and cost of staffing and managing foneigperation:

» less protection for intellectual property rightssime countrie

» adverse tax and customs consequences, parlycatarelated to transfgricing issue

» social, political and economic instabili

» higher incidence of corruption or unethical busipsactices that could expose us to liability andge our reputatio

» trade protection measures, export complianceestic preference procurement requirements, qeatiéin to transact business and
additional regulatory requirements; and

* natural disasters, epidemics and acts of war oorism

We expect that we may enter new markets and withéh@m or reduce operations in others. Our glolparations expose us to additional risk
and expense that could give rise to unanticipagdilities, costs or other difficulties that cowddversely affect our operations and financial
results.

We may be required to write off significant amountsof inventory as a result of our inventory purchaseractices, the obsolescence of
product lines or unfavorable market conditions.

To avoid delays and meet customer demand for shaeterery terms, we place orders with our contraenufacturers and component
suppliers based in part on forecasts of custommiadd. As a result, our business is exposed taskehat our customers ultimately may not
order the products we have forecast, or will pusehf@wer products than forecast. As features amctifinalities converge across our product
lines, and we introduce new products with overlaggeature sets, it is increasingly possible thata@mers may forgo purchases of one pra
we have inventoried in favor of another productwgiimilar functionality. Market uncertainty can@lémit our visibility into customer
spending plans and compound the difficulty of fating inventory at appropriate levels. Moreover, @istomer purchase agreements
generally do not include any minimum purchase cament, and customers often have the right to modégtuce or cancel purchase
guantities. We may also be exposed to the rishwdntory write offs as a result of certain supgigio initiatives, including consolidation and
transfer of key manufacturing activities As a reswk may purchase inventory in anticipation oesahat ultimately do not occur. If we are
required to write off or write down a significarthaunt of inventory, our results of operations fog period would be materially adversely
affected.

Our intellectual property rights may be difficult and costly to enforce.

We generally rely on a combination of patents, cighys, trademarks and trade secret laws to establid maintain proprietary rights in
our products and technology. Although we have bgsuired numerous patents and other patent apphesatie currently pending, there can be
no assurance that any of these patents or othpriptary rights will not be challenged, invalidat@dcircumvented or that our rights will
provide us with any competitive advantage. In addijtthere can be no assurance that patents widldoed from pending applications or that
claims allowed on any patents will be sufficiertipad to protect our technology. Further, the lafvsome foreign countries may not protect
our proprietary rights to the same extent as ddas of the United States.

We are subject to the risk that third parties mi#gmapt to access, divert or use our intellectuapprty without authorization. Protecting
against the unauthorized use of our products, wolgg and other proprietary rights is difficulty@-consuming and expensive, and we canno
be certain that the steps that we are taking wélent or minimize the risks of such unauthorized. Witigation may be necessary to enforce o
defend our intellectual property rights or to detire the validity or scope of the proprietary rigbf others. Such litigation could result in
substantial cost and diversion of management timerasources, and there can be no assurance thetlwbtain a successful result. Any
inability to protect and enforce our intellectuabperty rights, despite our efforts, could harm abitity to compete effectively.

We may incur significant costs in response to claimby others that we infringe their intellectual prgperty rights.

From time to time third parties may assert claimitiate litigation or other proceedings relatedpatent, copyright, trademark and other
intellectual property rights to technologies anldited standards that are relevant to our busiffémsrate of patent infringement assertions botl
by operating entities and third party non-practjcamtities (sometimes referred to as “patent thoisincreasing, particularly in the United
States and Canada. We can be adversely affectiihyion, other
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proceedings or claims against us, as well as omufaaturers, suppliers or customers, alleging mgieiment of third party proprietary rights by
our products and technology, or components of tiposducts. Regardless of the merit of these claiihes, can be time-consuming, divert the
time and attention of our technical and managerpergonnel, and result in costly litigation. Thekergs, if successful, can require us to:

e pay substantial damages or royal

« comply with an injunction or other court order tisatld prevent us from offering certain of our puots

» seek alicense for the use of certain intelleghwaperty, which may not be available on commergiedhsonable terms or at
« develop nonnfringing technology, which could require signdiat effort and expense and ultimately may not leeessful; an
« indemnify our customers pursuant to contractualaltions and pay expense or damages on their k

Any of these events could adversely affect ourrmss, results of operations and financial condit@ur exposure to risks associated with the
use of intellectual property may be increased &salt of acquisitions, as we have a lower levelisibility into the development process with
respect to such technology or the steps takenfégsard against the risks of infringing the rigbtghird parties.

Our failure to manage effectively our relationshipswith third party service partners could adverselyimpact our financial results and
relationship with customers.

We rely on a number of third party service partnbosh domestic and international, to complemenmtgbobal service and support
resources. We rely upon these partners for ceriatallation, maintenance and support function@rtier to ensure the proper installation and
maintenance of our products, we must identifyntemd certify qualified service partners. Certifiea can be costly and time-consuming, and
our partners often provide similar services foreotbompanies, including our competitors. We mayh@oable to manage effectively our
relationships with our service partners and cabeatertain that they will be able to deliver seegién the manner or time required. We may
also be exposed to liability relating to the pamfiance of our service partners. If our service gaistiare unsuccessful in delivering services:

* we may suffer delays in recognizing revel
* our services revenue and gross margin may be aglyeffected; an
» our relationship with customers could sul

If we do not manage effectively our relationshiggwhird party service partners, or they fail ®riprm these services in the manner or time
required, our financial results and relationshighveiustomers could be adversely affected.

We may be exposed to unanticipated risks and addinal obligations in connection with our resale of @amplementary products or
technology of other companies.

We have entered into agreements with strategiclgyggptners that permit us to distribute their prois or technology. We may rely upon
these relationships to add complementary produdisctinologies, diversify our product portfolio,address a particular customer or
geographic market. We may enter into additionalinal equipment manufacturer (OEM), resale or sinskrategic arrangements in the future
including in support of our selection as a domaippy partner with AT&T. We may incur unanticipateadsts or difficulties relating to our
resale of third party products. Our third partyatEinships could expose us to risks associatedthittbusiness, financial condition, intellectual
property rights and supply chain continuity of spelitners, as well as delays in their developrmaatufacturing or delivery of products or
technology. We may also be required by customeassame warranty, indemnity, service and other ceraial obligations, including potent
liability to customers, greater than the commitnseiftany, made to us by our technology partnessaé&of our strategic supply partners are
relatively small companies with limited financialsources. If they are unable to satisfy their @ians to us or our customers, we may have t
expend our own resources to satisfy these obligstiBxposure to these risks could harm our refutatith key customers and negatively
affect our business and our results of operations.

Our exposure to the credit risks of our customersad resellers may make it difficult to collect recaiables and could adversely affect oL
revenue and operating results.

In the course of our sales to customers and rebalenel partners, we may have difficulty collectiegeivables and our business and
results of operations could be exposed to risksciated with uncollectible accounts. Lack of ligtydn the capital markets, macroeconomic
weakness and market volatility may increase oupnsue to these credit risks. Our attempts to mottitese situations carefully and take
appropriate measures to protect ourselves mayenstifficient, and it is possible that we may havertite down or write off accounts
receivable. Such write-downs or write-offs couldjatvely affect our
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operating results for the period in which they aceund, if large, could have a material adverseatfbn our revenue and operating results.

Our business is dependent upon the proper functiong of our internal business processes and informath systems and modification or
interruption of such systems may disrupt our busines, processes and internal controls.

We rely upon a number of internal business proseasd information systems to support key businasstions and the efficient operation
of these processes and systems is critical to asinbss. Our business processes and informatidensgsieed to be sufficiently scalable to
support the growth of our business and may regnadifications or upgrades that expose us to a nuwib@perational risks. We are currently
pursuing initiatives to transform and optimize business operations through the reengineeringrtdingorocesses, investment in automation
and engagement of strategic partners or resouscEsstst with certain business functions. Thesagémmay be costly and disruptive to our
operations, and could impose substantial demanasaoragement time. These changes may also reqainges in our information systems,
modification of internal control procedures andhdfigant training of employees or third party resms. Our information technology systems,
and those of third party providers, may also beestdble to damage or disruption caused by circurastabeyond our control. These include
catastrophic events, power anomalies or outagésrataisasters, computer system or network faluv@uses or malware, physical or
electronic break-ins, unauthorized access and eafbacks affecting our systems or those of thindyplausiness partners. Any material
disruption, malfunction or similar challenges withr business processes or information systemdsnrgdions or challenges relating to the
transition to new processes, systems or providerdd have a material adverse effect on the omerati our business and our results of
operations.

Data breaches and cyber-attacks could compromise pintellectual property or other sensitive information and cause significant
damage to our business and reputation.

In the ordinary course of our business, we mairgaimsitive data on our networks, including ourliattual property and proprietary or
confidential business information relating to ousimess and that of our customers and businessepsriThe secure maintenance of this
information is critical to our business and repotatWe believe that companies in the technologhgtry have been increasingly subject to a
wide variety of security incidents, cyber-attacksl @ther attempts to gain unauthorized accessn@work and storage applications may be
subject to unauthorized access by hackers or bedadtre to operator error, malfeasance or otheesydisruptions. In some cases, it is diffi
to anticipate or immediately detect such incidemts the damage caused thereby. These data breathasy unauthorized access or disclc
of our information, could compromise our intellemtproperty and expose sensitive business infooma€yber-attacks could also cause us to
incur significant remediation costs, disrupt kegibess operations and divert attention of managearehkey information technology
resources. These incidents could also subject lishitity, expose us to significant expense, angmsignificant harm to our reputation.

Outstanding indebtedness under our convertible notemay adversely affect our liquidity and results obperations and could limit our
business.

At October 31, 2012 , indebtedness on our outstancnvertible notes totaled approximately $1.4dwilin aggregate principal, including
approximately $216.0 million in convertible notést mature in May 2013. Our indebtedness could rapertant negative consequences,
including:

» increasing our vulnerability to adverse economid sxalustry condition:

» limiting our ability to obtain additional financingarticularly in unfavorable capital and creditriet conditions

» incurrence of debt service and repayment obligattbat reduce the availability of cash resourcesfloer business purpos
» limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the market

» placing us at a possible competitive disadvantagmmpetitors that have better access to capialrees

On August 13, 2012, we entered into a $150 milienior secured asset-based revolving Credit Radifitaddition to customary remedies
should we default under the credit agreement ganverhis facility, we may be subject to lender cohbver certain cash assets and required t
comply with a fixed charge coverage ratio in thergvhat we do not maintain the requisite levedwdilability under the facility. The credit
agreement also contains customary covenants thiatdur ability to, among other things, pay castidknds, incur debt, create liens and
encumbrances, redeem or repurchase stock, ergagdrtain acquisition transactions, repay indetgsdnmake investments or dispose of
assets. The Credit Facility matures on August 0352 provided that it will mature early on (i) Jamp 31, 2013, if any of Ciena's 0.25% seniol
convertible notes due May 1, 2013 are then out#tgrahd Ciena is unable to meet certain finanaiédiga with respect to its cash position at
that time, or (ii) December 15, 2014, if any of @& 4.00% senior convertible notes due March @55 2re then outstanding. We
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may also enter into additional transactions or ilegdiacilities, including equipment loans, workiogpital lines of credit and other long-term
debt, that may increase our indebtedness and iasadditional restrictions upon our business.

Significant volatility and uncertainty in the capital markets may limit our access to funding.

We have accessed the capital markets in the pdsumtessfully raised funds, through the issuaheguaity or convertible debt, to
increase our cash position, support our operatonsundertake strategic growth initiatives, inchgdihe acquisition of the MEN Business. We
regularly evaluate our liquidity position, debt iglaltions, and anticipated cash needs to fund awg-term operating plans and may consider
raising additional capital in the future. Globapital markets have undergone a sustained peris@oificant volatility and uncertainty, and
there can be no assurance that such financingnattees would be available to us, should we deteentinecessary or advisable to seek
additional cash resources.

Facilities transitions could be disruptive to our gerations and result in unanticipated expense.

We have recently undertaken and expect to undeaakenber of significant facilities transitionsedfing a number of our largest
employee populations, including our headquartesitia In November 2011, we entered into a leasedur new corporate headquarters in
Hanover, Maryland. While we have transitioned derédfected employees and operations, includingrkepagement and administration
resources, to this new facility, we do not expeatdmplete the transition of all affected persoraral functions until early 2013. This transit
could be disruptive to our operations and couldltés unanticipated expense that adversely affeatsinancial results. In addition, the lease
of our “Lab 10" building on the Carling Campus iitt&va, Canada will expire in fiscal 2016 and theskefor our research and development
facility in Gurgaon, India will expire in fiscal 2@. Both locations include sophisticated reseanthdevelopment lab equipment and key
engineering personnel, and our Ottawa facilityus largest facility globally. We are currently cafexing facilities and development
alternatives in advance of the expiration of tHesses. However, locating appropriate alternatpazs for our engineering operations may be
costly and there can be no assurance that thetioansf key engineering functions to a successaility will not be disruptive, or adversely
affect productivity.

Restructuring activities could disrupt our businessand affect our results of operations.

We have previously taken steps, including redustiarforce, office closures, and internal reorgatians to reduce the size and cost of
operations, improve efficiencies, or realign ouganization and staffing to better match our madggtortunities and our technology
development initiatives. We may take similar stepihe future as we seek to realize operating gji@sy optimize our operations to achieve
target operating model and profitability objectivesbetter reflect changes in the strategic dineodf our business. These changes could be
disruptive to our business and may result in sigaift expense including accounting charges forritwy and technology-related write-offs,
workforce reduction costs and charges relatingtwsolidation of excess facilities. Substantial exgeeor charges resulting from restructuring
activities could adversely affect our results oéi@giions in the period in which we take such aghar

If we are unable to attract and retain qualified pesonnel, we may be unable to manage our businessestively.

Competition to attract and retain highly skilledhaical, engineering and other personnel with @gpee in our industry is intense, and
employees have been the subject of targeted Hignmur competitors. We may experience difficultiareing and motivating existing
employees and attracting qualified personnel t&éy positions. Because we rely upon equity awasda significant component of
compensation, particularly for our executive teartack of positive performance in our stock priegluced grant levels, or changes to our
compensation program may adversely affect ourtgtidi attract and retain key employees. The losa@ihbers of our management team or
other key personnel could be disruptive to ouresss, and, were it necessary, it could be diffimuleplace members of our management tea
or other key personnel. In addition, none of owrrive officers is bound by an employment agredrfograny specific term. If we are unable
to attract and retain qualified personnel, we maybable to manage our business effectively, andperations and results of operations ci
suffer.

We may be adversely affected by fluctuations in cuency exchange rates.

As a global concern, we face exposure to adverse&ments in foreign currency exchange rates. Histtlyi, our sales were primarily
denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result of ouréased global presence, a larger percentage eéwvenue and operating expense are now no
U.S. dollar denominated and therefore subject teidm currency fluctuation. We face exposure toanry exchange rates as a result of the
growth in our non-U.S. dollar denominated opera@mgense in Canada, Europe, Asia and Latin Amelfican time to time, we may hedge
against currency exposure associated with antipfatreign currency cash flows. There can be noraase that any hedging instruments will
be effective, and losses associated with thesmimsints and the adverse effect of foreign currexchange rate fluctuation may negatively
affect our results of operations.
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Our products incorporate software and other technobgy under license from third parties and our busines would be adversely affected
if this technology were no longer available to usrocommercially reasonable terms.

We integrate third-party software and other techgglinto our embedded operating system, networkagament system tools and other
products. Licenses for this technology may not\aglable or continue to be available to us on comuiadly reasonable terms. Third party
licensors may insist on unreasonable financialtbeioterms in connection with our use of such tetbgy. Difficulties with third party
technology licensors could result in terminatiorso€h licenses, which may result in significantts@nd require us to obtain or develop a
substitute technology. Difficulty obtaining and migiining third-party technology licenses may dismdgvelopment of our products and
increase our costs.

Strategic acquisitions and investments may expose to increased costs and unexpected liabilities.

We may acquire or make investments in other tedgytompanies, or enter into other strategic mtethips, to expand the markets we
address, diversify our customer base or acquieecelerate the development of technology or pradda do so, we may use cash, issue e
that would dilute our current stockholders' owngrsbr incur debt or assume indebtedness. Themeactions involve numerous risks,
including:

e significant integration cos:

< disruption due to the integration and rational@atdf operations, products, technologies and pewed(

< diversion of management's attent

- difficulty completing projects of the acquiredmpany and costs related topmecess project

e the loss of key employe!

< ineffective internal controls over financial repog;

« dependence on unfamiliar suppliers or manufacty

e exposure to unanticipated liabilities, includinggifectual property infringement claims; ¢

« adverse tax or accounting effects including dimation expense related to intangible assets hadyes associated with impairment
of goodwill.

As a result of these and other risks, our acquoissti investments or strategic transactions mayeaagt the intended benefits and may ultimately
have a negative impact on our business, resultp@fation and financial condition.

Changes in government regulation affecting the comuomications industry and the businesses of our custrers could harm our prospect:
and operating results.

The Federal Communications Commission, or FCCjuragliction over the U.S. communications indusind similar agencies have
jurisdiction over the communication industries ther countries. Many of our largest customers abgest to the rules and regulations of th
agencies. Changes in regulatory requirements aigdido wireline or wireless communications andlttternet in the United States or other
countries could serve as a disincentive to progideinvest in their communications network infrastures or introduce new services. These
changes could adversely affect the sale of ourymsdand services. Changes in regulatory tariffiiregnents or other regulations relating to
pricing or terms of carriage on communications reks could slow the development or expansion ofvogk infrastructures and adversely
affect our business, operating results, and firemzindition.

Governmental regulations affecting the use, imporor export of products could adversely affect our oprations, and negatively affect
our revenue and increase our costs.

The United States and various foreign governmeasige imposed controls, license requirements and ogisérictions on the usage, import
or export of some of the technologies that we €lvernmental regulation of usage, import or expbdur products, technology within our
products, or our failure to obtain required appte¥ar our products, could harm our internationadl @omestic sales and adversely affect our
revenue and costs of sales. Failure to comply suitth regulations could result in enforcement astifines or penalties and restrictions on
export privileges. In addition, costly tariffs onreequipment, restrictions on importation, tradet@ction measures and domestic preference
requirements of certain countries could limit oocess to these markets and harm our sales. Fopéxamdia's government has recently
implemented and is considering additional secusgtyulations applicable to network equipment vendansl has imposed significant tariffs that
may inhibit sales of certain communications equiptimcluding equipment manufactured in China, vehegrtain of our products are
assembled. These and other regulations could adyexfect the sale or use of our products, sulbisténincrease our cost of sales and could
adversely affect our business and revenue.
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Governmental regulations related to the environmentaind potential climate change, could adversely affé our business and operating
results.

Our operations are regulated under various fedstate, local and international laws relating ® émvironment and potential climate
change. We could incur fines, costs related to dgema property or personal injury, and costs reléeinvestigation or remediation activities,
if we were to violate or become liable under thiases or regulations. Our product design effortg] Hre manufacturing of our products, are
also subject to evolving requirements relatingh presence of certain materials or substancesgriagquipment, including regulations that
make producers for such products financially resfime for the collection, treatment and recyclirigertain products. For example, our
operations and financial results may be negatiaéiscted by environmental regulations, such adiaste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
(WEEE) and Restriction of the Use of Certain HamasdSubstances in Electrical and Electronic EquiprtiRoHS) that have been adopted by
the European Union. Compliance with these and ameihvironmental regulations may increase our @bdesigning, manufacturing, selling
and removing our products. These regulations mey ralake it difficult to obtain supply of compliasimponents or require us to write off non
compliant inventory, which could have an adverdectfour business and operating results.

We may be required to write down long-lived assetand these impairment charges would adversely affectur operating results.

As of October 31, 2012, our balance sheet incl$d&8.3 million in long-lived assets, which inclsde257.1 million of intangible assets.
Valuation of our long-lived assets requires us akenassumptions about future sales prices andaall@ses for our products. These
assumptions are used to forecast future, undisedwsash flows. Given the significant uncertaintg arstability of macroeconomic conditions
in recent periods, forecasting future businessfiedlt and subject to modification. If actual nkat conditions differ or our forecasts change,
we may be required to reassess long-lived assdtsaund record an impairment charge. Any impairnaarge relating to long-lived assets
would have the effect of decreasing our earninga@easing our losses in such period. If we ageired to take a substantial impairment
charge, our operating results could be materialiyeasely affected in such period.

Failure to maintain effective internal controls ove financial reporting could have a material adverseeffect on our business, operatir
results and stock price.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 meguihat we include in our annual report a reponta@ining management's assessment
of the effectiveness of our internal controls dfiieancial reporting as of the end of our fiscal yaad a statement as to whether or not such
internal controls are effective. Compliance witbdh requirements has resulted in, and is likebotdginue to result in, significant costs and the
commitment of time and operational resources. Caafgour business, including certain initiativegransform business processes, invest in
information systems or transition certain functiemshird party resources or providers, will neé@és modifications to our internal control
systems, processes and information systems astimizgour business and operations. Our increakszhboperations and expansion into 1
regions could pose additional challenges to oarir@l control systems. We cannot be certain thatowent design for internal control over
financial reporting, or any additional changes émiade, will be sufficient to enable managemeuetermine that our internal controls are
effective for any period, or on an ongoing badisve are unable to assert that our internal costookr financial reporting are effective, market
perception of our financial condition and the traglprice of our stock may be adversely affected, arstomer perception of our business may
suffer.

Our stock price is volatile.

Our common stock price has experienced substamtatility in the past and may remain volatile fretfuture. Volatility in our stock price
can arise as a result of a number of the fact@isudsed in this “Risk Factors” section. Duringdis2012, our closing stock price ranged fror
high of $17.98 per share to a low of $10.38 pereshBhe stock market has experienced significaoe@nd volume fluctuations that have
affected the market price of many technology conmgmmwith such volatility often unrelated to thecogiting performance of these companies.
Divergence between our actual or anticipated firmesults and published expectations of analyatscause significant swings in our stock
price. Our stock price can also be affected by anoements that we, our competitors, or our custermary make, particularly announcements
related to acquisitions or other significant trastigans. Our common stock is included in a numbeanafket indices and any change in the
composition of these indices to exclude our compaoyld adversely affect our stock price. Thesedia;tas well as conditions affecting the
general economy or financial markets, may matgrediversely affect the market price of our commitmelsin the future.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

Overview. As of October 31, 2012, all of our properties rased and we do not own any real property. \A&eléacilities globally related
to the ongoing operations of our four business sggsmand related functions. Our principal execubffiees are located in two buildings in
Hanover, Maryland. In addition, we currently occdme buildings at various sites in Linthicum, Mé&mgd, including an engineering facility,
two supply chain and logistics facilities, and tadministrative and sales facilities, though we Wwélvacating three of these buildings in the
first half of fiscal 2013.

Our largest facility is our research and developneenter located at “Lab 1@h the former Nortel Carling Campus in Ottawa, @ndge
below for information regarding the lease assodiat#h this engineering facility. We also have eragring and/or service facilities located in
San Jose, California; Alpharetta, Georgia; Spok#veshington; Kanata, Canada; and Gurgaon, Indiadétition, we lease various smaller
offices in the United States, Mexico, South AmeriEarope, the Middle East and Asia-Pacific to suppar sales and services operations. We
believe the facilities we are now using are adegjaat suitable for our business requirements.

Hanover, Maryland Headquarters Leas€iena entered into a lease agreement dated Nare3n2011, with W2007 RDG Realty, L.L.C.
relating to office space for its new corporate ltpedters in Hanover, Maryland, consisting of areagrupon rentable area of approximately
154,100 square feet. At the commencement datenithienal rental commitments to be paid over they&ss lease term are approximately $i
million.

Carling, Ottawa LeaseUpon the completion of the MEN Acquisition, Cie@anada Inc., a subsidiary of Ciena, entered inéase
agreement with Nortel Networks Technology Corp.afidlord”) relating to the “Lab 10" building on Netts Carling Campus in Ottawa,
Canada (the “Carling lease”). This facility consief a rentable area of 265,000 square feet foclwvie incur lease expense of approximately
$7.2 million CAD per year, consisting of both baset and fixed additional operating expense, ttted@f which increases at 2% per year. The
Carling lease initially had a ten-year term, subjean early termination feature that allowed Mbtb reduce the term of the lease in exchang
for its payment of an early termination fee of a$83.5 million. During the first quarter of fisc011, Ciena received both notice of early
termination from Nortel shortening the Carling leas five years and the corresponding $33.5 miléarly termination payment.

Restructuring We attempt to sublease properties that we nceloagcupy. As part of our restructuring costs, wevigle for the
estimated cost of the future net lease expensiége facilities. The cost is based on the faealf future minimum lease payments under
contractual obligations offset by the fair valuettud estimated future sublease payments that werecajve. As of October 31, 2012 , our
accrued restructuring liability related to theseparties was $3.6 million . If actual market coiatis relating to the use of these facilities are
less favorable than those projected by manageradditjonal restructuring costs associated withétfasilities may be required. For additional
information regarding our lease obligations, se&eNxi to the Consolidated Financial Statementteim B of Part Il of this annual report.
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding

On July 29, 2011, Cheetah Omni LLC filed a comglairthe United States District Court for the EastBistrict of Texas against Ciena
and several other defendants, alleging, among ¢hirays, that certain of the parties' productsimgfe upon multiple U.S. Patents relating to
certain reconfigurable optical add-drop multiple@OADM) technologies. The complaint seeks injuetielief and damages. On November
8, 2011, Ciena filed an answer and counterclain@heetah Omni's amended complaint. The partieswarently engaged in discovery. Ciena
believes that it has valid defenses to the lawasuitintends to defend it vigorously.

On May 29, 2008, Graywire, LLC filed a complainttire United States District Court for the North&istrict of Georgia against Ciena
and four other defendants, alleging, among otHag#) that certain of the parties' products infeéng S. Patent 6,542,673 (the “'673 Patent”),
relating to an identifier system and component®ofuiical assemblies. The complaint seeks injunatlief and damages. In July 2009, upon
request of Ciena and certain other defendantd)i8ePatent and Trademark Office (“PTQ”") grantesl defendants' inter partes application for
reexamination with respect to certain claims of'@¥8 Patent, and the district court granted tHertkants' motion to stay the case pending
reexamination of all of the patents-in-suit. In Betber 2010, the PTO confirmed the validity of satams and rejected the validity of other
claims of the '673 Patent, to which Ciena and otleéendants filed an appeal. On March 16, 2012P{® on appeal rejected multiple claims
of the '673 Patent, including the two claims onahhCiena is alleged to infringe. Subsequently platiff requested a reopening of the
prosecution of the '673 Patent, to which Cienathedther defendants filed an opposition. The casently remains stayed, and there can be
no assurance as to whether or when the stay wiiftbd.

In addition to the matters described above, wesabect to various legal proceedings and clainsragiin the ordinary course of our
business, including claims against third partied thay involve a contractual indemnification obtiga on the part of Ciena. We do not expect
that the ultimate costs to resolve these mattdtdrawe a material effect on our results of operagi financial position or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.
PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters ansusr Purchases of Equity Securities

(a) Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Gld&elect Market under the symbol “CIEN.” The follmgitable sets forth the high
and low sales prices of our common stock, as regarh the NASDAQ Global Select Market, for the disperiods indicated.

High Low

Fiscal Year 2011

First Quarter ended January 31 $ 25.4¢  $ 13.5¢

Second Quarter ended April 30 $ 28.81 $ 22.0:

Third Quarter ended July 31 $ 2791 $ 15.4¢

Fourth Quarter ended October 31 $ 14.8: $ 10.2¢
Fiscal Year 2012

First Quarter ended January 31 $ 1532 % 10.3¢

Second Quarter ended April 30 $ 17.1¢ $ 13.4¢

Third Quarter ended July 31 $ 16.81 % 11.4¢

Fourth Quarter ended October 31 $ 17.9¢ $ 12.15

As of December 13, 2012, there were approximat8#yt®lders of record of our common stock and 10D@&36 shares of common stock
outstanding. We have never paid cash dividendsuocapital stock. We intend to retain earningsu®e in our business, and we do not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the forasksefuture.

The following graph shows a comparison of cumutatital returns for an investment in our commouwlstthe NASDAQ
Telecommunications Index and the NASDAQ Compositiek from October 31, 2007 to October 31, 2012e NASDAQ
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Composite Index measures all domestic and intemaltbased common stocks listed on The Nasdaqg $tacket. The NASDAQ
Telecommunications Index contains securities of BA®-listed companies classified according to theuktry Classification Benchmark as
Telecommunications and Telecommunications Equipmimy include providers of fixed-line and mobiephone services, and makers and
distributors of high-technology communication protu This graph is not deemed to be “filed” witle BEC or subject to the liabilities of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884l the graph shall not be deemed to be incorpbtateeference into any prior or
subsequent filing by us under the Securities A&983 or the Exchange Act.
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(b) Not applicable.
(c) Not applicable.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial De

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with Item 7, “Managei's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” #meConsolidated Financial Statements and the nioéesto included in Item 8, “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Datde have a 52 or 53 week fiscal year, which endtherBaturday nearest to the last day of Octobeadt
year. For purposes of financial statement presentatéach fiscal year is described as having eode@ctober 31. Fiscal 2008, 2009, 2010
2011 consisted of 52 weeks and fiscal 2012 combiEt&3 weeks.

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Long-term investments

Total assets

Short-term convertible notes payable
Long-term convertible notes payable
Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity (deficit)

Year Ended October 31,

(in thousands)

31

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
$ 550,66¢ $ 485,70 $ 688,68° $ 541,89¢ $ 642,44
$ 366,33t $ 563,18! $ — $ — $ 50,05}
$ 156,17. $ 8,031 $ — 50,26¢ $ =
$ 2,02459 $ 1,504,38 $ 2,118,090 $ 195141 $ 1,881,114
$ — 3 — 3 — 8 — $ 216,21
$ 798,000 $ 798,000 $ 1,442,700 $ 1,44236. $ 1,225,800
$ 1,025,664 $ 1,04854' $ 1,958,800 $ 1,93754! $ 1,970,111
$ 998,94¢ $ 455,83t % 159,297 % 13,87 $ (88,979)
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Statement of Operations Data:

Year Ended October 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Revenue $ 902,44¢ $ 652,62¢ $ 1,236,631 $ 1,74197 $ 1,833,992
Cost of goods sold 451,52: 367,79¢ 739,13! 1,032,82. 1,109,69'
Gross profit 450,92° 284,83( 497,50: 709,14t 724,22:
Operating expenses:
Research and development 175,02: 190,31¢ 327,62t 379,86: 364,17¢
Selling and marketing 152,01t 134,52 193,51! 251,99( 266,33t
General and administrative 68,63¢ 47,50¢ 102,69: 126,24 114,00:
Acquisition and integration costs — — 101,37¢ 42,08¢ —
Amortization of intangible assets 32,26¢ 24,82t 99,40: 69,66¢ 51,69"
Restructuring costs 1,11¢ 11,20° 8,51« 5,781 7,85¢
Goodwill impairment — 455,67: — — —
Change in fair value of contingent consideration — — (13,807 (3,289 —
Total operating expenses 429,05 864,06 819,32( 872,33¢ 804,07(
Income (loss) from operations 21,87: (579,23) (321,819 (163,199 (79,84¢)
Interest and other income (loss), net 36,76: 9,48 3,917 6,022 (15,200
Interest expense (12,927 (7,406 (18,619 (37,926 (39,659
Realized loss due to impairment of marketable debt
investments (5,109 — — — —
Gain (loss) on cost method investments — (5,329 — 7,24¢ —
Gain on extinguishment of debt 932 — 4,94¢ — —
Income (loss) before income taxes 41,53¢ (582,479 (331,579 (187,849 (134,699
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 2,64 (1,329 1,941 7,67 9,32:
Net income (loss) $ 38,89: $ (581,15) $ (333,519 $ (19552) $ (144,02)
Basic net income (loss) per common share $ 044 $ (6.37) % (3.5¢) % (2.09 $ (2.45)
Diluted net income (loss) per potential common ehar $ 04z $ (6.3 $ (3.5¢9) $ (209 $ (1.45)
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding 89,14¢ 91,16’ 93,10: 95,85« 99,34:
Weighted average dilutive potential common shares
outstanding 110,60! 91,16" 93,10: 95,85« 99,34:
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ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

This report contains statements that discuss fuewents or expectations, projections of resultopérations or financial conditio
changes in the markets for our products and sesyioe other “forward-looking” information. Our “foward-looking” information is based ¢
various factors and was derived using numerousrapsions. In some cases, you can identify thesevdod-looking statementdiy words liki
“may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “antic ipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “intends,” “potential” or “continue” or the
negative of those words and other comparable words. should be aware that these statements ongctefur current predictions and belie
These statements are subject to known and unknigks, uncertainties and other factors, and actuadrds or results may differ materia
Important factors that could cause our actual résub be materially different from the forwelooking statements are disclosed throug|
this report, particularly under the heading “Risla€tors” in Item 1A of Part | of this annual report. You shibreview these risk factors fo
more complete understanding of the risks associaf#idl an investment in our securities. We undertageobligation to revise or update ¢
forward-looking statements. The following discussion andlysis should be read in conjunction with ouélected Consolidated Financ
Data” and consolidated financial statements and noteséto included elsewhere in this annual report.

” ou ” ou " ou ” " ou ” ou

Overview

We are a provider of equipment, software and sesvibat support the transport, switching, aggregatnd management of voice, video
and data traffic on communications networks. OwkeaOptical Transport , Packet-Optical Switchimgl &arrier-Ethernet Solutions products
are used, individually or as part of an integrageldition, in communications networks operated byyise providers, cable operators,
governments, enterprises, research and educastitutions and other network operators around theeg We are a network specialist focusec
on solutions that enable converged, next-generatiohnitectures, optimized to handle a broader rhhigh-bandwidth communications
services. Our products allow network operatorsalescapacity and increase transmission speedseaffy allocate network traffic, and
deliver services to business and consumer end.i@arsetwork solutions also include our integraf#ena One software suite that provides
network management capabilities that unify our pagbortfolio and provide automation and managerfeatures that enable efficient service
delivery. To complement our hardware and softwamfplio, we offer a broad range of consulting augport services that help our customer:
design, optimize, deploy, manage and maintain teimmunications networks. We believe that the ¢logkaborative engagement with
customers enabled by our services offering is gromant component of our network specialist appncad a significant differentiator with
customers.

Our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, annual repontg&orm 10-K and current reports on Form 8-K filgth the SEC are available through
the SEC's website at www.sec.gov or free of chargeur website as soon as reasonably practicalelevaé file these documents. We routir
post the reports above, recent news and annountgnfieancial results and other important inforraatabout Ciena on the "Investors" page o
our website at www.ciena.com

Market Opportunity and Strate(

We believe that a number of underlying drivershi@a marketplace represent lotegm opportunities for our business, and we expesh tc
result in growing demand for next-generation nelirgg solutions in our target markets. We beliewa tharket trends, including the
proliferation of smartphones, tablets and simikwides running mobile web applications, the pravedeof video applications, and the shift of
enterprise and consumer applications to cloud-base&iftualized network environments, are indicatdf increasing use and dependence by
consumers and enterprises upon a growing varietygbfbandwidth applications and services. We ekfiext these services will continue to
add significant multiservice network traffic, reqng our customers to continue to invest in highamity network infrastructures that are more
robust, programmable and efficient. These dynawmilgs continue to drive demand for convergence tfioik features, functions and layers.
Our strategy to capitalize on these market dynampicsnote operational efficiency and drive profiagrowth of our business includes the
corporate initiatives set forth in the "Strategybsection of the description of our business uiiden 1 of Part | of this annual report above.

Global Market Conditions and Competitive Landscape
We believe that the market opportunity describeavabtogether with multiservice traffic growth, @héving a shift in network priorities
and spending toward high-capacity, next-generatetwork architectures. However, during fiscal 2012 market experienced a challenging

environment including declining growth rates insg@g on in the markets addressed by our packétaptetworking solutions. We believe
that this reflects the macroeconomic conditions @mpetitive landscape encountered in our markenhguhe year.
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The sustained period of macroeconomic uncertaimtivalatility in the global economy and in capitarkets has resulted in a high deg
of uncertainty and cautious customer behavior midustry and markets. These dynamics, particuiarEurope, have resulted and may
continue to result in lower levels of capital exgigare on communications network infrastructuren@itions in our markets have also resulted
in protracted sales cycles, lengthier network d@plents and revenue recognition delays. Broad maormamic weakness has previously
resulted in periods of decreased demand for owdymts and services that have adversely affectedesuits of operations. We remain
uncertain as to how long current macroeconomiciaddstry conditions will persist and the magnitudehe effect of these conditions on the
growth of our markets and business, as well agesults of operations.

We also continue to encounter a highly competitarketplace, particularly within our Packet-Opti¢ahnsport segment, where we and
our competitors have introduced new, high-capabigh-speed network solutions and have aggresssalght to capture market share. In this
competitive environment, securing new opportunjtsticularly in international markets, often regs that we agree to less favorable initial
pricing, commercial terms that can elongate themere recognition cycle, startup costs to operalipmaur solutions in customer networks,
financial commitments or performance bonds thateleash resources at risk, and other onerous ctudiaommitments that place a
disproportionate allocation of risk upon the venddrese terms can adversely affect our resultpefations and contribute to fluctuations in
our results. We expect the competitive landscapert@in challenging and dynamic as we and our ctitopeintroduce new, competing
platforms, as networking technologies or featu@s/erge, and as competitors seek customer adopftireir network architectural
approaches. See the "Competition" section of ItehBasiness," in Part | of this annual report fasna information regarding our competitive
landscape. We expect the level of competition t@iooe and potentially increase, particularly inrtioAmerica, as Chinese equipment vent
seek to gain entry into the U.S. market, and ottngtinational competitors seek to retain incumbmgitions with large customers in the
region.

Financial Results for Fourth Quarter of Fiscal 20

Revenue for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 w4855 million , representing a sequential decredd4e8% from $474.1 million in the
third quarter of fiscal 2012 . Revenue-related itketaflecting sequential changes from the thirdrer of fiscal 2012 include:

*  Product revenue for the fourth quarter of fis2@12 decreased by $10.2 million , primarily refieg a decrease in Packet-Optical
Switching revenue of $17.3 million and a decredsk9al million in Packet-Optical Transport reventibese decreases were offset by
an increase of $16.6 million in sales of Carrielndfhet Solutions .

»  Service revenue for the fourth quarter of fis2@l12 increased by $1.7 million

* Revenue from the United States for the fourthrtgr of fiscal 2012 was $249.5 million , an ineefrom $237.3 million in the third
quarter of fiscal 2012 .

* International revenue for the fourth quartefisfal 2012 was $216.0 million , a decrease froi8652 million in the third quarter of
fiscal 2012 .

» As a percentage of revenue, international regemas 46.4% during the fourth quarter of fiscal204 decrease from 49.9% during
the third quarter of fiscal 2012 .

»  For the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 , one oustr accounted for greater than 10% of revenueesepting 11.3% of total revenue.
There were no customers that accounted for grédzarl0% revenue in the third quarter of fiscal201

Gross margin for the fourth quarter of fiscal 20&s 41.3% , an increase from 38.2% in the thirdtguaf fiscal 2012 . Gross margin for
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 benefited frof@aaorable mix within our Packet-Optical Transp@tenue, including an increased
concentration of line cards for our 6500 PacketicypPlatform, and improved margin relating to @aftware and Services, Packet-Optical
Switching and Carrier-Ethernet Solutions segments.

Operating expense was $214.1 million for the fogmhrter of fiscal 2012 , an increase from $196il6an in the third quarter of fiscal
2012 . Increased operating expense for the fowrdntgr described below, reflects, in part, theatfté an additional week during the fiscal
period, as compared to the third quarter of fiHl2. See Note 1 to our Consolidated Financiak8tants in Item 8 of Part Il of this annual
report describing our 53-week fiscal year for fi2@12. Fourth quarter operating expense reflettinerease of $8.6 million in selling and
marketing expense, primarily due to increased b&iaompensation resulting from increased ordev,fland product demonstration costs.
Fourth quarter operating expense also reflectaeease of $7.5 million in research and developregpénse relating to employee
compensation and prototype activity, and a $1.8ianiincrease in general and administrative expehseto employee compensation.
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In spite of margin improvement in the fourth quadgfiscal 2012 , our lower revenue and increaseerating expense described above
resulted in a loss from operations for the fourtlarger of fiscal 2012 of $21.9 million , as comphte a $15.3 million loss from operations
during the third quarter of fiscal 2012 . Our ratd for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 was $38ifion , or $0.39 per share. This compares t
a net loss of $29.8 million or $0.30 per share tierthird quarter of fiscal 2012 .

We generated $10.6 million in cash from operatidusng the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 , consigtof $23.7 million provided by net
losses adjusted for non-cash charges partiallyeblg a $13.1 million use of cash related to changevorking capital. This compares with
$23.1 million provided by cash from operations dgrthe third quarter of fiscal 2012 , consistings@f..9 million from net losses adjusted for
non-cash charges and $1.2 million in cash proviledhanges in working capital.

As of October 31, 2012 , we had $642.4 million skt and cash equivalents and $50.1 million of sieom investments in U.S. treasury
securities. This compares to $617.2 million in cast cash equivalents and $50.1 million of sharitevestments in U.S. treasury securities
at July 31, 2012 . As of October 31, 2011 , we $41.9 million in cash and cash equivalents and360llion of long-term investments in
U.S. treasury securities.

As of October 31, 2012 , headcount was 4,481 namease from 4,463 as of July 31, 2012 and anaser&om 4,339 and 4,201 at
October 31, 2011 and 2010 , respectively.
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Consolidated Results of Operations

We report our results of operations based on thewWing operating segments:

» Packe-Optical Transport includes optical transport solutions that incresestsvork capacity and enable more rapid deliverst of
broader mix of high-bandwidth services. These pctalare used by network operators to facilitatecths effective and efficient
transport of voice, video and data traffic in casgional, metro and access networks. Ciena's Bayiical Transport products
support the efficient delivery of a wide varietyafnsumer-oriented network services, as well askayaged service and enterprise
applications. Ciena's principal products in thigreent include the 6500 Packet-Optical Platform,042@vanced Services Platform,
Corestream® Agility Optical Transport System, 5BRD0 Advanced Services Platform, Common Photonjet.&CPL), and 6100
Multiservice Optical Platform. This segment alsolirdes sales from legacy SONET/SDH, transport atd detworking products, as
well as certain enterprise-oriented transport gmhgtthat support storage and LAN extension, imenection of data centers, and
virtual private networks. This segment also inckidperating system software and enhanced softwateres embedded in each of
these products. Revenue from this segment is iedlird product revenue on the Consolidated StatenfeBperations.

» Packe-Optical Switching includes optical switching platforms that enableoanated optical infrastructures for the delivernyaofide
variety of enterprise and consumer-oriented netwgerkices. Ciena's principal products in this sagrimrelude its family of
CoreDirector® Multiservice Optical Switches, itsIReconfigurable Switching System and its OTN mpmétion for the 5410
Reconfigurable Switching System. These productsidecmultiservice, multi-protocol switching systethat consolidate the
functionality of an add/drop multiplexer, digitaloss-connect and packet switch into a single, kgbacity intelligent switching
system. These products address both the core aind segments of communications networks and sugqegrimanaged services,
Ethernet/TDM Private Line, Triple Play and IP seed. This segment also includes sales of operayistgm software and enhanced
software features embedded in each of these pmdretvenue from this segment is included in prodexetnue on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

e Carrier-Ethernet Solutionsprincipally includes Ciena's 3000 family of servabaivery switches and service aggregation switctes
5000 series of service aggregation switches, an@atrier Ethernet packet configuration for the®&g&rvice Aggregation Switch.
These products support the access and aggregatisormt communications networks and have princypldlen deployed to support
wireless backhaul infrastructures and businessdataces. Employing sophisticated Carrier Ethesmétching technology, these
products deliver quality of service capabilitiestual local area networking and switching funcpand carrier-grade operations,
administration, and maintenance features. This sagalso includes legacy broadband products thasition voice networks to
support Internet-based (IP) telephony, video ses/and DSL. This segment also includes sales ahtipg system software and
enhanced software features embedded in each & fineducts. Revenue from this segment is includemtoduct revenue on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

» Software and Servicesncludes the Ciena One software suite, includdmgControl, the integrated network and service mament
software designed to automate and simplify netwoakagement, operation and service delivery. Thefs@are solutions can track
individual services across multiple product suifasilitating planned network maintenance, outagection and identification of
customers or services affected by network perfooealm addition to Ciena One, this segment inclule<ON-Center® Network &
Service Management Suite, and the OMEA and Prgdatorms from the MEN Business. This segment aistudes a broad range
consulting and support services, including instalifaand deployment, maintenance support, congyltiatwork design and training
activities. Except for revenue from the softwaretipn of this segment, which is included in prodistenue, revenue from this
segment is included in services revenue on the @iolased Statement of Operations.

Fiscal 2011 compared to Fiscal 2012
Revenut

The table below (in thousands, except percentagg dats forth the changes in our operating segnegenue for the periods indicated:
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Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %o**

Revenue:

Packet-Optical Transport $ 1,121,81 645 $ 1,172,15 63.9 $ 50,34¢ 4.t

Packet-Optical Switching 148,39! 8.5 132,70! 7.2 (15,690 (10.€)

Carrier-Ethernet Solutions 127,86¢ 7.3 131,69¢ 7.2 3,82¢ 3.C

Software and Services 343,89¢ 19.7 397,36¢ 21.7 53,47( 15.F
Consolidated revenue $ 1,741,97 100.0 $ 1,833,922 100.0 $ 91,95! 5.3

*

K%k

Denotes % of total revenue
Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

Packet-Optical Transport revenueincreased reflecting a $232.8 million increaseaites of our 6500 Packet-Optical Platform,
largely driven by service provider demand for higpacity, optical transport for coherent 40G and@ @etwork infrastructures. Tl
increase was partially offset by sales decreas&82flL million in our 4200 Advanced Services Platfp$40.0 million of 5100/5200
Advanced Services Platform, $25.2 million in legé@ansport products, $19.8 million in 6100 Multigee Optical Platform and
$15.4 million of CPL. This shift in revenue reflsathanging market demand as network operators adbptent, high-capacity
network infrastructures, and our focused marketind development investment on our next-generafi@®® ®acket-Optical Platform
that leverages the convergence of packet and dptitaorking technologies to enable a scalablegmmmable solution.

Packet-Optical Switching revenuedecreased reflecting a $50.2 million decreaseless# our CoreDirector® Multiservice Optical
Switches. Packet-Optical Switching revenue hastietlly reflected sales of our CoreDirector platfio which has a concentrated
customer base. As a result, revenue and gross miarghis segment can fluctuate considerably ddimgnupon individual customer
purchasing decisions. Our Packet-Optical Switclsiagment is in the midst of a platform transitiomtw next-generation 5430
Reconfigurable Switching System and the OTN comfitjan for the 5410 Reconfigurable Switching Syst@imese platforms reflect
market and customer demand for solutions that dimlage network features, such as OTN switching @adsport, that leverage the
convergence of packet and optical networking tetdgies. As a result, Packet-Optical Switching béadffrom a $23.4 million
increase in sales of our 5430 Reconfigurable SwitcBystem, primarily relating to the completionaaf international, solutions-
based, submarine network deployment, and an $1illitrmincrease in sales of our OTN configuratian the 5410 Reconfigurable
Switching System.

Carrier-Ethernet Solutions revenueincreased reflecting increases of $10.1 milliosates of our 3000 and 5000 families of service
delivery and aggregation switches and a $5.9 miliicrease in sales of our 5410 Service Aggreg&ioitch to support wireless
backhaul, Ethernet business services and resitlentiadband applications. These increases weralhadffset by a $12.2 million
reduction in sales of our legacy broadband products

Software and Services revenuicreased reflecting increases of $15.2 millionétwork transformation consulting services, $15.0
million in installation and deployment, $13.3 nolti in maintenance and support services revenu&Hh@® million in software sales.

Revenue from sales to customers outside of theed8tates is reflected as International in the ggadc distribution of revenue below.

The table below (in thousands, except percentatzg dats forth the changes in geographic distrinutif revenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %**
United States $ 930,88( 534 % 972,57¢ 53.0 $ 41,69¢ 4.5
International 811,09( 46.6 861,34 47.0 50,25° 6.2
Total $ 1,741,97 100.0 $ 1,833,92: 100.0 $ 91,95: 53
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* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

» United States revenueeflects increases of $31.6 million in Software &wdvices revenue, $28.7 million in Packet-Optiaainsport
sales and $5.4 million in Carrier-Ethernet Solusisales. These increases were partially offsetdgceease of $24.0 million in Packet:
Optical Switching sales.

» International revenue reflects increases of $21.8 million in Software &wdvices revenue, $21.7 million in Packet-Opficainsport
sales and $8.3 million in Packet-Optical Switchiades. These increases were slightly offset byceedse of $1.5 million in Carrier-
Ethernet Solutions sales.

A sizable portion of our revenue continues to cdrom sales to a small number of service provid&ssa result, our financial results are
significantly affected by and can fluctuate depegdipon spending levels and the business oppdesrihd challenges encountered by our
service provider customers. Some of our customave indicated a procurement strategy to reducedhgber of vendors from which they
purchase equipment, which could further affectanmcentration of revenue where we participate @sé¢hefforts. Sales to AT&T were $269.9
million , or 15.5% of total revenue, in fiscal 20atd $248.1 million , or 13.5% of total revenuefigtal 2012 . We did not have any other
customers accounting for greater than 10% of otemee in fiscal 2011 or 2012 .

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Profit

Product cost of goods sold consists primarily obants paid to third-party contract manufacturessnponent costs, employee-related
costs and overhead, shipping and logistics costcaged with manufacturing-related operationsargly and other contractual obligations,
royalties, license fees, amortization of intangifsets, cost of excess and obsolete inventorywdreh applicable, estimated losses on
committed customer contracts.

Services cost of goods sold consists primarilyisfa and third-party costs, including employetated costs, associated with our provi
of services including installation, deployment, manhance support, consulting and training actisjtend, when applicable, estimated losses ¢
committed customer contracts.

Our gross profit as a percentage of revenue, @sgmargin,” is susceptible to fluctuations dua tmmber of factors. In any given period,
gross margin can vary significantly depending ufenmix and concentration of revenue by segmentuyart line within a particular segment,
geography, and customers. Gross margin can alaffésted by our concentration of lower margin "coomsi' equipment sales and higher
margin channel cards, the mix of lower margin ihstian services within our service revenue, odrdaduction of new products, and changes it
expense for excess and obsolete inventory and mgrobligations. We expect that gross margins bellsubject to fluctuation based on our
level of success in driving product cost reductioaonalizing our supply chain and consolidatihigd party contract manufacturers and
distribution sites as part of our effort to optimiaur operations. Gross margin can also be adyeaffekcted by the level of pricing pressure
competition that we encounter in the market. Irefiart to retain or secure customers, enter nevkataror capture market share, we may a
to pricing or other unfavorable commercial termet ttesult in lower or negative gross margins omuiqular order or group of orders. These
market dynamics and factors may adversely affecgoass margins and results of operations in aegariods.

Service gross margin can be affected by the mousfomers and services, particularly the mix betndEployment and maintenance
services, geographic mix and the timing and ex@éahy investments in internal resources to supihistbusiness.

The tables below (in thousands, except percentatgg det forth the changes in revenue, cost of geoltl and gross profit for the periods
indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %**
Total revenue $ 1,741,97 100.0 $ 1,833,92: 100.0 $ 91,95! 5.3
Total cost of goods sold 1,032,82. 59.3 1,109,69! 60.5 76,87¢ 7.4
Gross profit $ 709,14¢ 40.7 $ 724,22: 395 % 15,07¢ 2.1
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* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %**
Product revenue $ 1,406,53: 100.0 $ 1,454,99 100.0 $ 48,45¢ 3.4
Product cost of goods sold 825,96 58.7 868,80! 59.7 42,83¢ 5.2
Product gross profit $ 580,56 413 $ 586,18t 403 $ 5,62: 1.0
* Denotes % of product revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012
Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %o**
Service revenue $ 335,43t 100.0 $ 378,93. 1000 $ 43,49: 13.0
Service cost of goods sold 206,85! 61.7 240,89: 63.6 34,03¢ 16.5
Service gross profit $ 128,58: 383 % 138,03t 364 $ 9,45t 7.4

* Denotes % of service revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

* Gross profit as a percentage of revenuéecreaseds a result of the factors described be

» Gross profit on products as a percentage of produaevenuedecreased , primarily due to a higher concentratsfdower margin
product revenue within our Packet-Optical Switchéegiment, increased warranty expense and provigioirsventory excess and
obsolescence, partially offset by higher margiroanPacket-Optical Transport products.

» Gross profit on services as a percentage of serviceevenuedecreasedue to a higher concentration of lower margin itstian and
deployment services for international solutionsdolgrojects.

Operating Expense

Operating expense consists of the component elsndestcribed below. We expect operating expensetease in fiscal 2013 from the
level reported for fiscal 2012 to support the griowt our business and fund our research and dewedopinitiatives.

Research and development expgiramarily consists of salaries and related emplagsgeense (including share-based compensation
expense), prototype costs relating to design, deweént, and testing of our products, depreciatiggenrse and thirgrarty consulting cost

Sales and marketing experménarily consists of salaries, commissions andtezl employee expense (including share-based
compensation expense), and sales and marketingduppense, including travel, demonstration unitgje show expense and third-party
consulting costs.

General and administrative experg@marily consists of salaries and related emplagigeense (including share-based compensation
expense), and costs for third-party consulting athér services.

Amortization of intangible assepsimarily reflects purchased technology and custor@kationships from our acquisitions.
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The table below (in thousands, except percentatzg dats forth the changes in operating expensthéoperiods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %**

Research and development $ 379,86 21.¢ $ 364,17 199 $ (15,689 (4.2
Selling and marketing 251,99( 14.t 266,33t 14.5 14,34¢ 5.7
General and administrative 126,24. 7.2 114,00: 6.2 (12,240 (9.7
Acquisition and integration costs 42,08¢ 2.4 — — (42,089 (200.0
Amortization of intangible assets 69,66" 4.C 51,69° 2.8 (17,969 (25.9
Restructuring costs 5,781 .2 7,85¢ 0.4 2,07: 35.¢
Change in fair value of contingent

consideration (3,289 (0.2 — — 3,28¢ (200.0
Total operating expenses $ 872,33¢ 50.C $ 804,07( 438 $ (68,269 (7.9

*

K%k

Denotes % of total revenue
Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

Research and development expendenefited from $6.8 million as a result of foregxchange rates, primarily due to the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar in relation to @enadian dollar and the Indian Rupee. The $15lliomi decrease primarily reflects
decreases of $11.0 million in employee compensatiwhrelated costs, $4.2 million in depreciatiopense and $2.8 million in
prototype expense. This was partially offset byremnease of $3.2 million for facilities and infortian systems expense.

Selling and marketing expenséenefited from $4.5 million due to foreign exchamgees, primarily due to the strengthening of the
U.S. dollar in relation to the Euro and the Canadieallar. The $14.3 million increase primarily egdts increases of $9.9 million in
employee compensation, a portion of which relatéadreases in variable compensation due to owl lgfvorder flow, $4.2 million in
facilities and information systems expense and $#lllon of travel and related costs. This increases partially offset by decrease:
$1.0 million each in trade show and advertisingemse.

General and administrative expenselecreased by $12.2 million primarily related tordases of $4.9 million in professional
services, $4.4 million in employee compensation @tated costs largely related to reduced shareebesmpensation expense, and
$2.3 million in facilities and information systeraspense.

Acquisition and integration costsprincipally consist of transaction, consulting ahild party service fees related to the acquisition
and integration of the MEN Business into the corablinperations. This integration activity was sufisély completed in the first he
of fiscal 2011.

Amortization of intangible assetsdecreased due to certain intangible assets froriviE Business reaching the end of their
economic lives during fiscal 2011. See Note 2 to@onsolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 af Paf this annual report.

Restructuring costsfor fiscal 2011 and 2012 primarily reflect certamverance and related expense associated withdweddc
reductions and restructuring activities to aligm workforce and resources with market opportunidied research and development
initiatives. In addition, restructuring costs fegdal 2102 include the consolidation of certairilfities located within Maryland.

Change in fair value of contingent consideratiomelates to the contingent refund right we receiaggart of the acquisition of the
MEN Business associated with the early terminadibtihe Carling lease. During the first quartefis€al 2011, Ciena received both
notice of early termination from Nortel shortenihg Carling lease to five years and as a resudirteg a $3.3 million gain. See Ndte
to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Iteofi Bart 11 of this annual report for additional énfation.

Other items

The table below (in thousands, except percentatgg dats forth the changes in other items for #réops indicated:
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Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %**
Interest and other income (loss), net $ 6,022 03 % (15,200 0.8 % (21,22) (352.9)
Interest expense $ 37,92¢ 22 % 39,65 22 % 1,727 4.€
Gain on cost method investment $ 7,24¢ 04 % — — % (7,249 100.(
Provision for income taxes $ 7,67 04 % 9,32: 0t $ 1,64¢ 21.t

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

» Interest and other income (loss), netlecreased due to a $7.7 million non-cash loss@afi2012 related to the foreign exchange rate
on assets and liabilities denominated in a curretiogr than the relevant functional currency aspgamed to a $4.3 million non-cash
gain in fiscal 2011. Interest and other incomegJpret was also affected by a $6.6 million norhdass in fiscal 2012 related to the
change in fair value of the embedded redemptiotufeassociated with our 4.0% convertible senidesidue March 15, 2015, as
compared to a $2.8 million non-cash gain in fi@l1.

* Interest expensdncreased due to an additional week of intereserge from our convertible notes payable in fis€dl2and the
addition of our asset backed loan commitment.

» Gain on cost method investmentor fiscal 2011 was the result of the sale of agely held technology company in which we held a
minority equity investment.

» Provision for income taxesncreasedrimarily due to increased foreign taxes relateddditional foreign activit

Fiscal 2010 compared to Fiscal 2011

On March 19, 2010, Ciena completed its acquisiftba "MEN Acquisition™) of the optical networkinghd Carrier Ethernet assets of
Nortel's Metro Ethernet Business (the "MEN Busitiegss a result of this acquisition, our resultsoperations for fiscal 2010 do not includ
full year of MEN Business activity. The MEN Acquisih materially affected our operations and finahcésults. These effects include:

» Infiscal 2010, we paid the $676.8 million puask price for the MEN Acquisition in cash and iss$875.0 million in aggregate
principal amount of 4.0% convertible senior notas §arch 15, 2015, in part to fund the purchaseepi$ee Note 2 and Note 13
of the Consolidated Financial Statements found utiden 8 of Part Il of this annual report;

e Ourrevenue increased materially, as not diiscl 2010 reflects the addition of the MEN Busis@ue to the timing of the MEN
Acquisition;
»  Our concentration of Pack&ptical Transport revenue and revenue from outsidbe United States increas¢

» Gross margin was adversely affected by the Walnarequired under accounting rules, of the asglfinished goods inventory of
the MEN Business to fair value upon closing. Thafuation increased marketable inventory carryingedy $62.3 million, of
which $48.0 million and $14.3 million were recogilzin cost of goods sold during fiscal 2010 and12@éspectively;

» Our operating expense increased materially afeeMEN Acquisition, reflecting
o the addition of approximately 2,000 employees, Iyedwubling our headcout
o increased operating costs associated with a signifiy expanded, global busine
o increased amortization costs relating to the adiprisof $492.4 million in intangible asse

o transition service expense for services performed Nortel affiliate through the second quartefisdal 2011, relating t
finance and accounting functions, supply chainlagétics management, maintenance and product syppder
management and fulfillment, trade compliance, arfiormation technology; and

o integration-related costs, including transactmonsulting and third party service fees, severamcepurchases of
capitalized information technology equipment of $R2million and $59.6 million for fiscal 2010 an@21, respectively.
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In reviewing our financial results, investors shiibabnsider these and other factors in order tebatiderstand period to period comparisons.

Revenu

The table below (in thousands, except percentatgg dats forth the changes in our operating segnegenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2010 %* 2011 %* (decrease) %o+

Revenue:

Packet-Optical Transport $ 705,55! 57.0 $ 1,121,81 645 $ 416,26 59.C

Packet-Optical Switching 112,05¢ 9.1 148,39! 8.5 36,33 32.4

Carrier-Ethernet Solutions 179,08: 145 127,86¢ 7.3 (51,21% (28.€)

Software and Services 239,94. 19.4 343,89¢ 19.7 103,95: 43.%
Consolidated revenue $ 1,236,63 100.0 $ 1,741,971 100.0 $ 505,33 40.€

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2010 to 2011

» Packet-Optical Transport revenueincreased reflecting a $377.8 million increaseates of our 6500 Pack@ptical Platform, largel
driven by service provider demand for high-capaafstical transport, including coherent 40G and@ @@twork infrastructures.
Packet-Optical Transport revenue also benefiteh fsales increases of $23.4 million in 4200 Advar8edsices Platform, $19.9
million in 6100 Multiservice Optical Platform, $®bmillion in 5100/5200 Advanced Services Platfoemd $10.2 million in CPL.
These increases were partially offset by decreafs$25.6 million in Corestream® Agility Optical Tmaport System and $5.1 million
in legacy transport products.

» Packet-Optical Switching revenuencreasedeflecting a $21.3 million increase in sales of 6d4B0 Reconfigurable Switching Syst
and a $14.1 million increase in sales of our Core®0or® Multiservice Optical Switches. Packet-OgltiSwitching revenue has
historically reflected sales of our CoreDirectaatfrm, which has a concentrated customer base.

» Carrier-Ethernet Solutions revenueincreased reflecting a $51.6 million decrease lessaf our 3000 and 5000 families of service
delivery switches and service aggregation switemesan $8.7 million decrease in sales of our legaetro Ethernet and broadband
products. Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery revebeeefited from $9.1 million in initial revenue frothe introduction of the 5410
Service Aggregation Switch to support wireless back, Ethernet business services and residentialdiiand applications.

» Software and Services revenumcreased reflecting a $66.1 million increase inntemance support revenue and a $42.0 million
increase in installation, deployment and consulseryices.

Revenue from sales to customers outside of theed8tates is reflected as International in the ggadc distribution of revenue below.
The table below (in thousands, except percentazg dats forth the changes in geographic distioutif revenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2010 %* 2011 %* (decrease) %o**
United States $ 744,23 60.2 $ 930,88 534 $ 186,64 25.1
International 492,40: 39.8 811,09( 46.6 318,68t 64.7
Total $ 1,236,63 100.0 $ 1,741,971 100.0 $ 505,33 40.9

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2010 to 2011
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» United States revenuéncreased primarily due to a $185.2 million incee@ssales of Packet-Optical Transport produc$3&3
million increase in Software and Services revemaa$17.4 million increase in Packet-Optical Shiitg products. These increases
were partially offset by a $54.2 million decrease€arrier Ethernet Solutions sales.

* International revenue increased primarily due to a $231.1 million inceeasPacket-Optical Transport revenue, a $65.7onill
increase in Software and Services revenue and &9 #iillion increase in sales of Packet-Optical t8king products.

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Profit

The tables below (in thousands, except percentatgg det forth the changes in revenue, cost of geoltl and gross profit for the periods
indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2010 %* 2011 %* (decrease) %o**
Total revenue $ 1,236,63 100.0 $ 1,741,971 100.0 $ 505,33: 40.9
Total cost of goods sold 739,13! 59.8 1,032,82. 59.3 293,68 39.7
Gross profit $ 497,50: 40.2 $ 709,14¢ 40.7 $ 211,64! 425
* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2010 to 2011
Fiscal Year
Increase
2010 %* 2011 %* (decrease) %**
Product revenue $ 1,009,23 100.0 $ 1,406,53: 100.0 $ 397,29: 39.4
Product cost of goods sold 596,70« 59.1 825,96 58.7 229,26! 38.4
Product gross profit $ 412,53¢ 409 $ 580,56 413 $ 168,02¢ 40.7
* Denotes % of product revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2010 to 2011
Fiscal Year
Increase
2010 %* 2011 %* (decrease) %o**
Service revenue $ 227,39 100.0 $ 335,43t 1000 $ 108,04: 475
Service cost of goods sold 142,43: 62.6 206,85! 61.7 64,42: 45.2
Service gross profit $ 84,96¢ 374 $ 128,58: 383 % 43,611 51.3

* Denotes % of service revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2010 to 2011

» Gross profit as a percentage of revenuimcreaseds a result of the factors described be

» Gross profit on products as a percentage of produagevenueincreasediespite less favorable product mix in fiscal 2daigely as i
result of the adverse effect, in fiscal 2010, ofumber of items relating to the MEN Acquisitiontiacreased costs of goods sold in
that period. These items included $48.0 milliorated to the revaluation of inventory as of the aditthe MEN Acquisition and $6.6
million in excess purchase commitment losses on&sepre-
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acquisition inventory relating to product ratiozalion decisions. Fiscal 2011 cost of goods satthided $14.3 million related to the
revaluation of inventory above and an $8.8 milliocrease in amortization of intangible assets.

» Gross profit on services as a percentage of serviceevenueincreased due to higher concentration of professiservices as a
percentage of revenue, and improved operationgiafties.

Operating expense

The table below (in thousands, except percentatgg dats forth the changes in operating expensthéoperiods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2010 %* 2011 %* (decrease) %o**

Research and development $ 327,62( 26 $ 379,86 21.¢ % 52,23t 15.¢
Selling and marketing 193,51! 15.€ 251,99( 14.t 58,47" 30.2
General and administrative 102,69. & 126,24. 7.2 23,55( 22.¢
Acquisition and integration costs 101,37¢ 8.2 42,08¢ 2.4 (59,29) (58.5)
Amortization of intangible assets 99,40: 8.C 69,66" 4.C (29,736) (29.9
Restructuring costs 8,51« 0.7 5,781 0.2 (2,739 (32.7)
Change in fair value of contingent

consideration (23,807 (1.7 (3,289 (0.2 10,51¢ (76.2)
Total operating expenses $ 819,32( 66.z $ 872,33¢ 50.C $ 53,01¢ 6.5

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2010 to 2011

» Research and development expenseas adversely affected I$12.2 million as a result of foreign exchange rapegnarily due to th
weakening of the U.S. dollar in relation to the &dian dollar. The $52.2 million increase primar#flects increases of $47.4 million
in employee compensation and related costs, $18i6min facilities and information systems, $@llion in depreciation expense
and $2.5 million in professional services and fdémse increases were partially offset by decreafs$8.6 million in prototype
expense and a $5.5 million benefit related to alitmmal grant from the Province of Ontario. Fodambnal information regarding the
Ontario Grant, see Note 21 of the Consolidatedrtih Statements found under Item 8 of Part IIhi§ innual report.

» Selling and marketing expensevas adversely affected by $2.5 million due to fgneéxchange rates, primarily due to the weakening
of the U.S. dollar in relation to the Euro and @enadian dollar. The $58.5 million increase prifmyanéflects increases of $37.9
million in employee compensation and related c&fg) million in facilities and information systen®5.2 million in travel-related
expenditures, $4.8 million in marketing programtsp$2.7 million in prototype expense and $2.0imillin professional services and
fees.

* General and administrative expenséncreased by $21.5 million in employee compensadioth related costs, reflecting increased
administrative support service requirements refgtinthe growth in operations from the MEN Businasd the termination of
transition support services following the MEN Acsjtion.

» Acquisition and integration costsprincipally consist of transaction, consulting ahild party service fees related to the acquisition
and integration of the MEN Business into the coratlioperations. This integration activity was sufisély completed in the first he
of fiscal 2011.

« Amortization of intangible assetsdecreased due to certain intangible assets frofvEg Acquisition reaching the end of their
economic lives during fiscal 2011. See Note 2 to@onsolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 af Paf this annual report.

* Restructuring costsprimarily reflect the headcount reductions andruestiring activities described in the “Overview —eduisition
of Nortel Metro Ethernet Networks Business and &ffen Results of Operations and Financial Conditiabove.
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« Change in fair value of contingent consideratioris related to the contingent refund right we reedias part of the MEN Acquisition
relating to the early termination of the Carlingde. See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial @&its in Item 8 of Part Il of this
annual report for additional information.

Other items

The table below (in thousands, except percentatgg dats forth the changes in other items for #véogds indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2010 %* 2011 %* (decrease) %o**
Interest and other income (loss), net $ 3,917 03 $ 6,027 03 $ 2,10t 53.7
Interest expense $ 18,61¢ 15 $ 37,92¢ 22 % 19,30" 103.7
Gain on cost method investments $ — — 3 7,24¢ 04 $ 7,24¢ 100.(
Gain on extinguishment of debt $ 4,94¢ 04 % — 0.0 % (4,949 (100.0
Provision for income taxes $ 1,941 02 $ 7,67 04 $ 5,73 295.¢

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2010 to 2011

* Interest and other income (loss), neincreased due to a $2.8 million positive effectasign exchange rates on assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the relevamnttfonal currency. Fiscal 2010 reflects a $2.0iamilcharge relating to the
termination of an indemnification asset upon thgietion of the statute of limitations applicabtedne of the uncertain tax
contingencies acquired as part of the MEN AcquiBii

* Interest expensancreased due to our issuance during fiscal 20%B@56.0 million in aggregate principal amount @%.convertible
senior notes due March 15, 2015 and $350.0 millicaggregate principal amount of 3.75% convert##aior notes due October 15,
2018. See Note 13 to the Consolidated FinanciaéBtants found under Item 8 of Part Il of this arimaport.

e Gain on cost method investmentfor fiscal 2011 was the result of the sale of agiely held technology company in which we held «
minority equity investment.

» Gain on extinguishment of debfor fiscal 2010 resulted from our repurchase of.88tillion in aggregate principal amount of our
outstanding 0.25% convertible notes in privatelgat&ated transactions for $76.1 million. We recardegain on the extinguishment
debt in the amount of $4.9 million, which consistshe $5.7 million gain from the repurchase of tia¢es, less $0.8 million of
associated debt issuance costs.

»  Provision for income taxedncreased primarily due to increased foreign te

Segment Profit (Loss)

The table below (in thousands, except percentatzg dats forth the changes in our segment prafis{l for the respective periods:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 2012 (decrease) %*
Segment profit (loss):
Packet-Optical Transport $ 191,720 $ 242,13 $ 50,41( 26.<
Packet-Optical Switching $ 49,28¢ $ 22,84. $ (26,449 (53.7)
Carrier-Ethernet Solutions $ 10,84¢ $ (4,06¢) $ (14,91%) (137.5)
Software and Services $ 77,42: $ 99,13 $ 21,71( 28.C
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* Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

» Packet-Optical Transport segment profitincreased primarily due to increased sales volundedgcreased research and developme
costs, partially offset by decreased gross margin.

» Packet-Optical Switching segment profitdecreased primarily due to lower gross margingedlto a change in product mix as
described in our operating segment revenue dismusdiove, and decreased sales volume, partiabgtoffy decreased research and
development costs.

« Carrier-Ethernet Solutions segment lossn fiscal 2012, as compared to segment profitsodl 2011, was primarily due to increased
research and development costs and decreasedngaogm, partially offset by increased sales volume.

» Software and Services segment profincreased primarily due to increased sales volumded&creased research and development
costs, partially offset by a higher concentratibmewenue from lower margin installation and deph@nt services for international
solutions-based projects.

The table below (in thousands, except percentatgg dats forth the changes in our segment prafisl for the respective periods:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2010 2011 (decrease) %*
Segment profit (loss):
Packet-Optical Transport $ 69,31¢ $ 191,727 $ 122,40¢ 176.¢
Packet-Optical Switching $ 15,66: $ 49,28t $ 33,62« 214.5
Carrier-Ethernet Solutions $ 28,74: $ 10,84¢ $ (17,8979 (62.9)
Software and Services $ 56,15. $ 77,42 $ 21,27( 37.¢

* Denotes % change from 2010 to 2011

» Packet-Optical Transport segment profitincreased primarily due to higher sales volume n8ay profit during fiscal 2010 was
adversely affected by the revaluation of the aaglifmished goods inventory of the MEN Businestatovalue upon closing and the
excess purchase commitment losses on Ciena's guésdion inventory relating to product rationalien decisions described above.

* Packet-Optical Switching segment profiincreased due to higher sales volume and decreasedrch and development costs,
partially offset by lower product gross margin.

» Carrier-Ethernet Solutions segment profitdecreased due to lower sales volume, partiallyebfiy higher gross margin and
decreased research and development costs.

» Software and Services segment profivas significantly affected by the MEN Acquisitid®egment profit increased due to increased
sales volume, partially offset by increased redeardl development costs.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

At October 31, 2012 , our principal sources ofiliity were cash and cash equivalents and short-tevestments in marketable debt
securities, representing U.S. treasuries. Theviatig table sets forth (in thousands) changes incash and cash equivalents and investmer
marketable debt securities (in thousands):

October 31, Increase
2011 2012 (decrease)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 541,89 $ 642,44: $ 100,54¢
Short-term investments in marketable debt secaritie — 50,05 50,05"
Long-term investments in marketable debt securities 50,26¢ — (50,26¢)
Total cash and cash equivalents and investmemmiketable debt securities ~ $ 592,16( $ 692,50. $ 100,34:
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The change in total cash and cash equivalentsraredtiments in marketable debt securities durirgafizg012 was primarily related to the
following:

*  $107.1 million cash generated by operationssistimg of $92.6 million from net losses adjustedrion-cash charges and $14.5
million for changes in working capital;

*  $12.2 million from proceeds of stock issuancedar our employee stock purchase plan and the isgest stock options, slightly
offset by $2.3 million of debt issuance costs ah®$nillion for the repayment of capital lease ghtions; and

*  $48.1 million for purchases of equipment, fuung, fixtures and intellectual property, partiadffset by $35.6 million transferred from
restricted cash as a result of reductions in caihteral required to support our standby lettdreredit described below.

On August 13, 2012, we entered into a $150.0 milenior secured asset-based revolving crediitiafiihe “Credit Facility”). See Note
14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements inauddtem 8 of Part Il of this annual report fos@ammary of the material terms and
conditions of this Credit Facility. We principakxpect to use the Credit Facility to support tiseiggce of letters of credit that arise in the
ordinary course of our business and thereby toaedur use of cash required to collateralize tiesteuments. As of October 31, 201tters
of credit totaling $50.8 million were collateraldéy the Credit Facility. There were no borrowimggstanding under the Credit Facility as of
October 31, 2012 . Ciena expects to satisfy thenfiral criteria such that the Credit Facility wibt early mature on January 31, 2013.

We regularly evaluate our liquidity position, deftligations, and anticipated cash needs to fundparating plans and may consider
capital raising and other market opportunities thay be available to us. Based on past performandeurrent expectations, we believe that
our cash, cash equivalents and investments wilifgaiur working capital needs, capital expendis,te repayment of our outstanding 0.25%
convertible senior notes due May 1, 2013 and dibeidity requirements associated with our openaithrough at least the next 12 months.

The following sections set forth the componentswf$107.1 million of cash generated by operatictivgies for fiscal 2012 :
Net loss adjusted for non-cash charges

The following tables set forth (in thousands) oet loss adjusted for non-cash charges during thHedpe

Year ended
October 31, 2012

Net loss $ (144,02)
Adjustments for non-cash charges:

Change in fair value of embedded redemption feature 6,60(
Depreciation of equipment, furniture and fixturesd amortization of leasehold improvements 59,09¢
Share-based compensation costs 32,39
Amortization of intangible assets 74,49]
Provision for inventory excess and obsolescence 23,43¢
Provision for warranty 33,41¢
Other 7,12z
Net losses adjusted for non-cash charges $ 92,54

Working Capital
Accounts Receivable, Net
Cash generated by accounts receivable during f8xH2 , net of $1.6 million in provision for doubkfaccounts, was $70.4 million . Our
days sales outstanding (DSOs) decreased from 86fdafiscal 2011 to 69 days for fiscal 2012 . DSI@sreased largely due to improved
operational efficiencies from the redesign of hiliand collection processes and systems.

The following table sets forth (in thousands) chemtp our accounts receivable, net of allowancedabtful accounts, from the end of
fiscal 2011 through the end of fiscal 2012 :
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October 31, Increase
2011 2012 (decrease)
Accounts receivable, net $ 417,50¢ $ 345,49t $ (72,019

Inventory

Cash used by inventory during fiscal 2012 was $53Ibon . Our inventory turns decreased from 3ufnhs during fiscal 2011 to 3.3 turns
during fiscal 2012 . During fiscal 2012 , change#ientory reflect a $23.4 million reduction redtto a non-cash provision for excess and
obsolescence of which $15.2 million was scrappée. following table sets forth (in thousands) chanigethe components of our inventory
from the end of fiscal 2011 through the end fi@l2 :

October 31, Increase
2011 2012 (decrease)
Raw materials $ 45,33: % 39,67¢ $ (5,655
Work-in-process 13,85 10,73¢ (3,115
Finished goods 134,99¢ 178,21( 43,21
Deferred cost of goods sold 67,66¢ 71,48¢ 3,81¢
Gross inventory 261,84" 300,10¢ 38,26
Provision for inventory excess and obsolescence (31,77) (40,010 (8,239
Inventory $ 230,07¢ $ 260,09¢ $ 30,02:

Prepaid expenses and other

Cash generated by prepaid expense and other digiad) 2012 was $1.7 million , primarily relateddecreases in prepaid taxes and
product demonstration units, partially offset bgriases in other non-trade receivables and defdegldyment expense.

Accounts payable, accruals and other obligations

Cash generated by accounts payable, accruals heddadiligations during fiscal 2012 was $12.6 millioThis amount reflects a $49.6
million increase in our accounts payable, accraats other obligations, and an additional $1.2 ollielated to payments for previously
accrued equipment purchases, less non-cash pnosisfidb33.4 million related to warranties and $#iBion for financing activities related to
unpaid capital leases. The following table setthf@n thousands) changes in our accounts payabteuals and other obligations from the end
of fiscal 2011 through the end of fiscal 2012 :

October 31, Increase
2011 2012 (decrease)
Accounts payable $ 157,11¢ $ 179,70: $ 22,58¢
Accrued liabilities 197,00 209,54( 12,53¢
Other long-term obligations 17,26: 31,77¢ 14,51¢
Accounts payable, accruals and other obligations $ 371,380 ¢ 421,020 $ 49,64(

Interest Paid on Convertible Notes and Credit Hagil

Interest on our outstanding 0.25% convertible semites, due May 1, 2013, is payable on May 1 aodefber 1 of each year. We paid
$0.8 million in interest on these convertible nalesing fiscal 2012 .

Interest on our outstanding 4.0% convertible senaies, due March 15, 2015, is payable on MarcartbSeptember 15 of each year. We
paid $15.0 million in interest on these convertibéges during fiscal 2012 .

Interest on our outstanding 0.875% convertible@embtes, due June 15, 2017, is payable on Juaed ®ecember 15 of each year. We
paid $4.4 million in interest on these convertibtges during fiscal 2012 .
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Interest on our outstanding 3.75% convertible semites, due October 15, 2018, is payable on Apriand October 15 of each year. We
paid $13.1 million in interest on these convertibdges during fiscal 2012 .

During fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, Ciena utilizene Credit Facility to collateralize certain sibg letters of credit. We paid $0.2 million
in commitment fees, interest expense and otherradtrative charges relating to the Credit Facititying fiscal 2012.

For additional information about our convertiblae® see Note 1t® our Consolidated Financial Statements includelteim 8 of Part Il o
this annual report. See Note 22 to the Consolidaiedncial Statements in Item 8 of Part Il of tamual report for information relating to
Ciena's pending private exchange transactiondnglad a portion of our outstanding 4.0% convedibénior notes, due March 15, 2015, and
the issuance of new 4.0% convertible senior nates,December 15, 2020. For additional informatibout the Credit Facility, see Note 14 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements includedeim|8 of Part Il of this report.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue decreased by $16.7 million duiigaal 2012 . Product deferred revenue represeaympnts received in advance of
shipment and payments received in advance of dlityab recognize revenue. Services deferred rereas related to payment for service
contracts that will be recognized over the conttach. The following table reflects (in thousants) balance of deferred revenue and the
change in this balance from the end of fiscal 2tdugh the end of fiscal 2012 :

October 31, Increase
2011 2012 (decrease)
Products $ 42,91F $ 29,27¢ $ (13,63¢)
Services 80,88: 77,79, (3,086
Total deferred revenue $ 123,79t  § 107,07¢  § (16,727)

Contractual Obligations

During fiscal 2012, we entered into a lease rejptnoffice space for our new corporate headquaiteHanover, Maryland, consisting ¢
rentable area of approximately 154,100 square Tdwt.future minimal rental commitments to be paidrahe 15-year lease term are
approximately $61.8 million. The following is a sorary of our future minimum payments under contralctibligations as oDctober 31, 201
(in thousands):

Less than one One to three Three to five
Total year years years Thereafter

Interest due on convertible notes $ 138,39 $ 32,77C $ 57,50C $ 35,000 $ 13,12¢
Principal due at maturity on convertible notes 1,441,211 216,21( 375,00t 500,00t 350,00(
Operating leases (1) 145,60: 31,38 48,49° 19,597 46,12¢
Capital lease 6,32¢ 3,04( 3,28¢ — —
Other obligations 1,85¢ 87¢ 977 — —
Purchase obligations (2) 165,61 165,61 — — —
Total (3) $ 1,899,000 $ 449,89° $ 485,26: $ 554,59° $ 409,25:
(1) The amount for operating leases above doemaloide variable insurance, taxes, maintenanceottmet costs required by the

applicable operating lease. These costs are neceegbto have a material future impact.

(2 Purchase obligations relate to purchase ardietrmitments to our contract manufacturers and cor@posuppliers for inventory. In
certain instances, we are permitted to cancelhesiide or adjust these orders. Consequently, opbyrtgon of the amount reported
above relates to firm, non-cancelable and uncanditiobligations.

) As of October 31, 2012 , we also had approségebl11.5 million of other long-term obligations dur Consolidated Balance Sheet fol
unrecognized tax positions that are not includetthimtable because the timing or amount of ani sastlement with the respective
tax authority cannot be reasonably estimated.
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Some of our commercial commitments, including safe future minimum payments in operating leassorth above and certain
commitments to customers, are secured by stantieydef credit collateralized under our Credit iligcor restricted cash. Restricted cash
balances are included in other current assetsher tdng-term assets depending upon the duratidimecfinderlying letter of credit obligation.
Use of restricted cash to support these standt®rdedf credit decreased significantly during fls2@12 as we utilized our Credit Facility to
replace cash previously required to collateraliiese obligations. See Note 14 to our Consolidaiegi€ial Statements included in Item 8 of
Part Il of this annual report for a summary of thaterial terms and condition of the Credit Facilipe following is a summary of our
commercial commitments secured by standby letteesedlit by commitment expiration date as of OctodE, 2012 (in thousands):

Less than one One to Three to
Total year three years five years Thereafter
Standby letters of credit $ 56,10: $ 49,98( $ 3,85: $ 14 $ 2,25

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not engage in any off-balance sheet finanairghgements. In particular, we do not have amyjteiterests in so-called limited
purpose entities, which include special purpos#iesatSPEs) and structured finance entities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets requires that we make estimates and judgrtiettaffect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expense, andecktiisclosure of contingent assets and liabiliBstheir nature, these estimates and judgment
are subject to an inherent degree of uncertaintya®ongoing basis, we reevaluate our estimatelsidimg those related to share-based
compensation, bad debts, inventories, intangibteadher long-lived assets, income taxes, warrahligations, restructuring, derivatives and
hedging, and contingencies and litigation. We lmgeestimates on historical experience and on varather assumptions that we believe to b
reasonable under the circumstances. Among othegshthese estimates form the basis for judgmémastahe carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from otheurces. Actual results may differ from theséneaties under different assumptions or
conditions. To the extent that there are mateiféédr@nces between our estimates and actual resuitsconsolidated financial statements will
be affected.

We believe that the following critical accountinglipies reflect those areas where significant judgta and estimates are used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial staterment

Revenue Recognitio

We recognize revenue when all of the followingesid are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangeexésis; delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered; the price to the bsifiged or determinable; and collectibility isamonably assured. Customer purchase
agreements and customer purchase orders are demnsed to determine the existence of an arrangerB@ipping documents and evidence of
customer acceptance, when applicable, are usegtify delivery or services rendered. We assessivenehe price is fixed or determinable
based on the payment terms associated with theacéion and whether the sales price is subjecftmd or adjustment. We assess
collectibility based primarily on the creditwortleiss of the customer as determined by credit chanttsnalysis, as well as the customer's
payment history. Revenue for maintenance servigsierally deferred and recognized ratably owvep#riod during which the services are to
be performed.

We apply the percentage of completion method tgi@mm arrangements where we are required to wasidedignificant production,
customizations or modification engineering, andsoaable and reliable estimates of revenue andatestvailable. Utilizing the percentage of
completion method, we recognize revenue basederatio of actual costs incurred to date to tostihgated costs expected to be incurred. In
instances that do not meet the percentage of coimplaethod criteria, recognition of revenue isestefd until there are no uncertainties
regarding customer acceptance.

Software revenue is recognized when persuasivergalof an arrangement exists, delivery has oatutine fee is fixed or determinable,

and collectibility is probable. In instances whénal acceptance criteria of the software is spediby the customer, revenue is deferred until
there are no uncertainties regarding customer &@aeg.
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We limit the amount of revenue recognition for defied elements to the amount that is not contingerihe future delivery of products or
services, future performance obligations or suliiectustomer-specified return or refund privileges.

Accounting for multiple element arrangements erténéo prior to fiscal 2011

Arrangements with customers may include multiplévéeables, including any combination of equipmesatvices and software. If
multiple element arrangements include software@imarerelated elements that are essential to the equipnwerallocate the arrangement
among separate units of accounting. Multiple eldraermngements that include software are sepaiatednore than one unit of accounting if
the functionality of the delivered element(s) i$ dependent on the undelivered element(s), thereridor-specific objective evidence
(“VSOE") of the fair value of the undelivered elemtgs), and general revenue recognition criteriatesl to the delivered element(s) have been
met. The amount of product and services revenuegrezed is affected by our judgment as to whethesirsangement includes multiple
elements and, if so, whether VSOE of fair valuestxiVSOE is established based on our standarthg@nd discounting practices for the
specific product or service when sold separatelyldtermining VSOE, we require that a substantijbnity of the selling prices for a product
or service fall within a reasonably narrow priciragnge. Changes to the elements in an arrangememuarability to establish VSOE for those
elements could affect the timing of revenue rectogmi For all other multiple element arrangements separate the elements into more than
one unit of accounting if the delivered elemenit@)e value to the customer on a stand-alone hgetive and reliable evidence of fair value
exists for the undelivered element(s), and delivdrthe undelivered element(s) is probable andtamiially in our control. Revenue is
allocated to each unit of accounting based ondlagive fair value of each accounting unit or uging residual method if objective evidence of
fair value does not exist for the delivered elert@niThe revenue recognition criteria describedvalare applied to each separate unit of
accounting. If these criteria are not met, reveswkeferred until the criteria are met or the Eestent has been delivered.

Accounting for multiple element arrangements emténéo or materially modified after fiscal 2010

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard, (“FASB”) amended the accounting standarddgenue recognition with
multiple deliverables which provided guidance omwhbe arrangement fee should be allocated. The detkguidance allows the use of
management's best estimate of selling price (“BE&R®"individual elements of an arrangement wherO¥or third-party evidence (“TPE”") is
unavailable. Additionally, it eliminates the residlmethod of revenue recognition in accountingnfiiitiple deliverable arrangements. The
FASB also amended the accounting guidance for revamrangements with software elements to exclate the scope of the software
revenue recognition guidance, tangible productsabatain both software and non-software comporgaisfunction together to deliver the
product's essential functionality.

We adopted the new accounting guidance on a progpdxasis for arrangements entered into or malerizodified on or after November
1, 2010. Under the new guidance, we separate etsrirén more than one unit of accounting if thexdsked element(s) have value to the
customer on a stand-alone basis, and deliveryeofitiielivered element(s) is probable and substigritisour control. Therefore, the new
guidance allows for deliverables, for which revemses previously deferred due to an absence of/&dire, to be separated and recognized as
revenue as delivered. Also, because the residutladédas been eliminated, discounts offered byreisilocated to all deliverables, rather thar
to the delivered element(s). Our adoption of the gaidance for revenue arrangements changed tleeiaiicg for certain products that consist
of hardware and software components, in which tieesgponents together provided the product's esddutictionality. For transactions
involving these products entered into prior todis2011, we recognized revenue based on softwaesue recognition guidance.

Revenue for multiple element arrangements is aiéatt each unit of accounting based on the rela@lling price of each element, with
revenue recognized when the revenue recognitid@rieriare met for each delivered element. We deterthe selling price for each delivera
based upon the selling price hierarchy for multigidiverable arrangements. Under this hierarchyuseVSOE of selling price, if it exists, or
TPE of selling price if VSOE does not exist. Iftheir VSOE nor TPE of selling price exists for aideiable, we use our BESP for that
deliverable.

VSOE is established based on our standard prigidgdascounting practices for the specific producservice when sold separately. In
determining VSOE, which exists across certain gfsmrvice offerings, we require that a substamtiajority of the selling prices for a product
or service fall within a reasonably narrow pricitagnge. We have generally been unable to estabR§hdf selling price because our go-to-
market strategy differs from that of others in markets, and the extent of customization and diffeated features and functions varies amon
comparable products or services from our peersditermine BESP based upon management-approvedgguidelines, which consider
multiple factors including the type of product endce, gross margin objectives, competitive andketaconditions, and the go-to-market
strategy; all of which can affect pricing practices

51




Table of Contents

Historically, for arrangements with multiple elentgrwe were typically able to establish fair valaeundelivered elements and so we
applied the residual method. As a result, assuiiegidoption of the accounting guidance above rospective basis for arrangements
entered into or materially modified on or after Mawer 1, 2009, the effect on revenue recognizetisoal 2010 would have been an increase
of approximately $33.0 million.

Our total deferred revenue for products was $42l8omand $29.3 million as of October 31, 2011 @ctober 31, 2012 , respectively.
Our services revenue is deferred and recognizedilyabver the period during which the servicestaree performed. Our total deferred
revenue for services was $80.9 million and $77 anias of October 31, 2011 and October 31, 20E3pectively.

Business Combination

We record acquisitions using the purchase metha@tafunting. All of the assets acquired, liabiitesssumed, contractual contingencies
and contingent consideration are recognized at thiivalue as of the acquisition date. The exadghe purchase price over the estimated fai
values of the net tangible and net intangible assequired is recorded as goodwill. The applicatibthe purchase method of accounting for
business combinations requires management to nigthidicant estimates and assumptions in the deteatitn of the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in order to prlypaifocate purchase price consideration betwesataghat are depreciated and amortized
from goodwill. These assumptions and estimatesidtech market participant's use of the asset anappriate discount rates for a market
participant. Our estimates are based on histogiaérience, information obtained from the managermgthe acquired companies and, when
appropriate, includes assistance from independiédtparty appraisal firms. Our significant assuimps and estimates can include, but are no
limited to, the cash flows that an asset is exgktegenerate in the future, the appropriate weidtatverage cost of capital, and the cost sav
expected to be derived from acquiring an assetsd lestimates are inherently uncertain and unpeddétin addition, unanticipated events anc
circumstances may occur which may affect the acyuoa validity of such estimates. During fiscal Qe completed the MEN Acquisition
for a purchase price of $676.8 million. As a resiilthe purchase price allocation to the assetsiged|and liabilities assumed, as well as
contingent consideration, there was no value asgigm goodwill. See Note 2 to the Consolidated g Statements included in Item 8 of
Part Il of this annual report.

Share-Based Compensation

We estimate the fair value of our restricted stocit awards based on the fair value of our comntockson the date of grant. Our
outstanding restricted stock unit awards are stibjeservice-based vesting conditions and/or paréorce-based vesting conditions. We
recognize the estimated fair value of service-baseards, net of estimated forfeitures, as shased expense ratably over the vesting peric
a straight-line basis. Awards with performance-dasesting conditions require the achievement dfageifinancial or other performance
criteria or targets as a condition to the vestorgacceleration of vesting. We recognize the es@ché&ir value of performance-based awards,
net of estimated forfeitures, as shaesed expense over the performance period, usaatgdvesting, which considers each performanced
or tranche separately, based upon our determinafiaether it is probable that the performancgets will be achieved. At each reporting
period, we reassess the probability of achievimgpterformance targets and the performance peripdresl to meet those targets. Determining
whether the performance targets will be achievedlires judgment, and the estimate of expense mag\ieed periodically based on changes
in the probability of achieving the performancegegs. Revisions are reflected in the period in Whiee estimate is changed. If any
performance goals are not met, no compensationisafiimately recognized against that goal, andhe extent previously recognized,
compensation cost is reversed.

Because share-based compensation expense is lmaaeduals that are ultimately expected to vestatheunt of expense takes into
account estimated forfeitures. We estimate forfegiat the time of grant and revise, if necessarsubsequent periods if actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates. Changes in these agtisnrand assumptions can materially affect the uneasd estimated fair value of our share-
based compensation. See Note 18 to our Consolitfit@ticial Statements in Item 8 of Part Il of tteport for information regarding our
assumptions related to share-based compensatiameaiagnount of share-based compensation expenseureed for the periods covered in
this report. As of October 31, 2012, total unretipgd compensation expense was $49.4 million$Qi2 million , which relates to unvested
stock options and is expected to be recognized avezighted-average period of 0.5 year; and (if).34nillion , which relates to unvested
restricted stock units and is expected to be razedgrover a weighted-average period of 1.3 years.

We recognize windfall tax benefits associated whthexercise of stock options or release of rdsttistock units directly to stockholders'
equity only when realized. A windfall tax beneféaurs when the actual tax benefit realized by usan employee's disposition of a share-
based award exceeds the deferred tax asset, ihasgciated with the award that we had
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recorded. When assessing whether a tax benefiingt®d share-based compensation has been reahzefihllow the tax law “with-and-
without” method. Under the with-and-without methdifte windfall is considered realized and recognipedinancial statement purposes only
when an incremental benefit is provided after adeishg all other tax benefits including our net igtimg losses. The with-and-without method
results in the windfall from share-based compensativards always being effectively the last taxdfieto be considered. Consequently, the
windfall attributable to share-based compensatidihnat be considered realized in instances wherengt operating loss carryover (that is
unrelated to windfalls) is sufficient to offset therrent year's taxable income before considehegeffects of current-year windfalls.

Reserve for Inventory Obsolescen

We make estimates about future customer demaraufgeroducts when establishing the appropriaterveder excess and obsolete
inventory. We write down inventory that has becarbsolete or unmarketable by an amount equal tditference between the cost of
inventory and the estimated market value basedssunaptions about future demand and market conditiorentory write downs are a
component of our product cost of goods sold. Ummognition of the write down, a new lower cost bdsr that inventory is established, and
subsequent changes in facts and circumstancestdesuit in the restoration or increase in thatlyestablished cost basis. In an effort to li
our exposure to delivery delays and to satisfyamst needs we purchase inventory based on forecsakes across our product lines. In
addition, part of our research and developmentegyais to promote the convergence of similar fie=duand functionalities across our product
lines. Each of these practices exposes us togkéhat our customers will not order products ftrick we have forecasted sales, or will
purchase less than we have forecasted. Historjcaéiyhave experienced write downs due to changesristrategic direction, discontinuance
of a product and declines in market conditions.rtmrded charges for excess and obsolete inveaf®%7.3 million and $23.4 million in
fiscal 2011 and 2012 , respectively. The chargdisaal 2011 were primarily related to excess irteendue to a change in forecasted sales
across our product line. The charges in fiscal 20&2 primarily related to engineering design clesngnd the discontinuance of certain parts
and components used in the manufacture of our R&ykical Transport and Packet-Optical Switchingdarcts. Our inventory net of
allowance for excess and obsolescence was $230idmaind $260.1 million as of October 31, 2011 &uxtober 31, 2012 , respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivab

Our allowance for doubtful accounts receivabledsdal on management's assessment, on a specitiiédéion basis, of the collectibility
of customer accounts. We perform ongoing credituateons of our customers and generally have rutired collateral or other forms of
security from customers. In determining the apgedprbalance for our allowance for doubtful accsueteivable, management considers eac
individual customer account receivable in ordedétermine collectibility. In doing so, we consideeditworthiness, payment history, account
activity and communication with such customer. tustomer's financial condition changes, or if abtefaults are higher than our historical
experience, we may be required to take a chargarfallowance for doubtful accounts receivable Whiculd have an adverse impact on our
results of operations. Our accounts receivablephallowance for doubtful accounts, was $417.8iamland $345.5 million as of October 31,
2011 and October 31, 2012 , respectively. Our aluve for doubtful accounts was $0.7 million andb$illion as of October 31, 2011 and
October 31, 2012 , respectively.

Long-lived Assets

Our long-lived assets include: equipment, furnitamel fixtures; finite-lived intangible assets; andintenance spares. As of October 31,
2011 and October 31, 2012 these assets totaled@B0Mion and $438.3 million , net, respectivelye test long-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the assets' carrying amount is not recoleefedim its undiscounted cash flows. Our
long-lived assets are assigned to asset groupshwdicesents the lowest level for which we identéigh flows. Due to the lack of a triggering
event, no impairment analysis was performed irafi2011 or 2012.

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowanct

As of October 31, 2012 , we have recorded a valoailowance of $1.5 billion which offsets nearlyaur net deferred tax assets. When
measuring the need for a valuation allowance, wesasboth positive and negative evidence regatdangealizability of these deferred tax
assets. We record a valuation allowance to reducedeferred tax assets to the amount that is nikekly lthan not to be realized. In determin
net deferred tax assets and valuation allowancasagement is required to make judgments and estimalated to projections of profitability,
the timing and extent of the utilization of net agtéeng loss carryforwards, applicable tax ratesmsfer pricing methodologies and tax planning
strategies. The valuation allowance is reviewedtgdg and is maintained until sufficient positiggidence exists to support a reversal. Bec
evidence such as our operating results during th& necent thregear period is afforded more weight than forecasesdlts for future period
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our cumulative loss during this thrgear period represents sufficient negative evideagarding the need for nearly a full valuatiomwathnce
We will release this valuation allowance when mamagnt determines that it is more likely than nat ur deferred tax assets will be reali
Any future release of valuation allowance may hlmrded as a tax benefit increasing net income anaadjustment to paiet-capital, based ¢
tax ordering requirements.

Warranty

Our liability for product warranties, included ither accrued liabilities, was $47.3 million and $56illion as of October 31, 2011 and
October 31, 2012 , respectively. Our products areetplly covered by a warranty for periods randiogn one to five years. We accrue for
warranty costs as part of our cost of goods sogth@n associated material costs, technical sufgimt costs and associated overhead.
Material cost is estimated based primarily uponohisal trends in the volume of product returnshivitthe warranty period and the cost to
repair or replace the equipment. Technical suppbdr cost is estimated based primarily upon histbtrends and the cost to support the
customer cases within the warranty period. Theipion for product warranties was $18.5 million &88.4 million for fiscal 2011 and 2012,
respectively. See Note 12 to the Consolidated EiaaBtatements included in Item 8 of Part Il détteport. The provision for warranty claims
may fluctuate on a quarterly basis depending upemix of products and customers in that periodctiial product failure rates, material
replacement costs, service or labor costs diffamfour estimates, revisions to the estimated warfamovision would be required. An increase
in warranty claims or the related costs associaittsatisfying these warranty obligations couldrgase our cost of sales and negatively affes
our gross margin.

Effects of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Staternirritem 8 of Part Il of this report for informatiaelating to our discussion of the effects
of recent accounting pronouncements.

Unaudited Quarterly Results of Operations
The tables below (in thousands, except per shded get forth the operating results in our consiéd statements of operations for each of
the eight quarters in the period ended OctobeRB12 . This information is unaudited, but in ouimign reflects all adjustments (consisting

only of normal recurring adjustments) that we cdesnhecessary for a fair statement of such infapnah accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The results for any quaaternot necessarily indicative of results for amyiffe period.
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Jan. 31, Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31, Jan. 31, Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31,
2011 2011 2011 2011 2012 2012 2012 2012
Revenue:
Products $ 352,42° $ 336,02¢ $ 350,03( $ 368,04¢ $ 333,67¢ $ 384,72t $ 373,41 $ 363,17:
Services 80,88: 81,86¢ 85,28 87,40¢ 83,01: 92,89: 100,67: 102,35
Total Revenue 433,30t 417,89« 435,31 455,45! 416,68! 477,61 474,09( 465,53:
Cost of goods sold:
Products 214,40: 202,66! 198,21 210,68t 197,75. 234,37 225,23t 211,44
Services 50,40: 49,39¢ 52,19¢ 54,85¢ 51,17: 60,30¢ 67,53: 61,88:
Total costs of goods sold 264,80: 252,06 250,41t 265,54! 248,92 294,67t 292,76¢ 273,32!
Gross profit 168,50t 165,83: 184,89 189,91( 167,75¢ 182,94: 181,32: 192,20t
Operating expenses:
Research and
development 95,79( 99,62/ 93,21¢ 91,23: 89,66 90,39¢ 88,31¢ 95,80:
Selling and marketing 57,09: 61,76¢ 61,89: 71,23¢ 64,41: 62,51" 65,39" 74,01
General and
administrative 38,31 32,48( 28,17: 27,27¢ 29,66 26,67( 27,87¢ 29,79
Acquisition and
integration costs 24,18t 10,74: 4,82 2,34( — — — —
Amortization of
intangible assets 28,78¢ 13,67« 13,67 13,53¢ 13,47: 12,967 12,71« 12,54¢
Restructuring costs 1,522 3,16¢ 504 591 1,722 1,851 2,291 1,99(
Change in fair value of
contingent consideration (3,289 — — — — — — _
Total operating expenses 242,39 221,45: 202,28: 206,20t 198,93. 194,40- 196,59: 214,14:
Loss from operations (73,897 (55,61 (17,38% (16,299 (31,17¢) (11,467 (15,277) (21,93Y
Interest and other income
(loss), net 6,26¢ 4,22¢ (3,160) (1,319 (4,887) (4,387) (2,45¢) (3,46%)
Interest expense (9,550 (9,406 (9,470 (9,500 (9,570 (9,64¢€) (9,597%) (10,840
Gain on cost method
investment — — — 7,24¢ — — — —
Loss before income taxes  (77,177) (60,795 (30,015 (19,86)) (45,637) (25,496 (27,327 (36,247
Provision for income tax 1,87¢ 1,891 1,43t 2,46¢ 2,02( 2,28¢ 2,49( 2,52¢
Net loss $ (79,0500 $ (62,68¢) $ (31,450 $ (22,329 $ (47,65) $ (27,78) $ (29,81) $ (38,77)
Basic net loss per common
share $ 089 $ (0.66) $ 037 $ 023 $ 049 $ 0.2¢) $ (0.30) $ (0.39)
Diluted net loss per
potential common share $ (0.89) % (0.66) % (0.39) % 0239 $ (049 $ (0.2¢) $ (0.30) $ (0.39)
Weighted average basic
common shares outstanding 94,49¢ 95,36( 96,311 97,197 98,06¢ 98,98: 99,53( 100,50t
Weighted average dilutive
potential common shares
94,49¢ 95,36( 96,311 97,197 98,06¢ 98,98: 99,53( 100,50¢

outstanding
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosureshéut Market Risk

The following discussion about our market risk tisares involves forward-looking statements. Actasults could differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statemewts.are exposed to market risk related to changiddrest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates.

Interest Rate SensitivityWe currently hold an investment in a U.S. Governnodrtigation that matures in January 2013. Seesélbtand
6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements forrmition relating to investments and fair value.isihvestment is sensitive to interest rate
movements, and its fair value will decline as iegtrates rise and increase as interest ratesidedine estimated impact on this investment o
a 100 basis point (1.0%) increase in interest ratesss the yield curve from rates in effect athefbalance sheet date would be a $0.1 million
decline in value.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rigks a global concern, our business and results efatipns are exposed to movements in foreign cay
exchange rates. As a result of our increased glmiezlence, a larger percentage of our revenuenidJn®. dollar denominated with Canadian
Dollars and Euros being our most significant fonedgirrency revenue streams. If the U.S. dollamgfiteens against these currencies, our
revenues reported in U.S. dollars would decline.dtw U.S. dollar denominated sales, an increasieeivalue of the U.S. dollar would incre
the real cost to our customers of our productsankets outside the United States, which could irhpac competitive position.

With regard to operating expense, our primary expo$o foreign currency exchange risk relates &rafing expense incurred in Canac
Dollars, British Pounds, Euros and Indian Rupeesirg fiscal 2012 , approximately 52.0% of our agigrg expense was non-U.S. dollar
denominated. If these currencies strengthen, ceptated in U.S. dollars will increase, which woirdrease our expenses. During fiscal 2012
research and development expense benefited fronmxdpmtely $6.8 million , inclusive of hedging, dtethe strengthening of the U.S. dollar
in relation to the Canadian Dollar and the Indiarp&e in comparison to fiscal 2011 . Also in fis2@l2 , sales and marketing expense
benefited from approximately $4.5 million due te #trengthening of the U.S. dollar in relationtte Euro in comparison to fiscal 2011 .

From time to time, we use foreign currency forweodtracts to reduce part of the variability in a@rtforecasted non-U.S. dollar
denominated cash flows. Generally, these derivaitire for maturities of 12 months or less and asggthated as cash flow hedges. We
consider several factors when evaluating hedgesioforecasted foreign currency exposures, sudhigagficance of the exposure, offsetting
economic exposures, potential costs of hedgingtlagotential for hedge ineffectiveness. We doemtér into derivative transactions for
purposes other than hedging economic exposuremdiiscal 2011 and 2012 , we entered into forwardtracts to reduce the variability in
our Canadian Dollar and Indian Rupee denominatedating expenses which principally relate to oseerch and development activities.

Convertible Debt Outstanding@he fair market value of each of our outstandirsgiés of convertible notes is subject to interdstaad
market price risk due to the convertible featuréhef notes and other factors. Generally the fainketavalue of fixed interest rate debt will
increase as interest rates fall and decreaseasshtrates rise. The fair market value of thesotay also increase as the market price of our
stock rises and decrease as the market price stdbk falls. Interest rate and market value charmdtect the fair market value of the notes,
may affect the prices at which we would be ableefmirchase such notes were we to do so. Theseahdogiot impact our financial position,
cash flows or results of operations. For additionfdrmation on the fair value of our outstandinges, see Note 13 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Padflthis report.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary D

The following is an index to the consolidated finiah statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiinm
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhdl&ensity (Deficit)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ciéagporation

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present fairlyall material respects, the financial
position of Ciena Corporation and its subsidiaftee “Company”) at October 31, 2012 and 2011 , thedresults of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the pgeginded October 31, 2012 in conformity with accmgnprinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also in our opinion, tbempany maintained, in all material respects, éffednternal control over financial
reporting as of October 31, 2012 , based on caitestablished imternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisg@fdSO). The Company’s management is responsiblinése financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effectdss of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the Report of Managementrdgarnal Control Over Financial Reporting undemit8A. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements and on trapgany’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our integrated audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with the statsdafrthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bagidited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits toiobtasonable assurance about whether the finastei@ments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all ev&l respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideaee supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemalhdial statement presentation. Our a
of internal control over financial reporting inckrti obtaining an understanding of internal contu@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaduihie design and operating effectiveness of ivalecontrol based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstaneebelieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company changed the manner ichvithccounts for revenue in fiscal
2011.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclisdbose policies and procedures that (i) pertathéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituref®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detecf unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
December 21, 2012
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CIENA CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

October 31,
2011 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 541,89t $ 642,44,
Short-term investments — 50,05’
Accounts receivable, net 417,50¢ 345,49¢
Inventories 230,07t 260,09¢
Prepaid expenses and other 143,35 117,59!
Total current assets 1,332,83 1,415,691
Long-term investments 50,26¢ —
Equipment, furniture and fixtures, net 122,55t 123,58(
Intangible assets, net 331,63! 257,13
Other long-term assets 114,12: 84,73¢
Total assets $ 195141 $ 1,881,14.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 157,11« $ 179,70:
Accrued liabilities 197,00« 209,54(
Deferred revenue 99,37 79,51¢
Convertible notes payable — 216,21(
Total current liabilities 453,49: 684,97(
Long-term deferred revenue 24,42 27,56(
Other long-term obligations 17,26: 31,77¢
Long term convertible notes payable 1,442,36. 1,225,80
Total liabilities 1,937,54! 1,970,111
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):
Preferred stock — par value $0.01; 20,000,000 stemthorized; zero shares issued and outstand — —
Common stock — par value $0.01; 290,000,000 srerttworized; 97,440,436 and 100,601,792 shares
issued and outstanding 974 1,00¢
Additional paid-in capital 5,753,23 5,797,76!
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 31 (3,359
Accumulated deficit (5,740,36) (5,884,38)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 13,87 (88,97
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit $ 195141 $ 1,881,14

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended October 31,

2010 2011 2012
Revenue:

Products $ 1,009,23° $ 1,406,533 $ 1,454,99

Services 227,39 335,43t 378,93.
Total revenue 1,236,63 1,741,971 1,833,92.
Cost of goods sold:

Products 596,70« 825,96 868,80!

Services 142,43: 206,85! 240,89:
Total cost of goods sold 739,13! 1,032,82. 1,109,69'

Gross profit 497,50: 709,14¢ 724,22:

Operating expenses:

Research and development 327,62t 379,86: 364,17¢

Selling and marketing 193,51! 251,99( 266,33

General and administrative 102,69: 126,24. 114,00:

Acquisition and integration costs 101,37¢ 42,08¢ —

Amortization of intangible assets 99,40: 69,66" 51,69"

Restructuring costs 8,51¢ 5,781 7,85¢

Change in fair value of contingent consideration (13,807 (3,289 —

Total operating expenses 819,32( 872,33¢ 804,07(

Loss from operations (321,819 (163,19) (79,84¢)
Interest and other income (loss), net 3,917 6,022 (15,200
Interest expense (18,619 (37,926 (39,657
Gain on cost method investments — 7,24¢ —
Gain on extinguishment of debt 4,94¢ — —
Loss before income taxes (331,57) (187,849 (134,699
Provision for income taxes 1,941 7,67: 9,32:
Net loss $ (333519 % (195,52) $ (144,02)
Basic net loss per common share $ (3.5¢) % (209 $ (1.45)
Diluted net loss per potential common share $ (359 $ (209 $ (1.4%)
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding 93,10t 95,85/ 99,34!
Weighted average dilutive potential common shatgstanding 93,10¢ 95,85¢ 99,34!

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'
(in thousands, except share data)

EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Accumulated Total
Additional Other Stockholders’
Common Stock Paid-in- Comprehensiv  Accumulated Equity
Shares Par Value Capital Income (Loss) Deficit (Deficit)

Balance at October 31, 2009 92,038,36 $ 92C $5,665,020 $ 1,22¢ $(5,211,33) $ 455,83¢
Net loss — — — — (333,519 (333,519
Changes in unrealized gains and losses on invesgmer
net — — — (45¢) — (45¢)
Translation adjustment — — — 297 — 297
Comprehensive loss — — — — — (333,679
Issuance of shares from employee equity plans 2,021,941 21 1,54¢ — — 1,57C
Share-based compensation expense — — 35,56( — — 35,56(
Balance at October 31, 2010 94,060,30 941 5,702,13 1,06z (5,544,84) 159,29:
Net loss — — — — (195,52) (195,52)
Changes in unrealized gains and losses on invesdmen
net — — — 39z — 39:¢
Translation adjustment — — — (1,429 — (1,429
Comprehensive loss — — — — — (196,559
Issuance of shares from employee equity plans 3,380,13 33 13,16¢ — — 13,20:
Share-based compensation expense — — 37,93( — — 37,93(
Balance at October 31, 2011 97,440,43 974  5,753,23 31 (5,740,36) 13,87:
Net loss — — — — (144,02) (144,02)
Changes in unrealized gains and losses on invesgmer
net — — — (16€) — (16€)
Changes in unrealized gains and losses on foreign
currency contracts, net 49 49
Translation adjustment — — — (3,26%¢) — (3,26¢)
Comprehensive loss — — — — — (147,406
Issuance of shares from employee equity plans 3,161,35! 32 12,13¢ — — 12,167
Share-based compensation expense — — 32,39¢ — — 32,39
Balance at October 31, 2012 100,601,79 $ 1,00¢ $5,797,76! $ (3,35) $(5,884,38) $ (88,977

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)



Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby (used in) operating activities:

Gain on extinguishment of debt
Gain on cost method investments
Change in fair value of embedded redemption feature

Change in fair value of contingent consideration

Depreciation of equipment, furniture and fixturasd amortization of leasehold improvements

Share-based compensation costs

Amortization of intangible assets

Provision for inventory excess and obsolescence

Provision for warranty

Other

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effectanfuisition:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other
Accounts payable, accruals and other obligations
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities:

Payments for equipment, furniture, fixtures aneliettual property

Restricted cash
Purchase of available for sale securities
Proceeds from maturities of available for sale sées
Proceeds from sales of available for sale secsritie
Proceeds from sale of cost method investment
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired
Receipt of contingent consideration related tofess acquisition
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of senior convertible rnugable
Repayment of capital lease obligations
Repayment of senior convertible notes payable
Debt issuance costs
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casraémts
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for interest
Cash paid during the period for income taxes, net
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Purchase of equipment in accounts payable
Debt issuance costs in accrued liabilities

Fixed assets purchased under capital leases

Year Ended October 31,

2010 2011 2012
$ (333,51) $ (195,52) $ (144,02)
(4,94%) — —

— (7,249 —

(2,510 (2,800 6,60(

(13,807 — —

42,78 60,15t 59,09

35,56( 37,93( 32,39

127,01 95,92 74,49

13,69¢ 17,33« 23,43

15,35: 18,45: 33,41t

3,57 5,541 7,12:

(218,190 (75,629 70,36¢

(40,95) 14,20¢ (53,46()

(34,90¢) (18,30) 1,74

180,81 (59,28%) 12,61(

1,03( 18,74¢ (16,72

(229,010 (90,48%) 107,08

(51,207 (52,36) (48,09¢)

(24,52) 10,75 35,59’

(63,59:) (49,89:) —

454.,14; — —

179,53 — —

— 6,54 52¢

(693,24) — —

— 16,39 —

(198,899 (68,570 (11,97)

725,00( — _

— — (1,89

(76,06%) — —

(20,30) — (2,337

1,57C 13,20: 12,16

630,20 13,20: 7,94(

682 (93¢) (2,502)

202,98 (146,79) 100,54

485,70 688,68 541,89

$ 688,68 S 541,890 $ 642,44«
$ 1224t $ 3293 $ 33,51
$ 1,708 $ 320¢  $ 9,60:
$ 525¢ $ 6,431 $ 5,20z
$ 206 $ — 3 31¢
$ — 3 1,106  $ 6,73¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) CIENA CORPORATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO LICIES AND ESTIMATES
Description of Busines

Ciena Corporation (“Ciena” or the “Company”) ismyider of communications networking equipmentiwafe and services that support
the transport, switching, aggregation and manageofaroice, video and data traffic. Ciena’s Pac®gitical Transport , Packet-Optical
Switching and Carrier-Ethernet Solutions productsiesed, individually or as part of an integrateltison, in networks operated by
communications service providers, cable operagmgernments and enterprises around the globe. Genaetwork specialist targeting the
transition of disparate, legacy communications oek& to converged, next-generation architecturegebable to handle increased traffic and
deliver more efficiently a broader mix of high-bavidth communications services. Ciesgroducts, along with its embedded, network eléi
software and unified service and transport managereaable service providers to efficiently andtezffectively deliver critical enterprise and
consumer-oriented communication services. Cienareipal executive offices are located at 7035 RitRpad, Hanover, Maryland 21076.

Principles of Consolidatio

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of Ciena and its wholly owsebsidiaries. All material inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etadiiraconsolidation.

Acquisition of MEN Busines*MEN Acquisition”)

On March 19, 2010, Ciena completed its acquisitibsubstantially all of the optical and carrier &thet assets of Nortel's Metro Ethernet
Networks Business (tF*“MEN Business”). Additional details regarding thiiansaction are set forth in Note 2 below.

Business Combinatior

Ciena records business combinations such thabthkegurchase price is allocated to the assetsi@thand liabilities assumed based on
their estimated fair values. The fair values assiljio the assets acquired and liabilities assumeased on valuations using management'’s
best estimates and assumptions. The allocatidmegbiirchase price as reflected in the consolidatadcial statements is based on the best
information available to management at the timecthesolidated financial statements are issued.

Fiscal Year

Ciena has a 52 or 53 week fiscal year, which endh® Saturday nearest to the last day of Octobeach year (October 30, 2010, Octobe
29, 2011, and November 3, 2012 for the periodsrtegh Fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011 consisted o2 avBek fiscal year and fiscal 2012
consisted of a 53 week fiscal year. For purposémancial statement presentation, each fiscal jeedescribed as having ended on October 3:

During fiscal 2012, Ciena recorded out of perioflisiinents that increased its revenue by $6.8 milliod decreased pre-tax loss by $5.2
million . These adjustments related to errors attming of recognition of revenue, for which atquired criteria had been satisfied in prior
periods. Specifically, revenues for fiscal 2010 &adal 2011 were understated by $1.4 million aBdt$nillion , respectively. Ciena has
determined that these adjustments were not materaly prior annual or interim periods, and theuléng correction is not material to its
annual results for fiscal 2012.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements aratedldisclosures in conformity with accounting pifihes generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates @miehunts that affect the amounts reported in theaatated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Estimates are used for sadlicgs for multiple element arrangements, sharesgda@ompensation, purchase accounting
bad debts, valuation of inventories and investmeastoverability of intangible assets and othegHlined assets, income taxes, warranty
obligations, restructuring liabilities, derivativemntingencies and litigation. Ciena bases itenggés on historical experience and assumption
that it believes are reasonable. Actual results diffigr materially from management’s estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ciena considers all highly liquid investments pasdd with original maturities of 3 months or les®¢é cash equivalents. Restricted cash
collateralizing letters of credit is included irhet current assets and other long-term assets digygempon the expected duration of the
underlying letter of credit.

Investment:
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Ciena's investments are classified as availablesdter and are reported at fair value, with unredligains and losses recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income. Ciena neoegjlosses when it determines that declinesdriain value of its investments, below
their cost basis, are other-than-temporary. Inrdd@téng whether a decline in fair value is otheatthemporary, Ciena considers various fac
including market price (when available), investmeatings, the financial condition and near-termsperts of the investee, the length of time
and the extent to which the fair value has beentlesn Ciena's cost basis, and its intent andyahilihold the investment until maturity or for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipea recovery in market value. Ciena considers allketable debt securities that it expects to
convert to cash within one year or less to be steonh investments. All others are considered l@rgatinvestments.

At the end of fiscal 2010, Ciena owned a minoriyigy investment in a privately held technology qany. This investment was carried at
cost because Ciena did not have the ability tocsesignificant influence over the company. Durfisgal 2011, as a result of the sale of this
privately held technology company, Ciena recordegdia of $7.2 million .

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtarkith cost computed using standard cost, whigr@imates actual cost, on a first-in,
first-out basis. Ciena records a provision for escend obsolete inventory when an impairment has leentified.

Segment Reporting

Ciena's chief operating decision maker, its chiefcaitive officer, evaluates performance and allega¢sources based on multiple factors
including segment profit (loss) information for tfwlowing product categories: (i) Packet-Opticabiisport ; (ii) Packet-Optical Switching ;
(iii) Carrier-Ethernet Solutions ; and (iv) Softweaasnd Services . Operating segments are definednagonents of an enterprise: that engage i
business activities which may earn revenue and iexpense; for which discrete financial informatisravailable; and for which such
information is evaluated regularly by the chief g decision maker for purposes of allocatirgpreces and assessing performance. Ciene
considers the four product categories above tesbhepierating segments for reporting purposes. $te N below.

Longlived Assets

Long-lived assets include: equipment, furniture &ixidires; intangible assets; and maintenance sp&iena tests long-lived assets for
impairment whenever triggering events or changesraumstances indicate that the assets' carryimguat is not recoverable from its
undiscounted cash flows. An impairment loss is messas the amount by which the carrying amoutii®fisset or asset group exceeds it
value. Ciena's long-lived assets are assignedsit gsoups which represent the lowest level forciviziash flows can be identified.

Equipment, Furniture and Fixture
Equipment, furniture and fixtures are recordedost.cDepreciation and amortization are computedguie straight-line method over
useful lives of two to five years for equipment;rfilure and fixtures and the shorter of useful tifdease term for leasehold improvements.

Qualifying internal use software and website depeient costs incurred during the application develept stage, which consist primarily
of outside services and purchased software liceoses, are capitalized and amortized straightdiver the estimated useful lives of two to five
years.

Intangible Asset

Ciena has recorded finite-lived intangible asssta eesult of several acquisitions. Finite-livethimgible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization. Amortization is compuisihg the straighline method over the expected economic lives ofélspective assets,
to seven years , which approximates the use ofigiiitée assets.

Maintenance Spare
Maintenance spares are recorded at cost. Spangs csst is expensed ratably over four years .
Concentrations

Substantially all of Ciena's invested cash and eaglivalents are maintained at a small number gom& S. financial institutions or in
large, liquid money market funds. Deposits heldwianks may exceed the amount of insurance providesich deposits. Generally, these
deposits may be redeemed upon demand and, thensfanagement believes that they bear minimal risk.
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Historically, a significant percentage of Cien&ganue has been concentrated among sales to amsmmdder of large communications
service providers. Consolidation among Ciena'sotusts has increased this concentration. Consegquéidina's accounts receivable are
concentrated among these customers. See Note d®.bel

Additionally, Ciena's access to certain materialsanponents is dependent upon sole or limitedcgosuppliers. The inability of any of
these suppliers to fulfill Ciena's supply requirense or significant changes in their cost, couleetffuture results. Ciena relies on a small
number of contract manufacturers to perform theonitgjof the manufacturing for its products. If @Gaecannot effectively manage these
manufacturers and forecast future demand, or ¥f taié to deliver products or components on timer@'s business and results of operations
may be affected.

Revenue Recognitic

Ciena recognizes revenue when all of the followdriteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arraegéexists; delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered; the price to the bsifiged or determinable; and collectibility isasonably assured. Customer purchase
agreements and customer purchase orders are dgnsed to determine the existence of an arranger8éipping documents and evidence of
customer acceptance, when applicable, are useetify delivery or services rendered. Ciena assesbether the price is fixed or determina
based on the payment terms associated with theaitéion and whether the sales price is subjedftmd or adjustment. Ciena assesses
collectibility based primarily on the creditwortleiss of the customer as determined by credit chedtanalysis, as well as the customer's
payment history. Revenue for maintenance servigsierally deferred and recognized ratably ovep#riod during which the services are to
be performed. Shipping and handling fees billedustomers are included in revenue, with the astmtiexpenses included in product cost of
goods sold.

Ciena applies the percentage of completion methdohg-term arrangements where it is required eutake significant production,
customizations or modification engineering, andsosable and reliable estimates of revenue andacestvailable. Utilizing the percentage of
completion method, Ciena recognizes revenue basédeoratio of actual costs incurred to date taltestimated costs expected to be incurred
In instances that do not meet the percentage oplagion method criteria, recognition of revenuééserred until there are no uncertainties
regarding customer acceptance.

Software revenue is recognized when persuasivere@of an arrangement exists, delivery has oatutine fee is fixed or determinable,
and collectibility is probable. In instances whéimal acceptance criteria of the software is spediby the customer, revenue is deferred until
there are no uncertainties regarding customer &mcep.

Ciena limits the amount of revenue recognitiondelivered elements to the amount that is not cgetihon the future delivery of produ
or services, future performance obligations or ecidjo customer-specified return or refund privileg

Accounting for multiple element arrangements erténéo prior to fiscal 2011

Arrangements with customers may include multiplévéeables, including any combination of equipmesatvices and software. If
multiple element arrangements include softwaretivgrerelated elements that are essential to the equip@émna allocates the arrangerr
fee among separate units of accounting. Multipteneint arrangements that include software are seplairdao more than one unit of account
if the functionality of the delivered element(shist dependent on the undelivered element(s), ikerendor-specific objective evidence
(“VSOE") of the fair value of the undelivered elemtgs), and general revenue recognition criteriatesl to the delivered element(s) have been
met. The amount of product and services revenusgrezed is affected by Ciena's judgment as to wdreth arrangement includes multiple
elements and, if so, whether VSOE of fair valuestxiVSOE is established based on Ciena's stapdaidg and discounting practices for the
specific product or service when sold separatelgldtermining VSOE, Ciena requires that a substhmiajority of the selling prices for a
product or service fall within a reasonably narqaicing range. Changes to the elements in an aerargt and Ciena's ability to establish
VSOE for those elements could affect the timingesfenue recognition. For all other multiple elemamangements, Ciena separates the
elements into more than one unit of accountingefdelivered element(s) have value to the custemer stand-alone basis, objective and
reliable evidence of fair value exists for the unaged element(s), and delivery of the undeliveeéaginent(s) is probable and substantially in
Ciena's control. Revenue is allocated to eachafrdtcounting based on the relative fair valueamfheaccounting unit or using the residual
method if objective evidence of fair value does exist for the delivered element(s). The revenwegaition criteria described above are
applied to each separate unit of accounting. Beheriteria are not met, revenue is deferred thilcriteria are met or the last element has bee
delivered.

Accounting for multiple element arrangements emténéo or materially modified after fiscal 2010

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&adard (“FASB”) amended the accounting standarddeenue recognition with
multiple deliverables which provided guidance owhbe arrangement fee should be allocated and sitbesuse of management's best
estimate of selling price (“BESP”) for individudkenents of an arrangement when VSOE or third-
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party evidence (“TPE") is unavailable. Additionallyeliminates the residual method of revenue ge@@n in accounting for multiple
deliverable arrangements. The FASB also amendeddtmunting guidance for revenue arrangementssaitfavare elements to exclude from
the scope of the software revenue recognition guieatangible products that contain both softwaiek r@on-software components that function
together to deliver the product's essential fumetiidy.

Ciena adopted the new accounting guidance on g@@ctse basis for arrangements entered into orna#iiemodified on or after
November 1, 2010. Under the new guidance, Cienaratgs elements into more than one unit of accogiiftthe delivered element(s) ha
value to the customer on a stand-alone basis, @linedy of the undelivered element(s) is probalvid substantially in Ciena's control.
Therefore, the new guidance allows for deliveratfi@swhich revenue was previously deferred duart@bsence of fair value, to be separatec
and recognized as revenue as delivered. Also, Bedhe residual method has been eliminated, dissadifered by Ciena are allocated to all
deliverables, rather than to the delivered elensgn@iena's adoption of the new guidance for regeamiangements changed the accounting fo
certain Ciena products that consist of hardwaresafitivare components, in which these componentetheg provided the product's essential
functionality. For arrangements involving theseduats entered into prior to fiscal 2011, Ciena gegped revenue based on software revenue
recognition guidance.

Revenue for multiple element arrangements is aatt each unit of accounting based on the redat@lling price of each delivered
element, with revenue recognized when the reveecmgnition criteria are met for each delivered eetnCiena determines the selling price
for each deliverable based upon the selling prieealchy for multiple-deliverable arrangements. Eintthis hierarchy, Ciena uses VSOE of
selling price, if it exists, or TPE of selling peicf VSOE does not exist. If neither VSOE nor THEalling price exists for a deliverable, Ciena
uses its BESP for that deliverable.

VSOE is established based on Ciena's standareh@riaid discounting practices for the specific pobauw service when sold separately. In
determining VSOE, which exists across certain @n@ls service offerings, Ciena requires that atantial majority of the selling prices for a
product or service fall within a reasonably narqaiicing range. Ciena has been unable to estabiEh df selling price because its gormrke
strategy differs from that of others in its markeisd the extent of customization and differentidegatures and functions varies among
comparable products or services from its peersidietermines BESP based upon management-approgied) guidelines, which consider
multiple factors including the type of product endce, gross margin objectives, competitive andketaconditions, and the go-to-market
strategy; all of which can affect pricing practices

Historically, for arrangements with multiple elengrCiena was typically able to establish fair ealor undelivered elements and so Ci
applied the residual method. As a result, assuiiegidoption of the accounting guidance above rospective basis for arrangements
entered into or materially modified on or after Mawer 1, 2009, the effect on revenue recognizetisoal 2010 would have been an increase
of approximately $33.0 million .

Warranty Accruals

Ciena provides for the estimated costs to fulfiisiomer warranty obligations upon the recognitibthe related revenue. Estimated
warranty costs include estimates for material ¢asthinical support labor costs and associatecheael: The warranty liability is included in
cost of goods sold and determined based upon agarehnty cost experience, estimates of comporagiutré rates and management's industry
experience. Ciena's sales contracts do not pemmitight of return of product by the customer after product has been accepted.

Accounts Receivable, N

Ciena's allowance for doubtful accounts is baseiisoassessment, on a specific identification hasithe collectibility of customer
accounts. Ciena performs ongoing credit evaluatigiits customers and generally has not requirdldteoal or other forms of security from its
customers. In determining the appropriate balaoc€fena's allowance for doubtful accounts, managgroonsiders each individual customer
account receivable in order to determine collelitybiln doing so, management considers creditwogbs, payment history, account activity
and communication with such customer. If a custérfarancial condition changes, Ciena may be reguto record an allowance for doubtful
accounts, which would negatively affect its resaoftgperations.

Research and Developme

Ciena charges all research and development costgptmse as incurred. Types of expense incurrezsgarch and development include
employee compensation, cost of prototype equipnoemisulting and third party services, depreciatfanility costs and information
technology.

Government Grants
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Ciena accounts for proceeds from government gamgsreduction of operating expense when thegasonable assurance that Ciena ha
complied with the conditions attached to the geantt that the grant proceeds will be received. Grangfits are recorded to the line item in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations to which thatgactivity relates. See Note 21 below.

Advertising Cost

Ciena expenses all advertising costs as incurred.
Legal Cost:

Ciena expenses legal costs associated with litigatefense as incurred.
Share-Based Compensation Expense

Ciena measures and recognizes compensation exfoerstere-based awards based on estimated faevalu the date of grant. Ciena
estimates the fair value of each option-based amarthe date of grant using the Black-Scholes oappigcing model. This model is affected by
Ciena's stock price as well as estimates regamimgmber of variables including expected stockepviglatility over the expected term of the
award and projected employee stock option exebmbaviors. Ciena estimates the fair value of eastricted stock unit based on the fair ve
of the underlying common stock on the date of greméach case, Ciena only recognizes expenss toiitsolidated statement of operations fo
those options or shares that are expected ultignetelest. Ciena recognizes the estimated fairevafiperformance-based awards, net of
estimated forfeitures, as share-based expenselmeerformance period, using graded vesting, wbittsiders each performance period or
tranche separately, based upon its determinatiovhether it is probable that the performance targatl be achieved. At each reporting peri
Ciena reassesses the probability of achieving ¢inopnance targets and the performance period redjtd meet those targets. Ciena uses the
straight-line method to record expense for grartis anly service-based vesting. See Note 18 below.

Income Taxe

Ciena accounts for income taxes using an assdiaiility approach that recognizes deferred taetssand liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences attributable to differebedmeen the carrying amounts of assets and liglifior financial reporting purposes and
their respective tax bases, and for operatingdosistax credit carryforwards. In estimating futtaxe consequences, Ciena considers all
expected future events other than the enactmesttanfges in tax laws or rates. Valuation allowamecegrovided, if, based upon the weight of
the available evidence, it is more likely than tiztt some or all of the deferred tax assets willb®realized.

In the ordinary course of business, transactioesioor which the ultimate outcome may be uncertliraddition, tax authorities
periodically audit Ciena's income tax returns. Ehasdits examine significant tax filing positioms;luding the timing and amounts of
deductions and the allocation of income tax expeaseong tax jurisdictions. Ciena is currently uraiedit in India for 2007 and 2008 and in
the United Kingdom for 2009. Management does npeekthe outcome of these audits to have a matediadrse effect on the Company's
consolidated financial position, result of operati@r cash flows. Ciena's major tax jurisdictiond the earliest open tax years are as follows:
United States (2009), United Kingdom (2007), Can@i®6) and India (2007). However, limited adjusttsecan be made to Federal tax
returns in earlier years in order to reduce netatpey loss carryforwards. Ciena classifies inteagsl penalties related to uncertain tax
positions as a component of income tax expensenfAlie uncertain tax positions, if recognized, Wadecrease the effective income tax rate.

Ciena has not provided for U.S. deferred incomega the cumulative unremitted earnings of itsdd. affiliates as it plans to
permanently reinvest cumulative unremitted foreagmings outside the U.S. and it is not practicablgetermine the unrecognized deferred
income taxes. These cumulative unremitted foreaniags relate to ongoing operations in foreigisflictions and are required to fund fore
operations, capital expenditures and any expansigurements.

Ciena recognizes windfall tax benefits associatil the exercise of stock options or release dfieed stock units directly to
stockholders' equity only when realized. A windfalk benefit occurs when the actual tax benefiized by Ciena upon an employee's
disposition of a share-based award exceeds therdéfiax asset, if any, associated with the awsati€iena had recorded. When assessing
whether a tax benefit relating to share-based cosgi®on has been realized, Ciena follows the tax‘gith-and-without” method. Under the
with-and-without method, the windfall is consideredlized and recognized for financial statememppses only when an incremental benefit
is provided after considering all other tax bemsefitcluding Ciena's net operating losses. The aitt-without method results in the windfall
from share-based compensation awards always bffaxjieely the last tax benefit to be consideredn€equently, the windfall attributable to
share-based compensation will not be considerdizedan instances where Ciena's net operatingdassyover (that is unrelated to windfalls)
is sufficient to offset the current year's taxableome before considering the effects of curreraryeindfalls.
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Loss Contingencie

Ciena is subject to the possibility of various Esarising in the ordinary course of business. &neay relate to disputes, litigation and
other legal actions. Ciena considers the likelihobbbss or the incurrence of a liability, as wee#l Ciena's ability to reasonably estimate the
amount of loss, in determining loss contingendesestimated loss contingency is accrued whengtabable that a liability has been incurred
and the amount of loss can be reasonably estim@ieda regularly evaluates current information k@é to it in order to determine whether
any accruals should be adjusted and whether nesuasare required.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The carrying value of Ciena's cash and cash eantglaccounts receivable, accounts payable, amdeatliabilities approximates fair
market value due to the relatively short periodiroe to maturity. For information related to thér fealue of Ciena's convertible notes, see I
13 below.

Fair value for the measurement of financial asaetsliabilities is defined as the price that wobéreceived to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betm market participants at the measurement datsuéts fair value is a market-based
measurement that should be determined based ompsisns that market participants would use in pgcan asset or liability. Ciena utilizes a
valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the inputsfir value measurement. This hierarchy priorgizee inputs into three broad levels as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvagtiarkets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 inputs are quoted prices for identicaliotilsr assets or liabilities in less active markatsnodel-derived valuations in which
significant inputs are observable for the assdibbility, either directly or indirectly through miget corroboration, for substantially the full te
of the financial instrument;

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs based ona&eassumptions used to measure assets andiahili fair value.

By distinguishing between inputs that are observabthe marketplace, and therefore more objectind,those that are unobservable and
therefore more subjective, the hierarchy is degigneéndicate the relative reliability of the faialue measurements. A financial asset or
liability's classification within the hierarchy éetermined based on the lowest level input thaigsificant to the fair value measurement.

Restructuring

From time to time, Ciena takes actions to bettignats workforce, facilities and operating costishaperceived market opportunities,
business strategies and changes in market andasssionditions. Ciena implements these restrugtylems and generally incurs the
associated liability concurrently. Generally acegpaccounting principles require that a liability the cost associated with an exit or disposal
activity be recognized in the period in which theility is incurred, except for one-time employteemination benefits related to a service
period of more than 60 days , which are accrued theeservice period. See Note 3 below.

Foreign Currency

Some of Ciena's foreign branch offices and subs&iaise the U.S. dollar as their functional curyeldecause Ciena, as the U.S. parent
entity, exclusively funds the operations of thesmnbh offices and subsidiaries. For those subsidiarsing the local currency as their
functional currency, assets and liabilities aredfated at exchange rates in effect at the balsineet date, and the statement of operations is
translated at a monthly average rate. Resultingstaion adjustments are recorded directly to arsgp component of stockholders' equity.
Where the monetary assets and liabilities are &aeted in a currency other than the entity's fumeti@currency, reneasurement adjustments
recorded in other income. The net gain (loss) oeidm currency reneasurement and exchange rate changes is immdgersaparate financii
statement presentation.

Derivatives

Ciena's 4.0% convertible senior notes include amgation feature that is accounted for as a sepambedded derivative. The embedded
redemption feature is recorded at fair value oacairring basis, and these changes are includeddrest and other income, net on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

From time to time, Ciena uses foreign currency fohvcontracts to reduce variability in certain fasted non U.S.-dollar denominated
cash flows. Generally, these derivatives have niasiof twelve months or less and are designasezhah flow hedges. At the inception of the
cash flow hedge, and on an ongoing basis, Ciersssss whether the forward contract has been efédctioffsetting changes in cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk during the hedgiegod. The effective portion of the derivative&t gain or loss is initially reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive indtoes), and,
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upon the occurrence of the forecasted transadi@ubsequently reclassified to the line item i @onsolidated Statement of Operations to
which the hedged transaction relates. Any net gainss associated with the ineffectiveness otiiging instrument is reported in interest
other income (loss), net.

During fiscal 2012, Ciena entered into forward caats to reduce the variability in its CanadianlBroand Indian Rupee denominated
expense, which principally relate to research aebpment activities. These derivative contraetgehbeen designated as cash flow hedges
and are immaterial for separate financial staterpezgentation.

Computation of Net Income (Loss) per Share

Ciena calculates basic earnings per share (EP8ivlming earnings attributable to common stock g weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Dilute® Ehcludes other potential dilutive shares thatldide outstanding if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock were exercisedmorerted into common stock. Ciena uses a dual pratien of basic and diluted EPS on the
face of its income statement. A reconciliationled humerator and denominator used for the basidéumed EPS computations is set forth in
Note15 .

Software Development Costs

Ciena develops software for sale to its custom@eserally accepted accounting principles requieectipitalization of certain software
development costs that are incurred subsequehetddte technological feasibility is established prior to the date the product is generally
available for sale. The capitalized cost is thewrized straight-line over the estimated life of roduct. Ciena defines technological
feasibility as being attained at the time a workimgdel is completed. To date, the period betweem&achieving technological feasibility and
the general availability of such software has b&w®art, and software development costs qualifyingcépitalization have been insignificant.
Accordingly, Ciena has not capitalized any softw@ggelopment costs.

Newly Issued Accounting Standa

In May 2011, the FASB issued an accounting stardapdiate that amends current fair value measureameidisclosure guidance to
converge with International Financial Reportingristards (IFRS). This update provides improved comighty of fair value measurements
presented and disclosed in financial statementsapee in accordance with U.S. GAAP and IFRS. Thigdance is effective for fiscal years ¢
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2@drly application by public companies is not petedt Ciena will adopt this guidance in
fiscal 2013 and does not expect this new guidamt¢mve any impact on its financial condition, résof operations and cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting stdadgrdate that requires an entity to present ¢at@prehensive income, the
components of net income, and the components ef attmprehensive income either in a single contisusiatement of comprehensive inc
or in two separate but consecutive statements limihates the option to present the componentslugrocomprehensive income as part of the
statement of changes in stockholders' equity. loebwer 2011, the portion of this guidance relabeithé presentation of the reclassification
items out of accumulated other comprehensive incoasedeferred. The remainder of this guidancefectde for fiscal years and interim
periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Earpptdn is permitted. Ciena will adopt this guidartdiscal 2013 and does not expect this
new guidance to have any impact on its financialdition, results of operations and cash flows.

(2) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Acquisition of MEN Busine:

On March 19, 2010, Ciena completed its acquisitibthe MEN Business. Ciena acquired the MEN Busiriesn effort to strengthen its
technology leadership position in next-generatamverged optical Ethernet networking, accelefagesixecution of its corporate and researct
and development strategies and enable Ciena @ lettnpete with larger equipment vendors. The atipn expanded Ciena's geographic
reach, customer relationships, and portfolio ofwoek solutions.

In accordance with the agreements for the acooiisithe $773.8 million aggregate purchase pricesmésequently adjusted downward by
$80.6 million based upon the amount of net worldapital transferred to Ciena at closing. As a te€liena paid $693.2 million in cash for the
purchase of the MEN Business.

In connection with the acquisition, Ciena entergd an agreement with Nortel to lease the “Labliiitding on Nortel's Carling Campus
in Ottawa, Canada (the “Carling lease”) for a tefitenyears. The lease agreement contained a provisatraliowed Nortel to reduce the te
of the lease, and, in exchange, Ciena could re@epayment of up to $33.5 million . This amount ywksced into escrow by Nortel in
accordance with the acquisition agreements. Thed®iélion fair value of this contingent refund higwas recorded as a reduction to the
consideration paid, resulting in a purchase price6G6.8 million .
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On October 19, 2010, Nortel issued a public anneomant that it had entered into a sale agreematst 6farling campus with Publics
Works and Government Services Canada (PWGSC) ahdd®n directed to exercise its early terminatights under the Carling lease,
shortening the lease term from ten years to fivageAs a result, and based on this change inmastances and expected outcome probability
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 Ciena releal an unrealized gain of $13.8 million resulting fair value of $30.2 million for the
contingent consideration right. During the firsager of fiscal 2011, Ciena received notice ofyetgtmination from Nortel and the
corresponding $33.5 million payment described aboesulting in a gain of $3.3 million .

During fiscal 2010, Ciena incurred $101.4 millientiansaction, consulting and third party servieesf $8.5 million in restructuring
expense, and an additional $12.4 million in cositmarily related to purchases of capitalized infation technology equipment. During fiscal
2011, Ciena incurred $ 42.1 million in transactioonsulting and third party service fees, $6.6iomlin restructuring expense, and an
additional $10.9 million in costs primarily relate@purchases of capitalized information technolegyipment. This integration activity was
substantially completed in the first half of fis@@111.

The following table summarizes the final purchaseepallocation related to the MEN Business, bamethe estimated fair value of the
acquired assets and assumed liabilities (in thaisan

Final
Allocation
Unbilled receivables $ 7,13¢
Inventories 146,27.
Prepaid expenses and other 32,51°
Other long-term assets 21,92
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 41,21
Developed technology 218,77:
In-process research and development 11,00(
Customer relationships, outstanding purchase oateiontracts 260,59;
Trade name 2,00(
Deferred revenue (28,08¢)
Accrued liabilities (33,845
Other long-term obligations (2,644
Total purchase price allocation $ 676,85

Unbilled receivables represent unbilled claimsvibich Ciena, subsequent to the effective date@MEN Acquisition date, invoiced
customers upon completion of the acquired projects.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, Ciexerded the acquired finished goods inventoryiawtdue, which was determined to
most appropriately recognized as the estimatethgaitice less the sum of (a) costs of disposal, () a reasonable profit allowance for
Ciena's selling effort.

Prepaid expenses and other include product denatiostiunits used to support research and developpnejects and indemnification
assets related to uncertain tax contingencies eatjand recorded as part of other long-term ohbtigat Other longerm assets represent spz
used to support customer maintenance commitments.

Developed technology represents purchased technitiiag) had reached technological feasibility andadbich development had been
completed as of the date of the acquisition. Deyadictechnology will be amortized on a straight lrasis over its estimated useful lives of twe
to seven years.

In-process research and development representtogenent projects that had not reached technolodgedibility at the time of the

acquisition. This in-process research and developmas completed during the fourth quarter of fig¥ 0 and is being amortized over a
period of seven years . Expenditures to complatertiprocess research and development were expassedurred.
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Customer relationships, outstanding purchase oataontracts represent agreements with existisgpmers of the MEN Business.
These intangible assets are expected to have éstimsaeful lives of nine months to seven yearsh thie exception of $14.6 million related to
a contract asset for acquired in-process projedteh was subsequently billed by Ciena and recaghé&s a reduction in revenue. Trade name
represents acquired product trade names that pextad to have a useful life of nine months .

Deferred revenue represents obligations assumeédna to provide maintenance support services foclwpayment for such services |
already been made to Nortel.

Accrued liabilities represent assumed warrantygattions, other customer contract obligations, athin employee benefit plans. Other
long-term obligations represent uncertain tax caygncies.

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortitan summarizes the results of operations for #réog indicated as if Ciena's
acquisition of the MEN Business had been complagedf the beginning of the period presented. Theséorma amounts (in thousands) do
not purport to be indicative of the results thatldohave actually been obtained if the acquisitionurred as of the beginning of the period
presented or that may be obtained in the future.

Fiscal Year
2010
Pro forma revenue $ 1,592,91
Pro forma net loss $ (536,25

(3) RESTRUCTURING COSTS

Ciena has undertaken a number of restructuringitiet intended to reduce expense and better @Bgmorkforce and costs with market
opportunities, product development and businessesfies. The following table displays the activtyd balances of the historical restructuring
liability accounts for the fiscal years indicatéd thousands):

Consolidation

Workforce of excess

reduction facilities Total
Balance at October 31, 2009 $ 17¢ $ 9,43t $ 9,60t
Additional liability recorded 9,25¢ (a) — 9,25¢
Adjustment to previous estimates — (742) (a) (742)
Cash payments (7,850 (2,30)) (10,15))
Balance at October 31, 2010 1,57¢ 6,397 7,96¢
Additional liability recorded 6,627 (b) — 6,62
Adjustment to previous estimates — (84¢€) (b) (84€)
Cash payments (8,04) (2,257%) (10,29¢)
Balance at October 31, 2011 16C 3,29: 3,45:
Additional liability recorded 5,48¢ (c) 2,37C (c) 7,85¢
Adjustment to previous estimates — — —
Cash payments (4,19%) (2,069) (6,25¢)
Balance at October 31, 2012 $ 1,44¢ $ 3,60( $ 5,04¢
Current restructuring liabilities $ 1,44¢ $ 2,061 $ 3,51¢
Non-current restructuring liabilities $ — $ 1,53t $ 1,53t
(a) During fiscal 2010, Ciena recorded a chargg2of million related to a workforce reduction ppaoximately 70 employees,

principally affecting Ciena’s global product groapd global field organization outside of the EMEgion and $7.1 million related to
a workforce reduction of 82 employees associaték thie restructuring activities in the EMEA regidescribed above and an
adjustment of $0.7 million associated with previgusstructured facilities.
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(b) During fiscal 2011, Ciena recorded a charg®66 million of severance and other employee-gela@bsts associated with a workforce
reduction of approximately 150 employees relatea mumber of restructuring activities intendeddaduce operating expense and
better align its workforce with market opportursti€iena also recorded an adjustment of $0.8 miliedated to its previous
restructured Acton, Massachusetts facility.

(c) During fiscal 2012, Ciena recorded a charg®%% million of severance and other employee-eelabsts associated with a workforce
reduction of approximately 135 employees relatea mumber of restructuring activities intendeddduce operating expense and
better align its workforce with market opportuniti€iena also recorded an adjustment of $2.4 miligated to its consolidation of
several facilities in the Linthicum, Maryland area.

(4) LONG-LIVED ASSET IMPAIRMENTS

Due to the reorganization as a result of the MENuWsition, Ciena performed an impairment analy$igsdong-lived assets during the
second quarter of fiscal 2010. Based on Cienaimast of future undiscounted cash flows by assatigrno impairment was required. Due to
the lack of a triggering event, no impairment as@yas performed in fiscal 2011 or 2012.

(5) SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

As of October 31, 2011, long-term investmentscamprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31, 2011

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair
Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value
US government obligations $ 49,93 $ 331 % — % 50,26
$ 49,93 $ 331 $ — 8 50,26¢

As of October 31, 2012, short-term investmentseHaal legal maturities of less than one year ardcomprised of the following (in
thousands):

October 31, 2012

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair
Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value
US government obligations $ 49,98 $ 70 $ — % 50,057
$ 4998 $ 70 % — 8 50,05°

(6) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

As of the date indicated, the following table sumimes the fair value of assets that are recordéaiatalue on a recurring basis (in
thousands):

October 31, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
U.S government obligations $ 50,26: $ — ¢ — 3 50,26
Embedded redemption feature — — 7,02( 7,02(
Total assets measured at fair value $ 50,26¢ $ — 3 7,020 $ 57,28«
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October 31, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
U.S. government obligations $ 50,057 $ — $ — 3 50,05"
Embedded redemption feature — — 42C 42(
Total assets measured at fair value $ 50,057 $ — 9 42C $ 50,47

As of the dates indicated, the assets above wesepted on Ciena’s Consolidated Balance Sheetlaw$din thousands):

October 31, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Long-term investments $ 50,26: $ — ¢ — 3 50,26
Other long-term assets — — 7,02( 7,02(
Total assets measured at fair value $ 50,26¢ $ — 3 7,02C $ 57,28«
October 31, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota

Assets:

Short-term investments $ 50,057 $ — $ — $ 50,05}

Other long-term assets — — 42C 42(

Total assets measured at fair value $ 50,057 $ — 9 42C $ 50,47

Ciena’s Level 3 assets included in other long-tessets reflect an embedded redemption featureigedtaithin Ciena’s 4.0%onvertible
senior notes. See Note 13 below. The embedded miaenieature is bifurcated from Ciena’s 4.0% catitde senior notes using the “with-
and-without” approach. As such, the total valu¢hefembedded redemption feature is calculatedeagditference between the value of the
4.0% convertible senior notes (the “Hybrid Instruntigand the value of an identical instrument withthe embedded redemption feature (the
“Host Instrument”). Both the Host Instrument and thiybrid Instrument are valued using a modifiecbbiral model. The modified binomial

model utilizes a risk free interest rate, an imghh®latility of Ciena’s stock, the recovery ratd$onds and the implied default intensity of the
4.0% convertible senior notes.

As of the dates indicated, the following table getth, in thousands, the reconciliation of chanigelsevel 3 assets recorded at fair value:

Level 3
Balance at October 31, 2011 $ 7,02(

Issuances

Settlements —
Changes in unrealized gain (6,600
Transfers into Level 3

Transfers out of Level 3

Balance at October 31, 2012 $ 42C

(7) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Ciena has not historically experienced a signifiaanount of bad debt expense. The following tablarsarizes the activity in Ciena’s
allowance for doubtful accounts for the fiscal yeimdicated (in thousands):
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Year ended Balance at beginning Net Balance at end of
October 31, of period Provisions Deductions period
2010 $ 11¢ $ 1 $ — 117
2011 $ 117 % 1,69¢ $ 1,11 % 701
2012 $ 701 % 1,647 $ 84t $ 1,50(¢

(8) INVENTORIES

As of the dates indicated, inventories are comgrafethe following (in thousands):

October 31,
2011 2012

Raw materials $ 4533: $ 39,67¢
Work-in-process 13,85: 10,73¢
Finished goods 134,99¢ 178,21(
Deferred cost of goods sold 67,66¢ 71,48«
261,84 300,10t

Provision for excess and obsolescence (31,779 (40,010
$ 230,07¢ $ 260,09t

Ciena writes down its inventory for estimated obsoknce or unmarketable inventory by an amount ¢gtize difference between the ¢
of inventory and the estimated market value baseassumptions about future demand and market ¢onslitDuring fiscal 2010 and fiscal
2011, recorded provisions for inventory reservesanwprimarily related to changes in forecastedssalecertain products. During fiscal 2012 ,
recorded provisions for inventory reserves wermprily related to engineering design changes aadligcontinuance of certain parts and
components used in the manufacture of our Packdt&@dransport and Packet-Optical Switching pradubeductions from the provision for
excess and obsolete inventory relate to disposizitaes.

The following table summarizes the activity in Giésreserve for excess and obsolete inventory fofisbal years indicated (in thousanc

Balance at
Year ended beginning of Balance at
October 31, period Provisions Disposals end of period
2010 $ 24,00 $ 13,69¢ $ 6,931 $ 30,76%
2011 $ 30,767 $ 17,33 $ 16,33( $ 31,771
2012 $ 31,77 $ 23,43t $ 15,19¢ $ 40,01(

(9) PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER

As of the dates indicated, prepaid expenses aret ate comprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2011 2012
Prepaid VAT and other taxes $ 44,96¢ $ 37,80¢
Deferred deployment expense 17,83¢ 19,44¢
Product demonstration equipment, net 46,99¢ 33,14«
Prepaid expenses 14,76¢ 16,47"
Restricted cash 12,531 2,03(
Other non-trade receivables 6,251 8,68¢
$ 14335 $ 117,59!
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Depreciation of product demonstration equipment $48 million , $9.7 million and $7.8 million forstcal 2010 , 2011 and 2012 ,
respectively.

(10) EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE AND FIXTURES

As of the dates indicated, equipment, furniture fixtdres are comprised of the following (in thoods):

October 31,
2011 2012
Equipment, furniture and fixtures $ 396,31( $ 422,11
Leasehold improvements 50,38( 61,49:
446,69( 483,61:
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (324,13) (360,03)
$ 122,55¢ $ 123,58(

During fiscal 2010 , fiscal 2011 and fiscal 20X2iena recorded depreciation of equipment, furniture fixtures, and amortization of
leasehold improvements of $38.5 million , $50.5lioml and $51.3 million , respectively.

(11) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of the dates indicated, intangible assets amgpcged of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2011 2012
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Intangible Amortization Intangible Intangible Amortization Intangible

Developed technology $ 417,830 $ (234,39) $ 183,44( $ 417,83 $ (279,19) ¢ 138,63
Patents and licenses 46,53¢ (45,320 1,21¢ 46,53¢ (45,56¢) 972
Customer relationships, covenants no

compete, outstanding purchase order:

and contracts 323,57: (176,594 146,97 323,57¢ (206,04¢) 117,52
Total intangible assets $ 787,94 $ (456,309 $ 331,63 % 787,94: $ (530,80) $ 257,13

The aggregate amortization expense of intangildetasvas $127.0 million , $95.9 million and $74 i8iom for fiscal 2010 , fiscal 2011
and fiscal 2012 , respectively. Expected future rizettion of intangible assets for the fiscal yeiadicated is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended October 31,

2013 $ 71,30¢
2014 57,15:
2015 52,87¢
2016 52,87¢
2017 22,78:
Thereafter 13¢€

$ 257,13

(12) OTHER BALANCE SHEET DETAILS

As of the dates indicated, other long-term assetg@mprised of the following (in thousands):
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October 31,
2011 2012
Maintenance spares inventory, net $ 50,44: $ 57,54¢
Deferred debt issuance costs, net 23,48: 20,57t
Embedded redemption feature 7,02( 42(
Restricted cash 27,50° 2,41
Other 5,67 3,78(
$ 114,12 $ 84,73t

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized usegtthight line method which approximates the ¢fdéthe effective interest rate method
through the maturity of the related debt. Amori@atof debt issuance costs related to our conuertibtes payable, which is included in
interest expense, was $3.8 million , $5.3 milliow 5.3 million for fiscal 2010 , fiscal 2011 arisical 2012 , respectively.

As of the dates indicated, accrued liabilities @mprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2011 2012
Warranty $ 47,28: $ 55,13:
Compensation, payroll related tax and benefits 51,80¢ 48,88!
Vacation 27,80¢ 29,58
Current restructuring liabilities 664 3,51¢
Interest payable 4,24¢ 4,40¢
Other 65,19« 68,02:
$ 197,00: $ 209,54(

The following table summarizes the activity in Gié&naccrued warranty for the fiscal years indicgtedhousands):

Year ended Beginning Balance at end

October 31, Balance Acquired Provisions Settlements of period
2010 $ 40,19¢ $ 24,041 % 15,35! $ 2521¢ % 54,37:
2011 $ 54,37 $ —  $ 18,45, % 2554. % 47,28:
2012 $ 47,28: $ — 3 33,41¢ $ 2556¢ $ 55,13:

As a result of the substantial completion of ingigin activities related to the MEN Business, Cieoasolidated certain support operations
and processes during fiscal 2011, resulting irdaiggon in costs to service future warranty obligras. As a result of the lower expected costs,
Ciena reduced its warranty liability by $6.9 millipwhich had the effect of reducing the provisionthe table above. The increase in fiscal

2012 warranty provision was driven primarily byesathat included longer-term support obligationd ehnical support requirements from
additional geographies.

As of the dates indicated, deferred revenue is ¢ of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2011 2012
Products $ 42,91 $ 29,27¢
Services 80,88: 77,79
123,79t 107,07t
Less current portion (99,377 (79,516
Long-term deferred revenue $ 24,42¢  § 27,56(

(13) CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
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Outstanding Convertible Notes Payable

Ciena has fouissuances of convertible notes payable outstandimg.notes are senior unsecured obligations ofeCaerd rank equally wil
all of Ciena’s other existing and future senioremged debt. The indentures governing Ciena’s rmtagde for customary events of default
which include (subject in certain cases to custgngaace and cure periods), among others, the faligwnonpayment of principal or interest;
breach of covenants or other agreements in theninde defaults in or failure to pay certain othmetebtedness; and certain events of
bankruptcy or insolvency. Generally, if an eventlefault occurs and is continuing, the trusteénerholders of at least 25% in aggregate
principal amount of the notes may declare the adof, accrued interest on, and premium, if amyall the notes immediately due and
payable. Under the indentures, if Ciena undergdésnalamental change” (as that term is definechmindenture governing the notes to
include certain change in control transactionsilés of notes will have the right, subject to agrtexemptions, to require Ciena to purchase
for cash any or all of their notes at a price eqodhe principal amount, plus accrued intereghdfholder elects to convert his or her notes in
connection with a specified fundamental changegiain circumstances, Ciena will be required twease the applicable conversion rate,
depending on the price paid per share for Cienammmstock and the effective date of the fundamenfitahge transaction.

0.25%Convertible Senior Notes due May 1, 2013

On April 10, 2006, Ciena completed a public offgriof 0.25% convertible senior notes due May 1, 20i13aggregate principal amount of
$300.0 million . Interest is payable on May 1 aral/Bimber 1 of each year.

At the election of the holder, notes may be comgeprior to maturity into shares of Ciena commalstat the initial conversion rate of
25.3001 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, wli@quivalent to an initial conversion price 883255 per share. The notes may be
redeemed by Ciena if the closing sale price of &@&nommon stock for at least 20 trading days yn2hconsecutive trading day period enc
on the date one day prior to the date of the naticedemption exceeds 130% of the conversion pGoena may redeem the notes in whole or
in part, at a redemption price in cash equal toptirecipal amount to be redeemed, plus accrueclapdid interest.

Ciena used approximately $28.5 million of the nmefceeds of this offering to purchase a call spagattbn on its common stock that is
intended to limit exposure to potential dilutioorn the conversion of the notes. See Note 16 bedow flescription of this call spread option.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, Cienaueghased $81.8 million in aggregate principal ant@fiits outstanding 0.25% convertible
senior notes in privately negotiated transactiarisch resulted in a gain of approximately $4.9 ioill. As of October 31, 2012 , the
outstanding principal on these notes was $216.2omil

4.0%Convertible Senior Notes, due March 15, 2015

On March 15, 2010, Ciena completed a private placerof 4.0% convertible senior notes due March2D35, in aggregate principal
amount of $375.0 million . Interest is payable ba hotes on March 15 and September 15 of eachlyeginning on September 15, 2010.

At the election of the holder, the notes may beveated prior to maturity into shares of Ciena comrstock at the initial conversion rate of
49.0557 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, wli@quivalent to an initial conversion price ppeoximately $20.38 per share. The notes
may be redeemed by Ciena on or after March 15, #h8 closing sale price of Ciena’s common stfrkat least 20 trading days in any 30
consecutive trading day period ending on the dageday prior to the date of the notice of redemméirceeds 150% of the conversion price.
Ciena may redeem the notes in whole or in pa#,rademption price in cash equal to the principabant to be redeemed, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, including any additional interestbut excluding, the redemption date, plus a makele premium payment. Thatake whole
premium” payment will be made in cash and equaptiesent value of the remaining interest paymeatsyaturity, computed using a discount
rate equal to 2.75% . The make-whole premium id pmholders whether or not they convert the nfiitbswing Ciena'’s issuance of a
redemption notice. For accounting purposes, tldemgtion feature is an embedded derivative thadilearly and closely related to the nc
Consequently, it was initially bifurcated from timelenture and separately recorded at its fair vakian asset with subsequent changes in fair
value recorded through earnings. As of Octobe2B1? , the fair value of the embedded redemptiatufe was $0.4 million and is included in
other long-term assets on the Consolidated Bal8heet. Changes in fair value of the embedded reti@migature in the amount of $6.6
million are reflected as interest and other incdloss), net in the Consolidated Statement of O@ratduring fiscal 2012 .

The net proceeds from the offering of the notesevi&64.3 million after deducting the placement &&jdaes and other fees and expenses
Ciena used $243.8 million of this amount to fursdpfiyment election to replace its contractual @ik to issue convertible notes to Nortel as
part of the aggregate purchase price for the aitiguiof the MEN Business. The remaining proceeésenused to reduce the cash on hand
required to fund the aggregate purchase pricesofMBN Business. See Note 2 above.
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0.875%Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2017

On June 11, 2007, Ciena completed a public offesin@ 875%convertible senior notes due June 15, 2017, ineggde principal amount
$500.0 million . Interest is payable on June 15Brdember 15 of each year, beginning on Decemhe2((% .

At the election of the holder, notes may be comgeprior to maturity into shares of Ciena commalstat the initial conversion rate of
26.2154 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, wli@quivalent to an initial conversion price ppeoximately $38.15 per share. The notes
are not redeemable by Ciena prior to maturity.

Ciena used approximately $42.5 million of the nmeftceeds of this offering to purchase a call spagatthn on its common stock that is
intended to limit exposure to potential dilutionrin conversion of the notes. See Note 16 below fteszription of this call spread option.

3.75%Convertible Senior Notes, due October 15, 2018

On October 18, 2010, Ciena completed a privatesphent of 3.75% convertible senior notes due OctttbeP018, in aggregate principal
amount of $350.0 million . Interest is payable ba hotes on April 15 and October 15 of each yesgiriming on April 15, 2011.

At the election of the holder, the notes may beveadted prior to maturity into shares of Ciena comrstock at the initial conversion rate of
49.5872 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, wls@quivalent to an initial conversion price ppeoximately $20.17 per share.

The net proceeds from the offering were approxitg&840.4 million after deducting the placementragefees and other fees and
expenses. Ciena used $76.1 million of the net o effect the repurchase of its 0.25% conversibnior notes due 2013 described above

The following table sets forth, in thousands, therying value and the estimated current fair valfi€iena’s outstanding convertible notes:

October 31, 2012

Description Carrying Value Fair Value
0.25% Convertible Senior Notes due May 1, 2013 $ 216,21 $ 213,23
4.0% Convertible Senior Notes, due March 15, 2015 375,80t 397,88!
0.875% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2017 500,00( 425,62!
3.75% Convertible Senior Notes, due October 158201 350,00t 360,06:

$ 1,442,010 $ 1,396,81

(1) Includes unamortized bond premium related to eméededemption featu
The fair value reported above is based on the quoggrket price for the notes on the date above.
(14) CREDIT FACILITY

On August 13, 2012 (the “Closing Date”), Ciena ardain of its subsidiaries, including Ciena Cominations, Inc. and Ciena Canada,
Inc. (with Ciena, collectively, the “Borrowers”)ntered into asset-based lending (ABL) facility axeécuted an ABL Credit Agreement (the
“Credit Agreement”with the lenders party thereto, including DeutsBlaak AG New York Branch, as administrative agert eollateral ager
(the “Agent”), Bank of America, N.A., as Syndicatidgent, and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Ind. \fells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as Co-Documentation Agents. The Crkditement provides for a senior secured assetlraselving credit facility of up to
$150 million (the “Credit Facility”). Ciena has tloption to increase the total commitment underGhedit Facility to $200 million , subject to
certain conditions, including obtaining commitmefntsn one or more lenders. The Credit Agreementiges that the entire amount of the
Credit Facility is available for issuances of lestef credit, and allows for both swingline loaaed Canadian dollar denominated loans
to Ciena's Canadian subsidiary (the “Canadian Beert) in an amount not to exceed $20 million . Gigaincipally expects to use the Credit
Facility to support the issuance of letters of drdtht arise in the ordinary course of its businasd thereby to reduce its use of cash to suppc
and collateralize these instruments. As of Oct@ierR012 , letters of credit totaling $50.8 millivere collateralized by the Credit Facility.
There are no borrowings outstanding under the CFeiility as of October 31, 2012 .
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Availability under the Credit Facility is based upmonthly (or weekly, in certain cases) borrowiragé certifications valuing the
Borrowers' eligible inventory and eligible accourgseivable, as reduced by certain reserves ictdffem time to time. Outstanding
borrowings under the Credit Facility accrue inteetdloating rates plus an applicable margin raggrom 2.00% to 2.50% for LIBOR rate
loans, and 1.00% to 1.50% for base rate loansc@henitment fee payable on the unused portion ofttealit Facility equals 0.50% 6r375%
based on utilization of the Credit Facility and Bavers will pay customary letter of credit fees.

The Credit Facility matures on August 13, 2015yjted that it will mature early on (i) January 2013, if any of Ciena's 0.25% senior
convertible notes due May 1, 2013 are then out#tgrahd Ciena is unable to meet certain finanaiédiga with respect to its cash position at
that time, or (ii) December 15, 2014, if any of @& 4.00% senior convertible notes due March @55 2re then outstanding. Ciena expects t
satisfy the financial criteria such that the Creditility will not early mature on January 31, 2013

On the Closing Date, Ciena and Ciena Communicatioes entered into a U.S. Guaranty in favor of Agent, providing an unconditional
guaranty of all amounts owing under the Credit RgciCiena Canada entered into a similar guaramfavor of the Agent with respect to the
Canadian Borrower's obligations. These agreemeaysraguire additional subsidiary guarantors inftitare. In addition, Ciena, the other
domestic Borrowers and the Agent entered into ansgcAgreement and a Pledge Agreement on the @dpBiate. Pursuant to the Security
Agreement and Pledge Agreement, the obligatiorGi@fia and the other domestic Borrowers and theagtees by the domestic guarantors ar
secured by first priority security interests (sabjenly to customary permitted liens and certalmeopermitted liens) in substantially all current
assets of Ciena, the other domestic Borrowersldamestic guarantors, such property consistiragodunts receivable, inventory, cash,
deposit and securities accounts, chattel papemipsory notes and payment intangibles and, tosxteneevidencing or otherwise related to
such property, all general intangibles, licensetsef of credit rights, commercial tort claims,tmsnents, supporting obligations and docume
Pursuant to a Canadian Security Agreement entatedn the Closing Date by and between Ciena Caaaddhe Agent, similar assets of the
Canadian Borrower secure the obligations of thea@&m Borrower.

The Credit Agreement contains customary covenaatslitnit, absent lender approval, the ability 6éta and certain of its affiliates to,
among other things, pay cash dividends, incur debgte liens and encumbrances, redeem or repershask, enter into certain acquisition
transactions or transactions with affiliates, merdissolve, repay certain indebtedness, changeature of Ciena's business, make investment
or dispose of assets. In some cases, these riesisieire subject to certain negotiated exceptioqeonit Ciena to undertake otherwise
restricted activities if it satisfies certain rexgad conditions. In addition, Ciena will be requitednaintain a minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio of not less than 1.0 to 1a8 of the end of any period of four fiscal quartehen excess availability under the Credit Facilitjess than tf
greater of (i) 12.5% of availability or (ii) $15,0@00 . Ciena is also required to maintain atiales at least $200 million in the aggregate of
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents.

If (x) excess availability under the Credit Fagilis less than the greater of (i) 12.5% of avaligbor (ii) $15,000,000 or (y) there exists an
event of default, amounts in any of the Borrowersubsidiary guarantors' designated core deposituats will be transferred daily into a
blocked account held by the Agent and applied doice outstanding amounts under the Credit Facility.

The Credit Agreement contains customary eventef#udt including, among other things, failure to mdbligations when due, initiation of
bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, defaultsemain other indebtedness, change of control, reciwe of certain material judgments that
are not stayed, satisfied, bonded or dischargddm®0 days, certain ERISA events, invalidity o tredit documents, and violation of
affirmative and negative covenants or breach ofesgntations and warranties set forth in the Crsglieement. Upon an event of default, the
lenders may, subject to various customary curdsjgkquire the immediate payment of all amountstanding and foreclose on collateral.

Ciena recorded $2.7 million of debt issuance cadtged to the credit facility agreement of which3million has been paid.

(15) EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE CALCULATION

The following table (in thousands except per slameunts) is a reconciliation of the numerator a@daogninator of the basic net income
(loss) per common share (“Basic EPS”) and the elilutet income (loss) per potential common shardyt& EPS”). Since the numerator
reflects net losses for the fiscal years indicalbedh Basic EPS and Diluted EPS are computed ubmweighted average number of common
shares outstanding. If the numerator reflectednuetme, Diluted
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EPS would also include, to the extent the effeabisanti-dilutive, the following: (i) shares issl@ upon vesting of restricted stock units, (ii)
shares issuable under Ciena's employee stock ma¢han and upon exercise of outstanding stockegtiusing the treasury stock method,;
(i) shares underlying Ciena's outstanding corikkrtnotes.

Numerator
Year Ended October 31,
2010 2011 2012
Net loss $ (333519 $ (195,52) $ (144,02)

Denominator

Year Ended October 31,

2010 2011 2012
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 93,10: 95,85« 99,34
Dilutive weighted average shares outstanding 93,10¢ 95,85« 99,34.
EPS

Year Ended October 31,

2010 2011 2012
Basic EPS $ (3.5¢ ¢ (209 $ (2.4%)
Diluted EPS $ (359 $ (209 % (1.4%)

The following table summarizes the weighted aversdgaes excluded from the calculation of the denator for Diluted EPS due to their
anti-dilutive effect for the fiscal years indicat@d thousands):

Year Ended October 31,

2010 2011 2012
Shares underlying stock options and restricteckstoés 7,391 6,141 5,72¢
0.25% Convertible Senior Notes due May 1, 2013 7,454 5,47( 5,47(
4.00% Convertible Senior Notes due March 15, 2015 11,60¢ 18,39 18,39
0.875% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2017 13,10¢ 13,10¢ 13,10¢
3.75% Convertible Senior Notes due October 15, 2018 717 17,35¢ 17,35¢
Total excluded due to anti-dilutive effect 40,28: 60,47( 60,05¢

(16) STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Call Spread Options

Ciena holds two call spread options on its comntoaksrelating to the shares issuable upon convesidwo issues of convertible notes.
These call spread options are designed to mitigggtesure to potential dilution from the conversafithese notes. Ciena purchased a call
spread option relating to the 0.25% convertiblégemotes due May 1, 2013 for $28.5 million durihg second quarter of fiscal 2006. Ciena
purchased a call spread option relating to theS¥@Zonvertible senior notes due June 15, 20174@r3million during the third quarter of
fiscal 2007. In each case, the call spread optimre purchased at the time of the notes offeriomfan affiliate of the underwriter. The cost of
each call spread option was recorded as a reductipaid-in capital.

Each call spread option is exercisable, upon ntgtafithe relevant issue of convertible notes,siach number of shares of Ciena common
stock issuable upon conversion of that series tdaim full. Each call spread option has a “lowteike price” equal to the conversion price for
the notes and a “higher strike price” that sereesap the amount of dilution protection provided itd election, Ciena can exercise the call
spread options on a net cash basis or a net shai® bhe value of the consideration of a net sbetttement will be equal to the value upon a
net cash settlement and can range from $0 , ifntwket price per share of Ciena common stock upercese is equal to or below the lower
strike price, to approximately $45.7 million (iretbase of the April 2006 call spread option) orrapipnately $76.1 million (in the case of the
June 2007 call spread option), if the market ppieeshare of Ciena common stock upon exerciseasabove the higher strike price. If the
market price on the date of exercise is betweelothlier strike price and the higher strike priceliéu of a net settlement, Ciena may elect to
receive the full number of shares underlying thesgaead option by paying the aggregate optiorr@se
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price, which is equal to the original principal stainding on that series of notes. Should therslmady unwind of the call spread option, the
amount of cash or shares to be received by Cielhaeygiend upon the existing overall market condsicand on Ciena’s stock price, the
volatility of Ciena’s stock and the remaining teofrthe call spread option. The number of sharegestibo the call spread options, and the
lower and higher strike prices, are subject toamstry adjustments.

(17) INCOME TAXES

For the periods indicated, the provision (bendditiincome taxes consists of the following (in teands):

October 31,
2010 2011 2012
Provision for income taxes:
Current:
Federal $ 919 ¢ 199 $ —
State 228 (518 857
Foreign 1,93¢ 8,20: 8,46¢
Total current 1,241 7,49( 9,32:
Deferred:
Federal 70C 16C —
State — 23 —
Foreign — — —
Total deferred 70C 182 —
Provision for income taxes $ 1,941 § 7,670 $ 9,32:

For the periods indicated, income (loss) beforevigion for income taxes consists of the following thousands):

October 31,
2010 2011 2012
United States $ (317,899 ¢ (240,24 $ (151,959
Foreign (13,6749 52,39¢ 17,25¢
Total $ (33157) ¢ (187,849 $ (134,699

For the periods indicated, the tax provision (b#hefconciles to the amount computed by multiplyincome or loss before income taxes
by the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% as fotlow

October 31,
2010 2011 2012
Provision at statutory rate 35.00 % 35.00% 35.0( %
State taxes (0.0)% 0.27% (0.69)%
Foreign taxes (4.560% 2.32% (5.09%
Research and development credit 2.5% 11.0:% 10.21%
Non-deductible compensation and other (1.49% (3.96% (4.92%
Valuation allowance (32.07)% (48.7)% (41.49%
Effective income tax rate (0.59% (4.06)% (6.99%

The significant components of deferred tax assaddiabilities are as follows (in thousands):
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October 31,
2011 2012
Deferred tax assets:

Reserves and accrued liabilities $ 30,637 $ 44,12¢
Depreciation and amortization 259,89¢ 276,71(
NOL and credit carry forward 1,154,57 1,142,64
Other 22,30¢ 25,50¢
Gross deferred tax assets 1,467,41 1,488,99.
Valuation allowance (1,467,41) (1,488,99)

$ — % —

Net deferred tax asset

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofntinrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest penalties, is as follows (in
thousands):

Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2009 $ 6,18¢
Increase related to positions taken in prior period 26
Increase related to positions taken in currentopleri 3,38:
Reductions related to expiration of statute of fations (2,156
Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2010 7,44;
Increase related to positions taken in prior period (450
Increase related to positions taken in currentopleri 1,84
Reductions related to expiration of statute of fations (249
Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2011 8,59(
Increase related to positions taken in prior period (12
Increase related to positions taken in currentoleri 2,86¢
Reductions related to expiration of statute of fations (392

$ 11,05:

Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2012

As of October 31, 2011 and 2012 , Ciena had accs@edmillion and $1.4 million , respectively, otérest and some minor penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits within otloeigkterm liabilities in the Consolidated Balance&ts. A charge of $0.2 million , a benefit of
$0.3 million , and a charge of $0.3 million of irgst were recorded to the provision for income sakering fiscal 2010, 2011 and 2012,
respectively. If recognized, the entire balancerokcognized tax benefits would impact the effectax rate. Over the next 12 months, Ciena
does not estimate any material changes in unrezedincome tax benefits.

During fiscal 2002, Ciena established a valuatitoweance against its deferred tax assets. Ciemads to maintain a valuation allowance
until sufficient positive evidence exists to sugporeversal. Any future release of the valuatiboweance may be recorded as a tax benefit
increasing net income or as an adjustment to paddpital, based on tax ordering requirements.félh@wing table summarizes the activity in
Ciena’s valuation allowance against its gross defketax assets (in thousands):

Year ended Balance at beginning Balance at end
October 31, of period Additions Deductions of period
2010 $ 1,198,060 $ 165,42t $ — 1,363,49:
2011 $ 1,363,49. $ 103,91t $ — % 1,467,41.
2012 $ 1,467,41 $ 21,58: $ — 3 1,488,99.

As of October 31, 2012, Ciena had a $2.8 billiehaperating loss carry forward and a $0.1 biliimcome tax credit carry forward which
begin to expire in fiscal year 2018 and 2013, regpely. Ciena’s ability to use net operating lass@d credit carry forwards is subject to
limitations pursuant to the ownership change rofabe Internal Revenue Code Section 382.
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The income tax provision does not reflect the &xrggs resulting from deductions associated win@k equity compensation and the «
spread option associated with Ciena’s convertiblet.dThe cumulative tax benefit through October28,2 of approximately $78.0 million
will be credited to additional paid-in capital whesalized. For deductions associated with Ciengistg compensation, credits to paid-in
capital will be recorded when those tax benefitsiesed to reduce taxes payable.

(18) SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE

Ciena grants equity awards under its 2008 Omnibosritive Plan and the Amended and Restated Empiges Purchase Plan (“ESBHP”

2008 Plan

The 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2008 Planithorizes the issuance of awards including st@tions, restricted stock units (RSU
restricted stock, unrestricted stock, stock apptém rights (SARs) and other equity and/or casfiopmance incentive awards to employees,
directors, and consultants of Ciena. Subject ttagerestrictions, the Compensation Committee efRloard of Directors has broad discretio
establish the terms and conditions for awards utide2008 Plan, including the number of sharegjngsonditions and the required service
performance criteria. Options and SARs have a maxirterm of ten years , and their exercise price nabe less than 100% of fair market
value on the date of grant. Repricing of stockamiand SARs is prohibited without stockholder apal. Certain change in control
transactions may cause awards granted under tt&R1860 to vest, unless the awards are continuedhmstituted for in connection with the
transaction.

The 2008 Plan reserves 18.5 million shares of comstack for issuance, subject to increase from timtéme by the number of shares:
(i) subject to outstanding awards granted unden&geprior equity compensation plans that termiméthout delivery of any stock (to the
extent such shares would have been availabledoaisce under such prior plan), and (ii) subjeeivtards assumed or substituted in connet
with the acquisition of another company. The 20G&hcludes a fungible share feature that couats share of common stock underlying
full value awards, such as restricted stock uags].31shares for purposes of calculating the shares réngaavailable under the 2008 Plan.
of October 31, 2012 , approximately 7.0 million garemained available for issuance under the P08

Stock Options

Outstanding stock option awards to employees amergdly subject to service-based vesting restmstiand vest incrementally over a four
year period. The following table is a summary ofi@'s stock option activity for the periods indéct( shares in thousandgls

Shares Underlying Weighted
Options Average
Outstanding Exercise Price

Balance as of October 31, 2009 5,53t $ 45.8(
Granted 86 12.4:
Exercised (103) 5.21
Canceled (519 95.0(
Balance as of October 31, 2010 5,00z 40.9¢
Granted — —
Exercised (411) 14.8¢
Canceled (901) 97.6¢
Balance as of October 31, 2011 3,69( 30.01
Granted — —
Exercised (56) 6.72
Canceled (427) 51.2¢
Balance as of October 31, 2012 3,201 g 27.5¢

83




Table of Contents

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrfiscal 2010 , fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2012 wa®$0illion , $3.4 million and $0.5
million , respectively. The weighted average falue of each stock option granted by Ciena durisgaf 2010 was $6.94There were no stoc
options granted by Ciena during fiscal 2011 ordi012 .

The following table summarizes information withpest to stock options outstanding at October 3122Mased on Ciena’s closing stock
price on the last trading day of Ciena’s fiscal 2@d¢hares and intrinsic value in thousands):

Options Outstanding at Vested Options at
October 31, 2012 October 31, 2012
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number Remaining Weighted Number Remaining Weighted
Range of of Contractual Average Aggregate of Contractual Average Aggregate
Exercise Underlying Life Exercise Intrinsic Underlying Life Exercise Intrinsic
Price Shares (Years) Price Value Shares (Years) Price Value
$092 — % 16.31 31¢ 50z $ 8.4 % 1,44¢ 28¢€ 484 $ 8.1¢ $ 1,38i
$165:. — % 17.2¢ 38¢ 2.6¢ 16.6¢ — 38¢ 2.6¢ 16.6¢ —
$17.4: — 3 24.5( 52¢ 2.4¢ 20.4¢ — 52¢ 2.4¢ 20.4¢ —
$246¢ — % 28.2¢ 40€ 3.67 27.0C — 40€ 3.67 27.0C —
$28.61 — $ 31.4: 19t 3.2C 29.8( — 19t 3.2C 29.8( —
$31.717 — % 32.5¢ 50¢€ 0.31 31.72 — 50¢€ 0.31 31.72 —
$33.0( — % 37.1(C 34t 3.8¢ 35.1¢ = 34t 3.8¢ 35.1¢ =
$3731 — & 47.3C 487 1.9 44.8: — 487 1.9 44.8: —
$475: — % 55.7¢ 32 0.8C 49.3¢ = 32 0.8C 49.3¢ —
$092 — $ 5B57¢ 3,207 266 $ 275¢ $  144f 3,17¢ 262 ¢ 2770 $ 1,38

Assumptions for Option-Based Awards

Ciena recognizes the fair value of service-baseidiapas share-based compensation expense onghttiae basis over the requisite
service period. During fiscal 2010, Ciena estimabtedfair value of each option award on the datgrafnt using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. Ciena did not grant any option-baaedrds during fiscal 2011 or fiscal 2012. Thedwling table lists the assumptions used in
valuing option-based awards granted in fiscal 2010:

Year Ended
October 31, 2010
Expected volatility 61.9%
Risk-free interest rate 2.0%-3.0%
Expected term (years) 5.3-5.5
Expected dividend yield 0.0%

Ciena considered the implied volatility and histativolatility of its stock price in determiningiexpected volatility, and, finding both to
be equally reliable, determined that a combinatibboth would result in the best estimate of expéatolatility.

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based wserved interest rates appropriate for the @égdderm of Ciena's employee stock
options.

The expected life of employee stock options reprissine weighted-average period the stock optioeegpected to remain outstanding.
Ciena uses historical information about specifiereise behavior of its grantees to determine tipeeted term.

The dividend yield assumption is based on Cienatsdy and expectation of dividend payouts.
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Because share-based compensation expense is rszob@nily for those awards that are ultimately etgubto vest, the amount of share-
based compensation expense recognized reflecthiatien for estimated forfeitures. Ciena estimétefeitures at the time of grant and revises
those estimates in subsequent periods based upoarrghanged information. Ciena relies upon histdrexperience in establishing forfeiture
rates. If actual forfeitures differ from currentigsates, total unrecognized shdrased compensation expense will be adjusted forduthange
in estimated forfeitures.

Restricted Stock Units

A restricted stock unit is a stock award that &githe holder to receive shares of Ciena comnmaok $ts the unit vests. Ciena's outstan
restricted stock unit awards are subject to sefased vesting conditions and/or performance-bassting conditions. Awards subject to
service-based conditions typically vest in increta@ver a three or four-year period. Awards withfgrenancebased vesting conditions reqt
the achievement of certain operational, financiadtber performance criteria or targets as a cardif vesting, or the acceleration of vesting,
of such awards. Ciena recognizes the estimateddaie of performance-based awards, net of estihfatéeitures, as share-based
compensation expense over the performance persifj graded vesting, which considers each perfocenaeriod or tranche separately, base
upon Ciena's determination of whether it is probabht the performance targets will be achievedeakh reporting period, Ciena reassesse
probability of achieving the performance targetd #re performance period required to meet thoggetsr

The following table is a summary of Ciena's restdcstock unit activity for the period indicated{iwthe aggregate fair value of the
balance outstanding at the end of each perioddb@s€iena's closing stock price on the last trgdiay of the relevant peridghares and
aggregate fair value in thousands

Weighted
Average
Restricted Grant Date
Stock Units Fair Value Aggregate Fair
Outstanding Per Share Value
Balance as of October 31, 2009 3,71¢ $ 14.6i 43,59
Granted 3,64:
Vested (1,84¢)
Canceled or forfeited (322)
Balance as of October 31, 2010 5,191 13.81 71,68:
Granted 2,06¢
Vested (2,46€)
Canceled or forfeited (497
Balance as of October 31, 2011 4,29¢ 16.2¢ 59,39¢
Granted 2,43:
Vested (1,917
Canceled or forfeited (41¢€)
Balance as of October 31, 2012 4,40t g 14.1¢  $ 56,26

The total fair value of restricted stock units thiaested and were converted into common stock ddisegl 2010 , fiscal 2011 and fiscal
2012 was $25.7 million , $45.3 million and $27.0lion , respectively. The weighted average faineabf each restricted stock unit granted by
Ciena during fiscal 2010 , fiscal 2011 and fisdal2 was $13.43 , $19.73 and $11.28 , respectively.

Assumptions for Restricted Stock Unit Awards

The fair value of each restricted stock unit awiardased on the closing price on the date of g&imdre-based expense for service-based
restricted stock unit awards is recognized, netstimated forfeitures, ratably over the vestingqzkon a straight-line basis.

Share-based expense for performance-based redtsictek unit awards, net of estimated forfeituresgcognized ratably over the
performance period based upon Ciena's determinafiamether it is probable that the performancgets will be achieved. At each reporting
period, Ciena reassesses the probability of aaiietvie performance targets and the performancegesuired to meet those targets. The
estimation of whether the performance targetshélbachieved involves judgment,
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and the estimate of expense is revised periodibalbed on the probability of achieving the perfarogatargets. Revisions are reflected in the
period in which the estimate is changed. If anyqrerance goals are not met, no compensation cadtinsately recognized against that goal
and, to the extent previously recognized, compénsabst is reversed.

2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the ESPP, eligible employees may enrolltimedve -month offer period that begins in Decemdued June of each year. Each offer
period includes two six -month purchase periodspleyees may purchase a limited number of sharéseo€ompany stock at 85% of the fair
market value on either the day immediately preagthe offer date or the purchase date, whicheviemisr. The ESPP is considered
compensatory for purposes of share-based compensatpense. In March 2012, Ciena stockholders apgran amendment and restatement
of the ESPP, extending the term to January 24, 2083ncreasing by 5.0 million the number of shagorized for issuance thereunder.
Pursuant to the ESPP's “evergreen” provision, oceBer 31 of each year, the number of shares blaimder the ESPP increases by up to
0.6 million shares, provided that the total numtfeshares available at that time shall not exce2dr8llion .

During fiscal 2010 , fiscal 2011 and fiscal 20XZigna issued 0.1 million, 0.5 million and 1.2 naflishares under the ESPP, respectively.
At October 31, 2012 , 7.6 million shares remaineailable for issuance under the ESPP.

Share-Based Compensation Expense for Periods Report

The following table summarizes share-based compiensaxpense for the periods indicated (in thousgind

Year Ended October 31,

2010 2011 2012
Product costs $ 2,14C $ 2,26¢ $ 2,15¢
Service costs 1,715 1,881 1,462
Share-based compensation expense included in tgsbds sold 3,851 4,15( 3,61¢
Research and development 9,31( 10,14¢ 8,561
Sales and marketing 10,95( 12,18: 11,55¢
General and administrative 9,95¢ 11,14( 8,691
Acquisition and integration costs 1,342 30¢ 7
Share-based compensation expense included in oeeaipense 31,56: 33,77¢ 28,82
Share-based compensation expense capitalizedentiony, net 142 1 47
Total share-based compensation $ 3556(  § 37,93C $ 32,39«

As of October 31, 2012 , total unrecognized comatois expense was $49.4 million : (i) $0.2 milliowhich relates to unvested stock
options and is expected to be recognized over ghteil-average period of 0.5 years; and (ii) $48ilRon , which relates to unvested
restricted stock units and is expected to be rezedrover a weighted-average period of 1.3 years.

(19) SEGMENT AND ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURES
Segment Reporting

Ciena’s chief operating decision maker, its chiefaitive officer, evaluates performance and alleeatsources based on multiple factors,
including segment profit (loss) information for tfwlowing product categories:

» Packe-Optical Transport —ncludes optical transport solutions that incre@esvork capacity and enable more rapid deliverst of
broader mix of high-bandwidth services. These pectglare used by network operators to facilitatecthst effective and efficient
transport of voice, video and data traffic in casgional, metro and access networks. Ciena's Rayical Transport products
support the efficient delivery of a wide varietyafhsumer-oriented network services, as well askayaged service and enterprise
applications. Ciena's principal products in thigreent include the 6500 Packet-Optical Platform,0428vanced Services Platform,
Corestream® Agility Optical Transport System, 5BR00 Advanced Services Platform, Common Photonjet 6CPL), and 6100
Multiservice Optical Platform. This segment alsolides sales from legacy SONET/SDH, transport atd detworking products, as
well as certain enterprise-oriented transport gmhgtthat support storage and LAN extension, imenection of data centers, and
virtual private networks. This segment also inckidperating system software and enhanced softwateres embedded in each of
these products. Revenue from this segment is iedlird product revenue on the Consolidated StatenfeBperations.
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» Packe-Optical Switching —includes optical switching platforms that enabléoanated optical infrastructures for the deliveryaofide
variety of enterprise and consumer-oriented netwgerkices. Ciena's principal products in this sagrirelude its family of
CoreDirector® Multiservice Optical Switches, itsIReconfigurable Switching System and its OTN mpmhtion for the 5410
Reconfigurable Switching System. These productsidecmultiservice, multi-protocol switching systethat consolidate the
functionality of an add/drop multiplexer, digitaloss-connect and packet switch into a single, kgacity intelligent switching
system. These products address both the core atnd segments of communications networks and suggeyrimanaged services,
Ethernet/TDM Private Line, Triple Play and IP sees. This segment also includes sales of opersyistgm software and enhanced
software features embedded in each of these prmdretzenue from this segment is included in prodexgnue on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

» Carrier-Ethernet Solutionsprincipally includes Ciena's 3000 family of servabaivery switches and service aggregation switctes
5000 series of service aggregation switches, an@atrier Ethernet packet configuration for the®&grvice Aggregation Switch.
These products support the access and aggregtisormt communications networks and have princypladen deployed to support
wireless backhaul infrastructures and businessdataces. Employing sophisticated Carrier Ethesmétching technology, these
products deliver quality of service capabilitiestual local area networking and switching funcgpand carrier-grade operations,
administration, and maintenance features. This sagimcludes legacy broadband products that tiandiégacy voice networks to
support Internet-based (IP) telephony, video ses/and DSL. This segment also includes sales ahtpg system software and
enhanced software features embedded in each & fineducts. Revenue from this segment is includg@aduct revenue on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

« Software and Servicesncludes the Ciena One software suite, includdmgControl, the integrated network and service mament
software designed to automate and simplify netwoakagement, operation and service delivery. Thef@are solutions can track
individual services across multiple product suifasilitating planned network maintenance, outageection and identification of
customers or services affected by network troulifeaddition to Ciena One, this segment includes@N-Center® Network &
Service Management Suite, and the OMEA and Predatforms from the MEN Business. This segment alstudes a broad range
consulting and support services, including instalfaand deployment, maintenance support, congyltistwork design and training
activities. Except for revenue from the softwaretipn of this segment, which is included in prodstenue, revenue from this
segment is included in services revenue on the @idased Statement of Operations.

Reportable segment asset information is not disdd®cause it is not reviewed by the chief opegaticision maker for purposes of evalue
performance and allocating resources.

The table below (in thousands, except percentagg dats forth Ciena’s segment revenue for theets@ periods:

Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012

Revenues:

Packet-Optical Transport $ 70555 $ 1,121,817 $ 1,172,15

Packet-Optical Switching 112,05¢ 148,39! 132,70!

Carrier Ethernet Solutions 179,08: 127,86¢ 131,69:

Software and Services 239,94 343,89t 397,36t
Consolidated revenue $ 1,236,633 $ 1,741,971 $ 1,833,92

Segment Profit (Loss)

Segment profit (loss) is determined based on ialgrarformance measures used by the chief execuffiver to assess the performance o
each operating segment in a given period. In caiorewith that assessment, the chief executiveceffexcludes the following items: selling
and marketing costs; general and administrativescasquisition and integration costs; amortizatbbmtangible assets; restructuring costs;
change in fair value of contingent consideratioeliest and other income (net); interest expergétyeinvestment gains or losses and
provisions (benefit) for income taxes.

The table below (in thousands) sets forth Cienadgrent profit (loss) and the reconciliation to cditkated net income (loss) during the
respective periods:
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Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012

Segment profit:

Packet-Optical Transport $ 69,31¢ $ 191,727 $ 242,13

Packet-Optical Switching 15,66: 49,28¢ 22,84

Carrier-Ethernet Solutions 28,74 10,84¢ (4,066

Software and Services 56,15: 77,42 99,13
Total segment profit 169,87! 329,28: 360,04!
Less: non-performance operating expenses

Selling and marketing 193,51! 251,99( 266,33¢

General and administrative 102,69: 126,24. 114,00:

Acquisition and integration costs 101,37¢ 42,08¢ —

Amortization of intangible assets 99,40: 69,66" 51,69:

Restructuring costs 8,51¢ 5,781 7,85¢

Change in fair value of contingent consideration (13,807 (3,289 —
Add: other non-performance financial items

Interest expense and other income (loss), net (14,707 (31,90¢) (54,857

Gain on cost method investments — 7,24¢ —

Gain on extinguishment of debt 4,94¢ — —
Less: Provision for income taxes 1,941 7,67 9,32:
Consolidated net loss $ (333,519 $ (195,52) $ (144,02;)

Entity Wide Reportini

The following table reflects Ciena’s geographidrilisition of revenue based on the location of thechaser, with any country accounting
for at least 10% of total revenue in the periodctjmally identified. Revenue attributable to geaghic regions outside of the United States is
reflected as International revenue. For the perfmdsw, Ciena’s geographic distribution of revemas as follows (in thousands, except
percentage data):

Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012
United States $ 744.23. $ 930,88( $ 972,57t
International 492,40 811,09( 861,34
Total $ 1,236,631 $ 1,741,971 $ 1,833,92

The following table reflects Ciena's geographidriisition of equipment, furniture and fixtures, Wwiny country
accounting for at least 10% of total equipmentifure and fixtures in the period specifically idiéied. Equipment, furniture and fixtures
attributable to geographic regions outside of tinitédl States and Canada are reflected as “Othemimtional.” For the periods below, Ciena's
geographic distribution of equipment, furniture dixtures was as follows (in thousands, except @atage data):

October 31,
2010 2011 2012
United States $ 6367 $ 60,84¢ $ 64,65:
Canada 45,10: 47,42« 48,37t
Other International 11,51¢ 14,28t 10,55
Total $ 120,29: $% 122,55¢ $ 123,58
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For the periods below, customers accounting féeat 10% of Ciena'’s revenue were as follows (Gufands, except percentage data):

Fiscal Year
2010 2011 2012
AT&T $ 267,42 % 269,85¢ % 248,12:

(20) OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective March 1, 2010, Ciena has a Defined Contion Pension Plan that covers all of its Canaalsetd employees who are not part of
an excluded group. Total contributions (employe@ @mployer) cannot exceed the lesser of 18% ofgjaaint earnings and an annual dollar
limit (CAD $23,820 for 2012 ). This plan includesegjuired employer contribution of 1% for all peipiants and a 50% matching of participan
contributions up to a total annual maximum of CARGRO per employee. During fiscal 2010 , 2011 a@itP2, Ciena made matching
contributions of approximately CAD $2.5 million AD $4.3 million and CAD $4.0 million , respectively

Ciena has a 401(k) defined contribution profit gigplan. The plan covers all U.S. based employdesare not part of an excluded gro
Participants may contribute up to 60% of pre-tampensation, subject to certain limitations. Thenptecludes an employer matching
contribution equal to 50% of the first 6% an emgleontributes each pay period. Ciena may also whakestionary annual profit
contributions up to the IRS regulated limit. Cidras made no profit sharing contributions to datimy fiscal 2010 , 2011 and 2012, Ciena
made matching contributions of approximately $3iion , $3.9 million and $4.1 million , respectiye

(21) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Ontario Grant

Ciena was awarded a conditional grant from the iRoavof Ontario in June 2011. Under this strat¢gis investment fund grant, Ciena
can receive up to an aggregate of CAD $25.0 miliiofunding for eligible costs relating to certaiext-generation, coherent optical transport
development initiatives over the period from Novemb, 2010 to October 31, 2015 . Ciena anticipagesiving disbursements, approximating
CAD $5.0 millionper fiscal year over the period above. Amountsiveceunder the grant are subject to recoupmeritarevent that Ciena fal
to achieve certain minimum investment, employmeick project milestones. Ciena recorded a CAD $51Bamiand a CAD $5.6 million
benefit, as a reduction in research and developmegnses, in fiscal 2011 and 2012, respectivedyoffOctober 31, 2011 and 2012, amounts
receivable from this grant were CAD $0.3 milliorda@AD $2.5 million , respectively.

Foreign Tax Contingencie

Ciena has received assessment notices from thecltesax authorities asserting deficiencies in paysibetween 2001 and 2005 related
primarily to income taxes and import taxes andetutCiena has filed judicial petitions appealingsthassessments. As of October 31, 201
2012, Ciena had accrued liabilities of $1.4 millend $1.7 million related to these contingenaidsch are reported as a component of other
current accrued liabilities. As of October 31, 20Xdena estimates that it could be exposed toilpledssses of up to $5.8 milligrfor which it
has not accrued liabilities. Ciena has not acctheddditional income tax liabilities because ieslmot believe that such losses are more likel
than not. Ciena has not accrued the additional itpges and duties because it does not believithierence of such losses are probable.
Ciena continues to evaluate the likelihood of pldeand reasonably possible losses, if any, retatdidese assessments. As a result, future
increases or decreases to accrued liabilities reayelbessary and will be recorded in the period velueh amounts are estimable and more
likely than not (for income taxes) or probable (fimn-income taxes).

In addition to the matters described above, Cisrsubject to various tax liabilities arising in thalinary course of business. Ciena does
not expect that the ultimate settlement of thesalities will have a material effect on its resutf operations, financial position or cash flows.

Litigation

On July 29, 2011, Cheetah Omni LLC filed a complairthe United States District Court for the EastBistrict of Texas against Ciena
and several other defendants, alleging, among thiregs, that certain of the parties' productsimgfe upon multiple U.S. patents relating to
certain reconfigurable optical add-drop multiple@OADM) technologies. The complaint seeks injuetielief and damages. On November
8, 2011, Ciena filed an answer and counterclain@heetah Omni's

89




Table of Contents

amended complaint. The parties are currently erdjagdiscovery. Ciena believes that it has valitedses to the lawsuit and intends to defen
it vigorously.

On May 29, 2008, Graywire, LLC filed a complainttire United States District Court for the North&istrict of Georgia against Ciena
and four other defendants, alleging, among otHag#) that certain of the parties' products infeéng S. Patent 6,542,673 (the “'673 Patent”),
relating to an identifier system and component®ofuiical assemblies. The complaint seeks injunatlief and damages. In July 2009, upon
request of Ciena and certain other defendantd)i8ePatent and Trademark Office (“PTQ”) grantesl defendants' inter partes application for
reexamination with respect to certain claims of'@¥8 Patent, and the district court granted tHertkants' motion to stay the case pending
reexamination of all of the patents-in-suit. In Betber 2010, the PTO confirmed the validity of sata@ms and rejected the validity of other
claims of the '673 Patent, to which Ciena and otleéendants filed an appeal. On March 16, 2012P{® on appeal rejected multiple claims
of the '673 Patent, including the two claims onahhCiena is alleged to infringe. Subsequently platiff requested a reopening of the
prosecution of the '673 Patent, to which Cienathedther defendants filed an opposition. The casently remains stayed, and there can be
no assurance as to whether or when the stay wiiftbd.

As a result of its June 2002 acquisition of ONIt8yss Corp., Ciena became a defendant in a sesutltiss action lawsuit filed in the
United States District Court for the Southern Distof New York in August 2001. On January 9, 20t final appellant in this securities cl
action lawsuit withdrew and dismissed its appedhwrejudice in accordance with the terms of thdesaent agreement. Ciena was not
required to pay any amount toward the settlemetd arake any other payments to plaintiffs in conio@cwith the resolution of this matter.

In addition to the matters described above, Ciemsabject to various legal proceedings and clansng in the ordinary course of
business, including claims against third partieg thay involve a contractual indemnification obtiga on the part of Ciena. Ciena does not
expect that the ultimate costs to resolve theséensawill have a material effect on its result®pérations, financial position or cash flows.

Operating Lease Commitments

Ciena has certain minimum obligations under norcekable operating leases expiring on various daresigh 2027 for equipment and
facilities. During fiscal 2012, the Company enteirdt a lease relating to office space for its re@nporate headquarters in Hanover, Marylanc
consisting of a rentable area of approximately 18@ square feet. The future minimal rental committe¢o be paid over the 15 -year lease
term are approximately $61.8 million . Future arlmomimum operating lease commitments under norcelatle operating leases at
October 31, 2012 are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended October 31,

2013 $ 31,38:
2014 26,56¢
2015 21,92¢
2016 12,96°
2017 6,63(
Thereafter 46,12¢
Total $ 145,60:

Rental expense for fiscal 2010 , fiscal 2011 asddfi 2012 was approximately $22.2 million , $25i8iom and $21.7 million, respectively
In addition, Ciena paid approximately $2.2 millio$2.4 million and $1.4 million during fiscal 201@iscal 2011 and fiscal 2012 , respectively,
related to rent costs for restructured facilitiad anfavorable lease commitments, which were ofigeinst Ciena’s restructuring liabilities and
unfavorable lease obligations. The amount for dpegdease commitments above does not include bariexpenses relating to insurance,
taxes, maintenance and other costs required bggplicable operating lease. These costs are neceeghto have a material impact on Ciena's
financial condition, results of operations or célskvs.

(22) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On December 19, 2012, Ciena entered into sepamatetely negotiated exchange agreements underwtweill retire $187.5 million in
aggregate principal amount of its outstanding 4@8avertible Senior Notes due 2015 (the “2015 NQtaséxchange for its issuance of a new
series of 4.0% Convertible Senior Notes due 2026 2020 Notes”) in an aggregate original princigadount of $187.5 million (collectively,
the “Exchange Transactions”). Following the Exclafigansactions,
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there will be a total of $187.5 million in aggregatrincipal amount of 2015 Notes outstanding, wetims unchanged by the Exchange
Transactions, and $187.5 million in aggregate fpalcamount of 2020 Notes outstanding. The 201%Bland the 2020 Notes will be the
Company's senior unsecured obligations and wik exqually with all of the Company's other existangd future senior unsecured debt. The
2020 Notes will be issued pursuant to an indertetezeen the Company and Bank of New York Mellobécentered into in connection with
the closing of the Exchange Transactions.

The 2020 Notes will pay interest semi-annually edte of 4.0% per year in respect of each $1,0@finad principal amount of 2020 Notes.
The 2020 Notes will mature on December 15, 202@. Arincipal amount of the 2020 Notes will also aterat a rate of 1.85% per year
commencing December 27, 2012, compounding on aaemial basis. The accreted portion of the pring@pgable at maturity does not bear
interest and is not convertible into shares ofGbenpany's common stock.

The 2020 Notes may be converted prior to matutitygss earlier repurchased), at the option of tiedn, into shares of the Company's
common stock at an initial conversion rate of 4805hares of Ciena common stock per $1,000 inr@lgirincipal amount, which is equal to
an initial conversion price of $20.385 per shaneaddition, upon satisfaction of certain conditicthe Company may elect to convert the 2020
Notes in whole or in part, prior to maturity. Angrggate 09,197,944 shares of the Company's common stoc&hbsswpon conversion of the
2020 Notes have been reserved for issuance. Ttinepany elects to convert the 2020 Notes on orrbefaturity, holders will also receive a
make-whole premium payable in the Company's comshoek, or its cash equivalent, at the electiorhef@ompany.

Upon certain fundamental changes, holders of ti28 2lbtes have the option to require the Comparputohase the 2020 Notes at a price
equal to the accreted principal amount of the 208tes delivered for repurchase plus any accrueduapdid interest on the original principal
amount of such 2020 Notes. Upon a holder's eletti@onvert the 2020 Notes in connection with dertandamental changes, such holder
receive a make-whole premium payable in the Comparommon stock, or its cash equivalent, at thetiele of the Company.

Ciena expects the Exchange Transactions to clofeoamber 27, 2012.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourtsaon Accounting and Financial Disclosur

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedure
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this repeg,carried out an evaluation under the superviairmhwith the participation of
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, of our disclosure ca$rand procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the SecuBtiebange Act of 1934, as amended). Based upomvhisiation, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded tloatr disclosure controls and procedures were effeets of the end of the period covered by
this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in Ciena’s internal control éimancial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15¢id 15d-15(f) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) during the neastntly completed fiscal quarter that has matgriflected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, Ciena’s internal control ovandncial reporting.

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Finarcial Reporting

The management of Ciena Corporation is responiblestablishing and maintaining adequate intecoatrol over financial reporting (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underSeeurities Exchange Act of 1934).

The internal control over financial reporting ae@a Corporation was designed to provide reasormssigrance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantteagcounting principles generally acceptec
in the United States of America. Internal contreéofinancial reporting includes those policies @ndcedures that:

» pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflecttthasactions and dispositions of the
assets of Ciena Corporation;

» provide reasonable assurance that transactiengeorded as necessary to permit preparatiomafidial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted m thited States of America;

e provide reasonable assurance that receipts anaeitpes of Ciena Corporation are being made ambycicordance with authorizati
of management and directors of Ciena Corporatiod; a

» provide reasonable assurance regarding preveatiimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiage or disposition of assets that
could have a material effect on the consolidatedrfcial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements.

Management of Ciena Corporation assessed theigffeets of the company’s internal control overfiitial reporting as of October 31,
2012 . Management based this assessment on cfaegéective internal control over financial rating described in “Internal Control —
Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee afrSpring Organizations of the Treadway Commissdiased on this assessment,
management determined that, as of October 31, 2Cigha Corporation maintained effective interrattcol over financial reporting.
Management reviewed the results of its assessmi#ntive Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent regisfaiblic accounting firm, who audited and reportedimsconsolidated financial
statements of Ciena Corporation included in thisuahreport, has also audited the effectivene&di@fia Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting as of October 31, 2012 , atestén its report appearing under Item 8 of Padf lthis annual report.

/sl Gary B. Smith /sl James E. Moylan, Jr.

Gary B. Smith James E. Moylan, Jr.

President and Chief Executive Officer Seniazé/President and Chief Financial Officer
December 21, 2012 December 21, 2012

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

92




Table of Contents
PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and CorpoeaGovernance

Information relating to Ciena’s directors and exauofficers is set forth in Part | of this annwaport under the caption Item 1.
“Business—Directors and Executive Officers.”

Additional information concerning our Audit Comnai¢t and regarding compliance with Section 16(apefiixchange Act responsive to
this item is incorporated herein by reference ten@is definitive proxy statement with respect to 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the efithe fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K.

As part of our system of corporate governanceboard of directors has adopted a code of ethidgdlspecifically applicable to our chief
executive officer and senior financial officers.iFode of Ethics for Senior Financial Officersyaal as our Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, applicable to all directors, officers amdpdoyees, are available on the corporate governpage of our web site at
http://www.ciena.com We intend to satisfy any disclosure requirememean Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendmenbit waiver
from, a provision of the Code of Ethics for Serf@amancial Officers, by posting such informationaur web site at the address above.

Item 11. Executive Compensatic

Information responsive to this item is incorporatedein by reference to Ciesalefinitive proxy statement with respect to out2@nnual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddoy this Form 10-K.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaMDers and Management and Related Stockholder Mat

Information responsive to this item is incorporatedein by reference to Ciesalefinitive proxy statement with respect to out2@nnual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddoy this Form 10-K.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trandaas, and Director Independenc

Information responsive to this item is incorporatedein by reference to Ciesalefinitive proxy statement with respect to out2@nnual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddoy this Form 10-K.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servic

Information responsive to this item is incorporatedein by reference to Ciesalefinitive proxy statement with respect to out2@nnual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddoy this Form 10-K.
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PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
€)) 1. The information required by this item islirded in Item 8 of Part Il of this annual rep
2. The information required by this item is includedtem 8 of Part Il of this annual rept

3.  Exhibits: See Index to Exhibits, which is ingorated by reference in this ltem. The Exhibittelisin the accompanying Index to
Exhibits are filed or incorporated by referenceag of this annual report.

(b) Exhibits. See Index to Exhibits, which is ingorated by reference in this Item. The Exhibisdd in the accompanying Index to
Exhibits are filed or incorporated by referenceag of this annual report.

(c) Not applicable
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized on the 21st day of December 2012 .

Ciena Corporation

By: /s/ Gary B. Smith
Gary B. Smith
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
the Registrant and in the capacities and on theiddtcated.

Signatures Title Date

/s/ Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.D. Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors December 21, 2012
Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.D.

/sl Gary B. Smith President, Chief Executive Officer and Director December 21, 2012

Gary B. Smith
(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl James E. Moylan, Jr. Sr. Vice President, Finance and Chief Financialdeff December 21, 2012

James E. Moylan, Jr.
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Andrew C. Petrik Vice President, Controller December 21, 2012

Andrew C. Petrik
(Principal Accounting Officer)

/sl Harvey B. Cash Director December 21, 2012
Harvey B. Cash

/s/ Bruce L. Claflin Director December 21, 2012
Bruce L. Claflin

/sl Lawton W. Fitt Director December 21, 2012
Lawton W. Fitt
/sl Patrick T. Gallagher Director December 21, 2012

Patrick T. Gallagher

/s/ Judith M. O’Brien Director December 21, 2012
Judith M. O’Brien

/sl Michael J. Rowny Director December 21, 2012
Michael J. Rowny

95






Table of Contents

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Incorporated by Reference

Form and Filed
Exhibit Registration or Here-
Number Exhibit Description Commission No. Exhibit Filing Date with (X)
2.1 Amended & Restated Asset Sale Agreement by and gNortel 10-K (000- 2.1 12/22/2009
Networks Corporation, Nortel Networks Limited, NalriNetworks, 21969)
Inc. and certain other entities identified theraénsellers and Ciena
Corporation, dated as of November 24, 2009 (“Nok®A")+
2.2 Amendment No. 1 to Nortel ASA dated as of Decen¥h@009+ 10-K (000- 2.2 12/22/2009
21969)
2.3 Amendment No. 2 to Nortel ASA dated as of Decen#3r2009+ 10-Q (000- 2.1 3/5/2010
21969)
2.4 Amendment No. 3 to Nortel ASA dated as of March2@®10 10-Q (000- 2.1 6/10/2010
21969)
25 Amendment No. 4 to the Nortel ASA dated as of Matbh2010+ 10-Q (000- 2.2 6/10/2010
21969)
2.6 Amendment No. 5 to the Nortel ASA dated as of Mar®h2010+ 10-Q (000- 2.3 6/10/2010
21969)
2.7 Asset Sale Agreement (relating to the sale andhasee of certain 10-K (000- 2.3 12/22/2009
Nortel assets in Europe, the Middle East and Afrilgaand among 21969)
the Nortel affiliates, Joint Administrators andritdisraeli
Administrators named therein and Ciena Corporatiated as of
October 7, 2009 (“Nortel EMEA ASA™)+
2.8 Deed of Amendment, dated October 20, 2009, relatirtbe Nortel 10-K (000- 2.4 12/22/2009
EMEA ASA+ 21969)
29 Amending Agreement dated November 24, 2009 reldtirthe 10-K (000- 2.5 12/22/2009
Nortel EMEA ASA+ 21969)
2.10 Amending Agreement dated December 16, 2009 relatitige 10-K (000- 2.6 12/22/2009
Nortel EMEA ASA+ 21969)
2.11 Deed of Amendment (Amendment No. 4) dated Januzr2@10 10-Q (000- 2.2 3/5/2010
relating to Nortel EMEA ASA+ 21969)
2.12 Deed of Amendment (Amendment No. 5) dated Marct2090 10-Q (000- 2.1 6/10/2010
relating to Nortel EMEA ASA+ 21969)
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation 8-K (333- 3.1 3/27/2008
17729)
3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Ciena Corporation 8-K (000- 3.1 8/28/2008
21969)
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate 10-K (000- 4.1 12/27/2007
21969)
4.2 Indenture dated as of April 10, 2006 between Cieagoration and  8-K (000- 4.7 4/10/2006
The Bank of New York, as trustee, for 0.25% CorikétSenior 21969)
Notes due 2013, including the Form of Global Ndtached as
Exhibit A thereto
4.3 Indenture dated June 11, 2007 between Ciena Cdigoend The 8-K (000- 4.7 6/12/2007
Bank of New York, as trustee, for 0.875% ConveetiBenior Notes 21969)

due 2017, including the Form of Global Note attachs Exhibit A
thereto
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Incorporated by Reference

Form and Filed
Exhibit Registration or Here-
Number Exhibit Description Commission No. Exhibit Filing Date with (X)
4.4 Indenture dated March 15, 2010 between Ciena Catiporand Th 8-K (000- 4.1 3/19/2010
Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, for 4.0% Cortiabe Senior 21969)
Notes due 2015, including the Form of Global Ndtached as
Exhibit A thereto
4.5 Indenture dated as of October 18, 2010 betweenaGlemporation 8-K (000- 4.1 10/21/2010
and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.&s 21969)
trustee, for 3.75% Convertible Senior Notes dueB2@ricluding the
Form of Global Note attached as Exhibit A thereto
10.1 1999 Non-Officer Stock Option Plan and Form of &tQption 10-K (000- 10.22 12/10/1999
Agreement* 21969)
10.2 Amendment No. 1 to 1999 Non-Officer Stock OptioarPl 10-K (000- 10.25 12/3/2001
21969)
10.3 Catena Networks, Inc. 1998 Equity Incentive Planamended* 10-Q (000- 10.38 5/20/2004
21969)
10.4 Internet Photonics, Inc. Amended and Restated Zfporate 10-Q (000- 10.39 5/20/2004
Stock Option Plan* 21969)
10.5 Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (Amezhdnd 10-K (000- 10.37 12/11/2003
Restated ONI Systems Corp. 2000 Equity Incentiaa PI 21969)
10.6 Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for executbficers 8-K (000- 10.1 11/4/2005
under Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan* 21969)
10.7 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for execaibfficers 8-K (000- 10.2 11/4/2005
under Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan* 21969)
10.8 Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreementdrecutive 8-K (000- 10.3 11/4/2005
officers under Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity IneenPlan* 21969)
10.9 Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for directarsler Ciena 8-K (000- 104 11/4/2005
Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan* 21969)
10.10 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement faredtors under ~ 8-K (000- 10.5 11/4/2005
Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan* 21969)
10.11 Amended and Restated 2003 Employee Stock Purchas¢e? 10-K (000- 10.11 12/22/2011
amended on May 30, 2006 and September 10, 2010)* 21969)
10.12 1996 Outside Directors Stock Option Plan* S-1(33317729) 104 12/12/1996
10.13 Forms of 1996 Outside Directors Stock Option Agrerth S-1(33317729) 10.5 12/12/1996
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Incorporated by Reference

Form and Filed
Exhibit Registration or Here-
Number Exhibit Description Commission No. Exhibit Filing Date with (X)
10.14 Third Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan* S-1(33317729) 10.2 12/12/1996
10.15 Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan Foffamployee S-1 (33317729) 10.3 12/12/1996
Stock Option Agreement*
10.16 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan* 8-K (000- 10.1 3/27/2008
21969)
10.17 Amendment to Ciena Corporation 2008 Omnibus Ingerfilan* 8-K (000- 10.1 4/15/2010
21969)
10.18 Amendment to Ciena Corporation 2008 Omnibus Ingerfilan 8-K (000- 10.1 3/23/2012
dated March 21, 2012 21969)
10.19 Form of 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan Restricted IStduit 10-K (000- 10.18 12/22/2011
Agreement (Employee)* 21969)
10.20 Form of 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan Non-Qualifi¢dcR Option 10-Q (000- 10.2 6/4/2009
Agreement (Employee)* 21969)
10.21 Form of 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan Restricted IStdwit 10-Q (000- 10.3 6/4/2009
Agreement (Director)* 21969)
10.22 World Wide Packets, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive PEmamended* S-8 (333- 10.1 3/4/2008
149520)
10.23 Form of Indemnification Agreement with Directorsdaaxecutive 10-Q (000- 10.1 3/3/2006
Officers* 21969)
10.24 Amended and Restated Change in Control Severanm@eimgnt 10-K (000- 10.23 12/22/2010
between Ciena Corporation and Gary B. Smith* 21969)
10.25 Form of Amended and Restated Change in Controlr@ace 10-K (000- 10.24 12/22/2010
Agreement between Ciena and Executive Officers* 21969)
10.26 Ciena Corporation Directors Restricted Stock Defeptan* 10-Q (000- 10.1 8/31/2007
21969)
10.27 Ciena Corporation Amended and Restated IncentiveuB®lan, as 10-K (000- 10.26 12/22/2011
amended December 15, 2011* 21969)
10.28 Ciena Corporation 2010 Inducement Equity Award Plan 10-K (000- 10.35 12/22/2009
21969)
10.29 Form of 2010 Inducement Equity Award Plan Restdc&ock Unit 10-Q (000- 10.2 3/25/2009
Agreement* 21969)
10.30 U.S. Executive Severance Benefit Plan* 10-Q (000- 10.1 6/9/2011
21969)
10.31 Lease Agreement dated as of March 19, 2010 bet@esTa 10-Q (000- 10.1 6/10/2010
Canada, Inc. and Nortel Networks Technology Corp.# 21969)
10.32 Lab 10 Lease Amending Agreement dated FebruaraR®? 8-K (000- 1.1 2/15/2012
between Ciena Canada, Inc. and Public Works ané@awent 21969)
Services Canada
10.33 Transition Services Agreement, dated as of Margl2020 between  10-Q (000- 10.2 6/10/2010
Ciena Corporation and Nortel Networks Corporatind eertain 21969)
affiliated entities#
10.34 Intellectual Property License Agreement dated ddarfch 19, 2010  10-Q (000- 10.3 6/10/2010
between Ciena Luxembourg S.a.r.l. and Nortel Netahimited# 21969)
10.35 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Enrollment Agreement* 10-K (000- 10.33 12/22/2011
21969)
10.36 Amended & Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plaual diéarch 8-K (000- 10.2 3/23/2012
21,2012 21969)

98




Table of Contents

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

121

211

23.1

31.1

31.2

Lease Agreement dated November 3, 2011 betweeraCien
Corporation and W2007 RDG Realty, L.L.C.

ABL Credit Agreement, dated August 13, 2012, by antbng
Ciena Corporation, Ciena Communications, Inc. aimh&Canada,
Inc., as the borrowers, the lenders party thei2¢oitsche Bank AG
New York Branch, as administrative agent and cefkdtagent,
Bank of America, N.A., as syndication agent, and¢4m Stanley
Senior Funding, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, Natioksdociation,
as co-documentation agents +

Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated August 2422b6¢% and
among Ciena Corporation, Ciena Communications,dnd.Ciena
Canada, Inc., as he borrowers, and Deutsche BanKé&@York
Branch, as administrative agent +

Security Agreement, dated August 13, 2012, by andng Ciena
Corporation and Ciena Communications, Inc., agasss, and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as collaterahage

Pledge Agreement, dated August 13, 2012, by andhgr@oena
Corporation and Ciena Communications, Inc., asgaes| and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as collateranagad
pledgee +

U.S. Guaranty, dated August 13, 2012, by and an@bega
Corporation and Ciena Communications, Inc., asantars, and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as administrasigent +
Canadian Security Agreement, dated August 13, 204 and
between Ciena Canada, Inc., as assignor, and DeuBank AG
New York Branch, as collateral agent +

Canadian Guaranty, dated August 13, 2012, by atvdelea Ciena
Canada, Inc., as guarantor, and Deutsche Bank AG Yk
Branch, as administrative agent +

Computation of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of registrant

Consent of Independent Registered PuldaoAnting Firm

10-K (000- 10.34
219609)

10-Q (000- 10.1
219609)

10-Q (000- 10.2
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.3
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.4
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.5
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.6
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.7
21969)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer PursuantRule 13a-14 —

(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 aspéet
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002

32.1

32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer PursuantRule 13a-14(a) —

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as Adbptesuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 9@i6eoBarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Puemt to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 9@ieéeoBarbanes-

12/22/2011

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012



101.INS**

101.SCH**

101.CAL**

101.DEF**

101.LAB**

101.PRE**

Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Dioent
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Daocent
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbaseuoent
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*%

Represents management contract or comperysglam or arrangement

In accordance with Regulation S-T, XBRL (Exsible Business Reporting Language) related irdtion in Exhibit No. (101) to
this Annual Report on Form 10-K shall be deemedriithed” and not “filed’for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgh:
Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subjectadi#bilities of that section, and shall not bedrporated by reference into any
registration statement pursuant to the SecuritiesoA1933, as amended.

Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation 8dftain schedules and exhibits referenced in thle & contents have been omitted.
Ciena hereby agrees to furnish supplementally & obpny omitted exhibit or schedule to the SECrupquest. In addition,
representations and warranties included in thesseatents, as amended, were made by the partie® tanmther in connection
with a negotiated transaction. These representtiod warranties were made as of specific datésfanpurposes of these
agreements and for the benefit of the parties thefdese representations and warranties werecubjémportant exceptions and
limitations agreed upon by the parties, includiegng qualified by confidential disclosures, madetfe purposes of allocating
contractual risk between the parties rather thtaibishing these matters as facts. These agreemenfded with this report only to
provide investors with information regarding itsns and conditions, and not to provide any othetufa information regarding
Ciena or any other party thereto. Accordingly, stees should not rely on the representations anrdanwties contained in these
agreements or any description thereof as charaatenns of the actual state of facts or conditibary party, its subsidiaries or
affiliates. The information in these agreementausthbe considered together with Ciena’s public repfiled with the SEC.

Certain portions of these documents have begtied based on a request for confidential treatnsubmitted to the SEC. The non-
public information that has been omitted from théseuments has been separately filed with the &a€h redacted portion of
these documents is indicated by a “[*]” and is s@bjo the request for confidential treatment stteuito the SEC. The redacted
information is confidential information of the Rerant.
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EXHIBIT 12.1

Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Bied Charges

Year Ended October 31,

2010 2011 2012

Pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operations $ (331,57) $ (187,84H) $ (134,699
Fixed charges:

Interest expense 18,61¢ 37,92¢ 39,65

Portion of rental expense representative of@stefactor 7,32¢ 8,421 7,14¢

Total fixed charges 25,94: 46,347 46,80:
Pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operationssgdixed charges $ (305,63) $ (14150) $ (87,89)
Ratio of losses to fixed charges (1) $ — $ — 3 —

(1) Pre-tax losses from continuing operations fiked charges were inadequate to cover total fotearges.



EXHIBIT 21.1

Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incomation or Organization

Ciena Communications, Inc. Delesv



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-38131, 333-30900, 333-72474, 333-
91294, 333-102462, 333-103328, 333-113872, 333-87,5233-121110, 333-123509, 333-123510, 333-149528,149929, 333-163927, 333
166125, 333-180332 and 333-180333) and on FornfN$3333-108476 and 333-149519) of Ciena Corpaomatioour report dated

December 21, 2012 relating to the financial statesiand the effectiveness of internal control direxncial reporting, which appears in this
Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
December 21, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1
CIENA CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Gary B. Smith, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report of Ciena Goapion;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presentihisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesegnt's internal control over financial reportth@t occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anlalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiotiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitifethe registrant's board of directors (or pesgeerforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céooirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreaincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 21, 2012

/sl Gary B. Smith
Gary B. Smith
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CIENA CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

[, James E. Moylan Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report of Ciena Goapion;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presentihisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesegnt's internal control over financial reportth@t occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anlalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiotiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitifethe registrant's board of directors (or pesgeerforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céooirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreaincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 21, 2012

/sl James E. Moylan Jr.
James E. Moylan Jr.
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CIENA CORPORATION

Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Executive Office€®na Corporation (the “Company”), hereby ceetifthat, to his knowledge, on the date

hereof:
(a) the Report on Form 10-K of the Company forythar ended October 31, 2012 filed on the date heritlo the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S¢iesrExchange Act of 1934; and

(b) information contained in the Report fairly peass, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the

Company.

/sl Gary B. Smith

Gary B. Smith
President and Chief Executive Officer

December 21, 2012

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906, or other document authenticatiegnowledging, or otherwise adopting the
signature that appears in typed form within thetetamic version of this written statement requibsdSection 906, has been provided to Ciena
Corporation and will be retained by Ciena Corporatind furnished to the Securities and Exchangendission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2
CIENA CORPORATION

Written Statement of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Financial Office€@&na Corporation (the “Company”), hereby ceesfihat, to his knowledge, on the date
hereof:

(a) the Report on Form 10-K of the Company forythar ended October 31, 2012 filed on the date hevritlo the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S¢iegrExchange Act of 1934; and

(b) information contained in the Report fairly peass, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the
Company.

/sl James E. Moylan Jr.
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
December 21, 2012

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906, or other document authenticategnowledging, or otherwise adopting the
signature that appears in typed form within thetetamic version of this written statement requibydSection 906, has been provided to Ciena
Corporation and will be retained by Ciena Corpamtind furnished to the Securities and Exchangenission or its staff upon request.



